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Dear Shareholders:

Fiscal 2005 was a breakaway year for Intersil!  In just 

our second year as a pure play high performance analog 

company, we delivered outstanding revenue and earnings 

growth, broadened our product portfolio, expanded into 

accelerating new markets, and provided a significant return to 

you, our shareholders.

Financial Overview (GAAP):

In 2005, Intersil reported annual revenues of $600 

million, a 12% increase from $536 million in 

2004 and well above the 7% growth rate of 

the semiconductor market.  For the year, we 

maintained strong gross margins of 56% and 

significantly improved our operating margins 

from 3% of sales in 2004 to 17% of sales in 

2005.  Net income more than doubled from $41 

million in 2004 to $86 million in 2005. Earnings 

per share on a fully diluted basis also increased 

significantly from $0.28 in 2004 to $0.59 in 

2005.

We continued to show strong cash 

generation, as the Company produced over $134 

million in cash flow during 2005 and exited the 

year with $714 million in cash and marketable 

securities.  With our Board of Directors’ 

authorization, we continued our stock repurchase program 

and increased our quarterly cash dividend 25% to $0.05 per 

share.  In calendar year 2005, we returned more than $150 

million to our shareholders in the form of stock repurchases 

and dividends.

Success in New Areas:

Our handheld revenue more than tripled during 2005 as we 

continued to penetrate the top tier cellular phone manufactures 

with our battery chargers.  In addition, we secured design 

wins and ramped production in several additional handheld 

applications including MP3 players, Bluetooth headsets, 

portable media players and wireless keyboards.  Our customer 

base for handhelds is now over 400!

Working with a strategic customer, we developed a 

programmable buffer that expands the viewing angle on an 

LCD TV, eliminating a key disadvantage over a plasma TV.  

The LCD TV market is expected to grow significantly over the 

next several years. With our strong customer relationships and 

deep technical skills, we are well positioned to continue our 

solid growth in this area.

With a new suite of notebook power management 

solutions, we were able to expand our notebook business 

on the current Intel Centrino® refresh cycle.  Additionally, by 

bringing products to market early, we have secured design 

wins on next generation mobile platforms with North American 

and Japanese Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) and 

Taiwanese Original Design Manufacturers (ODMs).  These 

design wins are expected to drive additional growth in 2006.

Expanding Silicon Content:

In many of our key areas such as handhelds, displays, 

video systems, and notebooks, we have expanded our silicon 
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content in each platform allowing us to leverage our existing 

customer relationships.  For example, this past year, we added 

switching regulators and video line drivers to our display product 

portfolio which already included buffers, digital potentiometers, 

and analog front ends.  As a result, our display business 

grew over 250%!  Similarly, we have continued to expand our 

video product offerings.  Our video solutions, including video 

amplifiers, line drivers, delay line ICs, and crosspoint switches, 

have been adopted by leading KVM (keyboard, video, mouse) 

suppliers for video distribution systems such as those found in 

airports, retail stores, and office buildings.  By increasing our 

silicon content, we substantially increased our revenue stream 

at each of our top accounts.

Growth and Profitability:

During 2005, we experienced tremendous success with 

our application specific products.  This success enabled our 

accelerated growth during the past year and positions us 

for continued growth throughout 2006.  In addition, our high 

margin general purpose products grew at a rate faster than the 

overall analog market.  With over 300 new products introduced 

each year, many targeted to general purpose applications, we 

remain committed to growing this part of our business as it is 

key to our gross margin model.

Throughout 2005, we took several actions to improve 

our gross margins including supplier agreements and 

consolidations, cost reductions, depreciation reduction and 

transitioning to advanced wafer technologies.  Although we 
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started to see some benefit in 2005, we expect to further 

improve gross margin quarter over quarter throughout 2006.  

We believe that with our continued success 

in the market, we will be able to drive all three 

financial measures – revenue growth, gross 

margin expansion and earnings growth – to 

our target model levels in 2006.

With precise execution this past year, 

we demonstrated the power of our financial 

model.  Our product diversification is having 

the desired effect of dampening typical 

seasonality, thus positioning the Company 

to deliver quarter over quarter financial 

improvements.  We are poised for growth 

in many of our 40+ product families.  These 

engines are expected to drive another year of 

exceptional revenue growth.

Finally, we would like to thank our 

shareholders, customers, employees and 

partners for their continued support and 

commitment to Intersil.  We continue to 

be committed to delivering innovation and 

providing consistent execution for our customers.  

It’s going to be another exciting year!

Sincerely,
Rich Beyer, Chief Executive Officer



Intersil released over 300  highly differentiated new products in 2005.

Video Crosspoints Video Sync SeparatorsAnalog SwitchesVoltage Supervisors

Integrated FET RegulatorsVoltage ReferenceIntegrated FET RegulatorsPrecision Amplifiers

Low Noise LDOs Wide Voltage PWMs Multi-Protocol Interface Battery Authentication

The images throughout this Annual Report are samples from some of the unique advertising 
campaigns Intersil ran in 2005 and 2006 highlighting over 30 industry leading devices.



Intersil’s Markets

Intersil is a leader in the design and manufacture of 

high performance analog semiconductors. The Company 

offers analog signal conditioning, signal processing and power 

management solutions targeted at four markets: high-end 

consumer, industrial, communications and computing. 

High-End Consumer

The high-end consumer segment represented 27% of 

Intersil’s 2005 revenue. This area continues to be the Company’s 

fastest growing market segment, as Intersil’s products offer 

technology leadership and the innovation that power today’s 

consumer products. The consumer product families include an 

expanded portfolio for the handheld and LCD display markets, 

as well as, market leading laser diode drivers for the optical 

storage market (CD and DVD recorders).

The escalating demand for portability and connectivity 

continues to drive growth for handheld devices such as 

cell phones, smart phones, MP3 players, personal video 

recorders and digital still cameras.   The Company’s success 

with battery chargers continued throughout the year as new 

design wins were secured and major manufacturers ramped 

to production.  New applications such as Bluetooth headsets 

and video-enabled MP3 players provided the Company 

opportunities to expand its revenue stream and diversify its 

customer base.  Intersil continued to expand its addressable 

silicon content with the addition of video line drivers, ambient 

light sensors, and linear drop-out regulators.  When combined 

with battery chargers, switching regulators, analog switches, 

authentication devices, fuel gauges, and display drivers, the 

Company’s opportunity in handheld applications is significant.  

This business is positioned for solid growth in 2006.

Unit demand for DVD recordable (DVD-R) devices 

continues to be quite strong.  Many personal computers 

and stand-alone consumer devices are now equipped with  

DVD-R drives, which have the ability to record audio and video 

multimedia in large volumes. Market demand continues to 

push for faster recording speeds, thereby 

allowing for additional device innovation. 

New development efforts in 2005 were 

focused on next generation technology, 

Blu-ray and High Density (HD).  Intersil 

has expanded its silicon content to include 

photodiode ICs in addition to laser diode 

drivers on this new platform.  This next 

generation technology is expected to ramp 

in the second half of 2006 with significant revenue growth 

expected in 2007.

With an expanded product portfolio, Intersil experienced 

exceptional growth for its TFT-LCD display products.  The 

Company continued to introduce innovative new products 

which have enabled panel manufacturers to improve their 

viewing angle, provide faster response times, improve yield and 

decrease system cost.  The TFT-LCD display market including 

both TVs and monitors is expected to grow significantly in 

2006 as several panel manufacturers bring additional capacity 

on line.  The larger panels require more silicon content than 
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smaller panels.  Intersil is strongly positioned to increase its 

silicon content in each display and expects continued revenue 

growth in this area. 

During 2005, the high-end consumer market was a major 

catalyst for the Company’s revenue growth, increasing 43% 

year over year.  With many products early in their lifecycles 

across each segment: handheld, optical storage, and TFT-

LCD displays, Intersil is poised again for high growth from this 

segment in 2006.

Industrial

The industrial segment represented 

approximately 26% of Intersil’s 2005 

revenue. This segment largely consists 

of general purpose proprietary products 

and has been a focus investment area 

for Intersil over the past several years. 

The broad product portfolio including 

converters, analog switches and multiplexers, interface 

transceivers, operational amplifiers, digitally controlled 

potentiometers (DCPs), real time clocks (RTCs), voltage 

references, voltage supervisory ICs, and power management 

ICs serves a multitude of industrial applications such as factory 

automation, point-of sale terminals, motor control, utility 

metering, medical diagnostic equipment, instrumentation, and 

global positioning systems.  

Video remains an exciting driving force within the 

industrial segment. Intersil has long been a recognized leader 

for high-speed video amplifiers. Now, Intersil offers a complete 

equalization and compensation solution for transmitting 

video signals over CAT-5 cables.  These cables, which are 

commonly used for Ethernet connections, offer substantial cost 

savings compared to other approaches for video transmission. 

Intersil’s CAT-5 solutions minimize image degradation when a 

video signal is transmitted over these cables. Building on its 

systems expertise for this application, Intersil has expanded 

its total addressable silicon content by adding drivers with 

synchronization encoders, triple analog delay line ICs, 

equalizers with decoders, and crosspoint switches. These 

products are used in KVM systems (keyboard, video and 

mouse) where multiple video signals are being transmitted  

and / or received from a single station (keyboard). These 

systems include airport TV systems, security camera systems, 

and classroom monitoring and courtroom video systems.  

Factory automation requires systems that are able to 

measure, adjust and transmit data in a very noisy environment. 

Intersil’s RS-485 transceivers, DCPs, and voltage references 

are designed to meet the challenges associated with this 

type of environment. Over the past year, Intersil expanded 

its RS-485 transceivers, adding 3.3V capability to an already 

extensive offering.  Intersil’s high ESD protection (15kV) 

remains a differentiator in the market.  Intersil also introduced 

its first dual protocol RS-485 and RS-232 family. 

These transceivers allow data that is collected from 

remote equipment to be transmitted to a central processing 

location. A DCP, which replaces a mechanical potentiometer, 

can be used in industrial equipment to provide reference 

The industrial segment, 

which has been a focus 

investment area for 

Intersil, represented 

approximately 26% of 

Intersil’s 2005 revenue



Intersil plans to release and aggressively market over 350 new products in 2006.

Military Grade Products Voltage ReferenceAmbient Light SensorsDigital Power

Digital PotentiometersVideo CrosspointsHigh Speed AnalogVoltage Supervisors

Interface Products Chipscale Video Driver Battery Authentication High Speed Amplifiers



Sub Ohm Analog Switches Battery Charger ICsIntersil’s World of AnalogBattery Charger ICs

Chipscale Video DriversStep Down ControllersOnline Design ToolsIntegrated FET Regulators

Space Products Display Products LCD Display Buffers Handheld Products



voltages or bias calibration. Intersil is a leading supplier 

of DCPs.  Intersil’s voltage references are ideal for more 

challenging conditions.  The Company’s voltage references 

are built using a proprietary process called Floating Gate 

Analog (FGA)TM. This technology produces an extraordinarily 

accurate and stable voltage reference by storing a precise 

charge that is essentially unaffected by external conditions 

such as temperature variation, input voltage or time. The 

transceivers, DCPs and voltage references are well suited for 

a variety of applications including medical equipment, digital 

meters, instrumentation equipment and utility metering.  

After several years of making focused investments 

and introducing hundreds of products, Intersil is beginning to 

see initial production revenue from its newer products.  With 

the growing design win momentum experienced throughout 

2005, Intersil expects this end market to be its second fastest 

revenue growth driver in 2006.

 Communications

The communications segment represented 23% of 

Intersil’s 2005 revenue. In total, Intersil now has more than 

10 communications product families. Intersil offers analog 

signal conditioning, signal processing and power management 

solutions for digital subscriber line (DSL) equipment, cable 

modems, routers, gateways and set-top boxes.  

Intersil is a leading supplier of DSL line drivers for central 

office equipment. The Company offers both VDSL and ADSL 

solutions. VDSL operates at higher data rates than ADSL over 

shorter distances.  VDSL requires higher speed and lower 

distortion, and that makes it a perfect match with Intersil’s 

proprietary process capabilities.  Although the majority of 

Intersil’s revenue is generated from its ADSL solutions, the 

Company is seeing increasing VDSL design wins and initial 

production revenue as this technology is deployed into the 

marketplace.  For customer premise equipment, Intersil 

has been successful in securing design wins with its power 

management controllers and expects revenue to ramp in 

2006.

Over the past year, the Company 

introduced several general purpose power 

management controllers that provide 

multiple voltage outputs and support a 

wide input voltage range.  These general 

purpose controllers have been designed 

into a variety of applications including 

routers, VoIP phones, wireless LAN cards, set-top boxes and 

network infrastructure modules. Initial production revenue 

started in the second half of 2005.  Intersil expects to see 

continued growth through 2006.  

Intersil will continue to work with leading networking and 

communications equipment manufacturers to develop new 

products best suited for this market.  The Company’s general 

purpose communications products contribute favorably to its 

gross margin, and as such will remain a key focus.

 

 

 

Intersil is beginning to 
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hundreds of new general 
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Computing

Sales in the computing segment represented 24% of 

the Company’s 2005 revenue.  Intersil remains the leading 

supplier of power management solutions for desktop and 

server applications.  During the past year, Intersil expanded 

its position in notebook core regulators and substantially 

increased its revenue from this application.  

The Company’s integrated circuits manage core CPU 

power in approximately 50% of the world’s desktop computers 

and servers. Intersil also supplies switching 

regulators to other areas of the desktop 

market including double data rate memory 

(DDR), system and graphics cards. The 

Company introduced many innovative 

products for desktop, notebook and 

server applications during the year. For 

the desktop platform, Intersil expanded its 

family of multiphase PWM controllers with 

new products that integrate the MOSFET 

drivers with the controllers.  By simplifying the engineering 

efforts for PC manufacturers and enabling a lower overall 

system cost, these products have been quickly adopted in 

the market.  As the industry prepares to convert to dual core 

processing platforms, Intersil is well positioned with its new 

controller solutions that feature its highly efficient, proprietary 

modulation architecture which eliminates several external 

components and thus reduces system costs.  

Intersil greatly expanded its notebook offering in 2005 

introducing 18 new products – over four times more from the 

previous year.  In addition to PWM controllers for the core 

microprocessor, the system logic, other peripheral functions 

and the graphics engines, the Company also added a battery 

management IC.  Similarly to the desktop space, the mobile 

platform will be transitioning to a dual core processor in 2006.  

Intersil has had strong success on this platform with its suite of 

products that features its patented modulation architecture that 

makes it highly efficient under all load conditions.  With design 

wins secured on next generation platforms, Intersil expects to 

see continued revenue expansion in its notebook business 

through 2006.

Finally, for servers, Intersil introduced its first digital 

controllers.  These six phase controllers provide superior 

load line accuracy through programmable temperature 

compensation which reduces the external component count, 

providing space and cost savings.  These controllers are 

ideal for servers, high-end graphics cards, small form factor 

voltage regulator modules (VRMs), and intelligent, multiphase 

POL (point-of-load) modules.  Intersil is the only major high 

performance analog company that offers both analog and 

digital solutions to meet the exact needs of a customer.

Intersil continues to be a leading innovator in computing 

and has the products, knowledge and design expertise to 

leverage the Company’s leadership into other areas of power 

management. With existing technology and the Company’s 

current product portfolio, Intersil is targeting attractive 

opportunities within this segment and expects its overall 

computing business to grow modestly in 2006.

Intersil’s integrated 

circuits manage 

core CPU power in 

approximately 50% of 

the world’s desktop 

computers and servers.
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PART I.  

Item 1. Business  
Forward Looking Statements  

This Annual Report contains statements relating to expected future results and business trends of the Company that are based 
upon our current estimates, expectations, and projections about our industry, and upon management’s beliefs, and certain assumptions 
we have made, that are “forward-looking statements” as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such 
as “anticipates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “may,” “will,” and variations of these words or 
similar expressions are intended to identify “forward-looking statements.” In addition, any statements that refer to expectations, 
projections, or other characterizations of future events or circumstances, including any underlying assumptions, are “forward-looking 
statements.” Such statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties, and assumptions 
that are difficult to predict. Therefore, our actual results may differ materially and adversely from those expressed in any “forward-
looking statement” as a result of various factors. These factors include, but are not limited to: industry and global economic and 
market conditions, such as the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry and the markets addressed by our and our customers’ 
products; demand for, and market acceptance of, new and existing products; successful development of new products; the timing of 
new product introductions; new product performance and quality; the successful integration of acquisitions; manufacturing 
difficulties, such as the availability and extent of utilization of manufacturing capacity and raw materials; procurement shortages; the 
failure of our suppliers or outsource providers to perform their obligations in a manner consistent with our expectations; the need for 
additional capital; pricing pressures and other competitive factors, such as competitor’s new products; competitors with significantly 
greater financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing resources; changes in product mix; fluctuations in manufacturing yields; 
product obsolescence; the ability to develop and implement new technologies and to obtain protection of the related intellectual 
property; legal challenges to our products and technology, such as intellectual property infringement and misappropriation claims; 
customer service; the extent that customers use our products and services in their business, such as the timing of the subsequent entry 
of our customer’s products containing our components into production, the size and timing of orders from customers, and customer 
cancellations or shipment delays; changes in import export regulations; legislative, tax, accounting, or regulatory changes or changes 
in their interpretation; transportation, communication, demand, information technology or supply disruptions based on factors outside 
our control such as natural disasters, wars, and terrorist activities; and exchange rate fluctuations. These “forward-looking statements” 
are made only as of the date hereof, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise the “forward-looking statements,” whether as 
a result of new information, future events or otherwise.  

General  
We are a global designer and manufacturer of high performance analog integrated circuits (“ICs”). We believe our product 

portfolio addresses some of the fastest growing applications in four end markets: high-end consumer, industrial, communications and 
computing.  

Business Strategy  
Our business strategy emphasizes the following key elements:  
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•  Focus on High Growth Markets. We focus our investments on markets with the potential for high growth. We believe that 

the demand for ICs in our focused markets will be higher than that in the overall semiconductor industry. 

 
•  Broaden our Product Portfolio. We intend to increase our investments in the design of general purpose proprietary products 

and continue to develop application-specific standard products for high-growth vertical markets. 



  

  

  

  

Background  
Our mission is to grow faster than our peers as a premier, high-performance analog company. We were formed in August 1999 

when we acquired the semiconductor business of Harris Corporation (“Harris”). We began our transformation into a high-
performance analog company in 2002, with the acquisition of Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. (“Elantec”), followed by the divestiture of 
our wireless networking business in 2003 and concluded it with the 2004 acquisition of Xicor, Inc. (“Xicor”).  

Our internet address is www.intersil.com. We post the following filings as soon as reasonably practicable after they are 
electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission: our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q, our current reports on Form 8-K, our filings pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Act, our proxy statement on Form 14A related to our 
annual stockholders’ meeting and any amendments to those any of those reports or statements filed or furnished pursuant to 
Section 13(a) or 15(d) the Act. All such filings are available free of charge on our website. We have adopted a Corporate Code of 
Ethics, which is applicable to our Chief Executive Officer and principal financial officers. A copy of the Code of Ethics is available 
on our website or free of charge upon request. The content on any website referred to in this filing is not incorporated by reference 
into this filing unless expressly noted otherwise.  

The public may read and copy any reports filed by us with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, 
N.W., Washington, DC 20549 and may obtain information on corporate reports by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC 
maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file 
electronically with the SEC at http://www.sec.gov/.  

Products and Technology  
Our product strategy is focused on broadening our portfolio of Application Specific Standard Products (ASSP) and General 

Purpose Proprietary Products (GPPP) which are targeted at four high-growth markets—High-End Consumer, Industrial, 
Communications and Computing.  
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•  Maintain Technology Leadership. We have 432 research and development employees working on innovative solutions for 

analog architectures. In conjunction with these efforts, we continue to expand our strong intellectual property position by 
seeking to increase our existing portfolio of over 1,000 patents. 

 

•  Maintain Quality Customer Service. Quality customer service is critical to our customer retention and sales growth. 
Through our customer relations initiatives, we believe we distinguish ourselves from our competitors. Additionally, our 
sales force, authorized representatives and distributors provide customer information programs and support for our 
comprehensive, global customer service efforts. 

 •  Partner with Leaders in Semiconductor Markets, Products and Services

 

•  Partner with Leaders in our Markets. We partner with industry leaders in each of our target markets to deliver 
advanced technology for rapidly emerging applications. Our customer base of industry leaders illustrates the 
acceptance of our products to date, and we continue to partner with these customers and others to develop and market 
our next generation products. Our applications and design engineers support our customers’ end product development. 

 

•  Utilize Specialty Expertise in Manufacturing Services. We employ high-volume and specialty suppliers of products and 
services in our industry. We source a substantial portion of our wafer needs as well as assembly, test and packaging 
requirements from those who provide those products and services on a merchant basis and do them well and at 
reasonable cost. This reduces our capital requirements and enhances our flexibility in managing our ever-changing 
business. 



High-End Consumer  
Our high-end consumer products include our optical storage, displays and handheld products. These products target high growth 

applications such as DVD recorders, MP3 Players, GPS systems, liquid crystal display (“LCD”) televisions, cell phones and digital 
still cameras. The high-end consumer category represented 27% of our sales in fiscal year 2005.  

Industrial  
Our industrial products include our operational amplifiers, bridge driver power management products, interface and analog 

switches and multiplexers, and other standard analog products. These products target end markets including medical imaging, energy 
management and factory automation. The industrial products category represented 26% of our sales in fiscal year 2005.  

Communications  
Our communications group is made up of our line drivers, broadband and hot plug power management products and high speed 

converters targeted to applications in markets such as DSL (Digital Subscriber Line), home gateway, satellite and VOIP (Voice Over 
Internet Protocol). The communications category represented 23% of our sales in fiscal year 2005.  

Computing  
Our computing category includes desktop, server and notebook power management, including core power devices and other 

power management products integrated circuits for peripheral devices. The computing category represented 24% of our sales in fiscal 
year 2005.  

Geographic Financial Summary  
We operate exclusively in the semiconductor industry and primarily the analog sector therein. Substantially all revenues result 

from the sales of semiconductor products. All intercompany revenues and balances have been eliminated.  

A summary of the operations by geographic area is summarized below ($ in thousands):  
  

We market our products for sale to customers, including distributors, primarily in China, the U.S., Taiwan and Japan. A 
summary of percent of sales by country is summarized below and shows countries where values exceeded 10% in any one year:  
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   Year Ended

   
January 2, 

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005

United States Operations       

Net sales   $126,411  $ 130,035  $ 133,748
Tangible long-lived assets   150,616  97,250  86,903

International Operations       
Net sales    381,273   405,740   466,507
Tangible long-lived assets   2,794  4,104  9,708

   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Sales by country     

China (includes Hong Kong)   24% 20% 33%
United States   25 24  22 
Taiwan   13  15  10 
Japan   12  12  7 
All Other   26  29  28 



Within the “All Other” category in this table, customers in each of South Korea, Germany, Singapore, Thailand, Philippines, 
Malaysia, Italy, the United Kingdom, France and the Netherlands accounted for at least 1% of our total sales in fiscal 2005.  

Sales, Marketing and Distribution  
In fiscal year 2005, we derived 57% of our sales from original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) customers, original design 

manufacturer (“ODM”) customers, and contract manufacturers. We derived 43% of our sales through distributors and value added 
resellers.  

Our sales organization is supported by customer service and logistics organizations throughout the world. Product orders flow to 
our fabrication facilities or to foundries where the semiconductor wafers are made. Most of our semiconductors are assembled and 
tested at the facilities of independent subcontractors. Finished products are then shipped to customers either directly or indirectly via 
third parties or internally—owned warehouses in the United States, Asia/Pacific and Europe.  

To serve our customer base, we maintain a highly focused sales team, which focuses on those major accounts that are strategic 
to our marketing and product strategies. We also have direct geographical sales organizations selling products in regions throughout 
the world. The geographical sales force works closely with a network of distributors and manufacturers’ representatives, creating a 
worldwide selling network. We have dedicated direct sales organizations operating in the North American, European, Japanese, and 
Asia-Pacific markets. Sales offices are strategically located near major OEM and ODM customers throughout the world. The 
technical applications organization is deployed alongside the direct sales force, ensuring both applications and product/customer 
focus. Our dedicated marketing organization supports field sales and is aligned by specific product group.  

Manufacturers’ representatives generally do not offer products that compete directly with our products, but may offer 
complementary items manufactured by others. Manufacturers’ representatives do not maintain product inventory; instead, customers 
place large quantity orders either directly with us or through these Manufacturers’ representatives. Smaller quantity orders are 
typically placed through distributors.  

Distributors handle a wide variety of products, including products that compete with our products. Some of our sales to 
distributors are made under agreements allowing for market price fluctuations and/or the right to return some unsold merchandise. 
Virtually all distribution agreements contain an industry standard stock rotation provision allowing for minimum levels of inventory 
returns or scrap. In our experience, these inventory returns can usually be resold. We recognize revenue shipped to North American 
distributors when the distributor sells the product. Sales made to international distributors are recognized when product is shipped to 
the international distributors.  

Research and Development  
We believe that the continued introduction of new products in our target markets is essential to our growth. We incurred costs of 

$91.3 million, $107.4 million and $110.8 million on internal research and development projects for fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, 
respectively. In 2005, we announced over 400 new products for our target markets. We believe that we must continue to innovate, 
enhance and expand our products and services to maintain our leadership position, and we intend to achieve this through in-house 
research and development and, occasionally, selective acquisitions. As of December 30, 2005, we had 432 employees engaged in 
research and development.  

We also engage in research projects with a small number of universities. Technology and research have also been extended 
through selective investments in privately held emerging companies.  
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Manufacturing  
We fabricate wafers of integrated circuits in our Florida manufacturing facility. We also have wafers of integrated circuits 

manufactured by leading foundry suppliers such as IBM Microelectronics, Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, United 
Microelectronics Corporation and AMI Semiconductor. We believe that our strategy of internal and foundry suppliers provides an 
increased level of flexibility and capacity to meet production demand. In addition, this strategy significantly reduces the ongoing 
capital investment required to maintain our production capabilities. During 2005, we internally produced approximately 46% of our 
wafers and sourced the remaining 54% from foundry partners.  

Following fabrication, wafers are subject to packaging and testing processes. The majority of these processes are performed by 
independent subcontractors located in Malaysia, China, Taiwan, South Korea and the Philippines. However, we maintain assembly 
and test capabilities for certain products in Florida and California.  

Historically, certain materials, including silicon wafers and other materials, have been in short supply. In the recent past, we 
have not experienced delays in obtaining raw materials, which could have adversely affected production. As is typical in the industry, 
we must allow for significant lead times in delivery of certain materials. The production of integrated circuits, from wafer fabrication, 
through packaging and final testing, may take from eight to sixteen weeks. We manufacture thousands of product types and our 
customers typically require delivery within a short period of time following their order. To consistently meet these requirements, we 
maintain a substantial work-in-process and finished goods inventory.  

Manufacture, assembly and test of integrated circuits is a complex process. Normal risks include errors and interruptions in the 
production process, defects and shortages in raw materials and disruptions at supplier locations, as well as other risks, all of which can 
have an unfavorable impact to production costs, gross margins and our ability to meet customer demand.  

Backlog  
Our sales are made pursuant to purchase orders that are booked up to six months in advance of delivery. Our standard terms and 

conditions of sale provide that these orders become non-cancelable thirty days prior to our original committed delivery date for 
standard products and ninety days prior to our original committed delivery date for semi-custom and custom products. Backlog is 
influenced by several factors, including market demand, pricing and customer order patterns in reaction to product lead times. We had 
backlog at December 30, 2005 of $132.8 million compared to $78.8 million at December 31, 2004.  

Seasonality  
The high-end consumer and computing markets generally experience relatively weak demand in the first fiscal quarter of each 

year and stronger demand in the third and fourth quarters. The industrial and communications markets, on the other hand, generally 
experience stronger demand in the first two quarters of the year, and slightly lower demand in the second half of the year.  

Competition  
The high performance analog market is extremely competitive. We compete in our target markets with many companies that 

have significantly greater financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing resources than us. We compete on the basis of technical 
performance, product features, customized design, price, availability, quality and sales and technical support. Our ability to compete 
successfully depends on elements both within and outside of our control, including successful and timely development of new 
products and manufacturing processes, product performance and quality, manufacturing yields, product availability, intellectual 
property protection obtained by us and our competitors, customer service, pricing, industry trends and general economic trends.  
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Trademarks and Patents  
We own rights to a number of trademarks and patents that are important to our business. Our trademarks do not expire as long as 

we continue to use them in our business. We have registered some of our trademarks with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and 
other foreign governmental trademark authorities. These registrations provide rights in addition to basic trademark rights. As long as 
we comply with renewal and other procedures specified by the applicable trademark laws, these additional rights will not expire. Our 
corporate policy is to protect proprietary products by obtaining patents for these products when practicable. We currently possess over 
1,000 U.S. and foreign patents and have approximately 440 US and foreign patents pending. The expiration dates of these patents 
range from 2006 to 2024.  

Employees  
Our worldwide workforce consisted of 1,336 employees (full- and part-time) as of December 30, 2005. None of our employees 

are subject to a collective bargaining agreement.  

Environmental Matters  
Our operations are subject to environmental laws in the countries in which we operate. The regulations govern, among other 

things, air and water emissions at our manufacturing facilities, the management and disposal of hazardous substances, and the 
investigation and remediation of environmental contamination. As with other companies in our business, the nature of our operations 
exposes us to the risk of environmental liabilities and claims. We believe, however, that our operations are substantially in 
compliance with applicable environmental requirements. Our costs to comply with environmental regulations were approximately 
$1.7 million, $1.4 million and $1.1 million in fiscal 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The Company sold its facility in Pennsylvania 
to Fairchild Semiconductor (Fairchild) in 2001. Fairchild subsequently alleged that trichloroethylene was discovered in the 
groundwater under that site, and has indicated that they will be seeking indemnification from Intersil. To the extent any contamination 
was caused prior to August 1999, Harris has indemnified Intersil against any associated environmental liabilities. This 
indemnification does not expire, nor does it have a maximum amount.  

The Harris facilities in Palm Bay, Florida, are listed on the National Priorities List (“NPL”) for groundwater clean up under the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liabilities Act (“Superfund”). Our adjacent facility is included in the 
listing since it was owned by Harris at the time of the listing. Remediation activities associated with the NPL site have ceased. 
However, Harris has continuing obligations to conduct groundwater monitoring on our property. Harris has agreed to indemnify us 
against any environmental liabilities associated with this contamination that existed when we purchased it. The indemnification from 
Harris has no expiration date nor is it subject to a dollar limitation.  

Our former facility in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, which we sold in June 2000, has known groundwater contamination from past 
operations. The contamination was discovered in May 2000, during the closure activities associated with a former waste storage pad. 
This contamination has been attributed to activities conducted prior to our acquisition of the facility from Harris. Harris is conducting 
additional investigations and some remediation may be required. Harris has agreed to indemnify us against any environmental 
liabilities associated with this contamination, and we have agreed to indemnify the purchaser against those liabilities. Neither Harris’ 
indemnification nor ours have an expiration date, nor are they subject to dollar limitation.  

Based on the historical costs of these projects, previous experience with other remediation activities and our indemnification 
from Harris, we do not believe that the future cleanup costs to these facilities will be material to us.  

Future laws or regulations and changes in the existing environmental laws or regulations may subject our operations to different, 
additional or more stringent standards. While historically the cost of compliance with environmental laws has not had a material 
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, we cannot predict with certainty our future costs of 
compliance because of changing standards and requirements. We cannot be certain that materials costs will not be incurred in 
connection with the future compliance with environmental laws or with future cleanup costs related to currently unknown 
contamination.  
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS  
You should carefully consider and evaluate all of the information in this Form 10-K, including the risk factors listed below. The 

risks described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks not now known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may 
also impair our business operations. If any of these risks occur, our business could be materially harmed. If our business is harmed, 
the trading price of our Class A common stock could decline.  

As discussed in “Forward Looking Statements” in Item 1 contained in this report, this Form 10-K contains forward-looking 
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forward 
looking statements, including as a result of the risks described in the cautionary statements in this “Risk Factors” section and 
elsewhere in this Form 10-K, in our other filings with the SEC, and in material incorporated by reference. We undertake no duty to 
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.  

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO GENERAL BUSINESS CONDITIONS  
Our quarterly revenues and operating results are unpredictable and are likely to fluctuate.  

Our revenues and operating results may fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter due to a number of factors, not all of 
which are in our control. We manage our expense levels based in part on our expectations of future revenues. If revenue levels in a 
particular quarter do not meet our expectations, our operating results may be adversely affected. Because our operating expenses are 
based in part on anticipated future revenues, and a certain amount of those expenses are relatively fixed, a change in the timing of 
recognition of revenue and/or the level of gross profit can unfavorably affect operating results in a particular quarter. Factors that may 
cause our financial results to fluctuate unpredictably include, but are not limited to:  
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•  industry and global economic and market conditions, including the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry and the 

markets addressed by our and our customers’ products; 

 •  demand for, and market acceptance of, new and existing products; 

 •  successful development of new products; 

 •  timing of new product introductions; new product performance and quality; 

 •  successful integration of acquisitions; 

 
•  manufacturing difficulties, including without limitation the availability and extent of utilization of manufacturing capacity 

and raw materials; procurement shortages; 

 •  failure of our suppliers or outsource providers to perform their obligations in a manner consistent with our expectations; 

 
•  need for additional capital; pricing pressures and other competitive factors, including without limitation competitor’s new 

products; 

 •  competitors with significantly greater financial, technical, manufacturing and marketing resources; 

 •  changes in product mix; fluctuations in manufacturing yields; 

 •  product obsolescence; 

 •  the ability to develop and implement new technologies and to obtain protection of the related intellectual property; 

 
•  legal challenges to our products and technology, including by intellectual property infringement and misappropriation 

claims; 

 •  customer service; 



  

  

  

  

  

Downturns in the business cycle could reduce our revenues and profitability.  
The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical, and this cyclicality could create significant variation in our operating results. Our 

markets may experience downturns in the future. We may also experience significant changes in our operating income margins as a 
result of variations in sales, changes in product mix, price competition for orders and costs associated with the need for continual and 
rapid introduction of new products.  

The markets for our products depend on continued demand for consumer electronics products as well as products in 
communications, industrial and computing markets. Prolonged downturns in our end-user markets will likely lead to proportionately 
greater downturns in our net income or we may incur net losses.  

Business interruptions could harm our business.  
Our worldwide operations could be subject to natural disasters and other business disruptions, which could harm our future 

revenue and financial condition and increase our costs and expenses. For example, two of our wafer fabrication facilities are located 
on the east coast of Florida. Operations at these facilities have, at times, been interrupted by hurricanes and may be interrupted by 
hurricanes in the future. Further, our corporate headquarters are located near major earthquake fault lines in California and we have 
been unable to obtain earthquake insurance of reasonable costs and limits. In the event of a major hurricane, earthquake, or other 
natural or manmade disaster, we could experience loss of life of our employees, destruction of facilities or other business 
interruptions, any of which could materially adversely affect us. In addition, the operations of our suppliers could be subject to natural 
disasters and other business disruptions, which could cause shortages and price increases in various essential materials. If the 
operations of our suppliers are affected by natural disasters or business disruptions, we may have to reduce our manufacturing 
operations. Such disruptions could, in the future, have a material adverse effect on us.  

We are also heavily reliant on third party freight firms for nearly all of our shipments from vendors, from our foundries to 
assembly and test sites, primarily in Asia, and for shipments to customers of our final product. This includes ground, sea and air 
freight. Any significant disruption of such freight business globally or in certain parts of the world, particularly where our operations 
are concentrated, would materially affect our ability to generate revenues. Business interruption insurance may not provide protection 
due to the deductible periods or be enough to compensate us for losses that may occur. Accordingly, any of these disruptions could 
significantly harm our business.  

Our business has been and is expected to continue to be characterized by average selling prices (“ASP’s”) that decline over 
relatively short time periods, which can negatively affect our results of operations unless we are able to sell more units, reduce 
our costs, introduce new products with higher ASP’s or some combination thereof.  

ASP’s for our products historically have declined over relatively short time periods. For example, in fiscal 2005 our ASP’s 
decreased by approximately fifteen percent compared with fiscal 2004. We are unable to predict  
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•  the extent that customers use our products and services in their business, including without limitation the timing of the 

subsequent entry of our customer’s products containing our components into production, the size and timing of orders from 
customers, the size and timing of orders from customers, and customer cancellations or shipment delays; 

 •  changes in import export regulations; 

 •  legislative, tax, accounting, or regulatory changes or changes in their interpretation; 

 
•  transportation, communication, demand, information technology or supply disruptions based on factors outside our control 

such as natural disasters, wars, and terrorist activities; 

 •  exchange rate fluctuations 

 •  the extent that customers use our products and services in their business; 



pricing conditions for any future periods. When our average selling prices decline, our net sales and net income decline unless we are 
able to compensate by selling more units, reduce our costs or introduce new, higher margin products that incorporate advanced 
features.  

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO PRODUCTION OPERATIONS  
Production time and the cost of our products could increase if we were to lose one of our limited number of suppliers or if one 
of those suppliers increased the prices of raw materials.  
Our operating results could be adversely affected if we were unable to obtain adequate supplies of raw materials in a timely manner or 
if the costs of raw materials increased significantly. Our manufacturing operations depend upon obtaining adequate supplies of raw 
materials on a timely basis. We purchase raw materials, such as silicon wafers, from a limited number of suppliers on a just-in-time 
basis. From time to time, suppliers may extend lead times, limit supplies or increase prices due to capacity constraints or other factors. 

Because we depend on third party foundries and other manufacturing subcontractors to manufacture, assemble and test some 
of our products, we may experience delays beyond our control in delivering those products to our customers.  

We use both internal wafer fabrication facilities and outside wafer fabrication foundries in manufacturing our products. We 
intend to continue to rely on third party foundries and other specialist suppliers for most of our manufacturing requirements and most 
of our assembly and testing requirements. However, certain of these third party foundries are not obligated to supply products to us 
for any specific period, in any specific quantity or at any specific price. As a result, we cannot directly control semiconductor delivery 
schedules, which could lead to product shortages, quality assurance problems and increases in the cost of our products. We may 
experience delays in the future and we cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain semiconductors within the time frames and in the 
volumes required by us at an affordable cost or at all. Any disruption in the availability of semiconductors or any problems associated 
with the delivery, quality or cost of the fabrication, assembly and testing of our products could significantly hinder our ability to 
deliver our products to our customers and may result in a decrease in sales of our products. If the third party foundries we currently 
use are unable to provide our products, we may be required to seek new foundries, and we cannot be certain that their services will be 
available at favorable terms or that sufficient capacity will be available in a reasonable time period.  

In addition, the manufacture of our products is a highly complex and precise process, requiring production in a highly controlled 
environment. Changes in manufacturing processes or the inadvertent use of defective or contaminated materials by a third party 
foundry could adversely affect the foundry’s ability to achieve acceptable manufacturing yields and product reliability. If the third 
party foundries we currently use do not achieve adequate yields or product reliability, our customer relationships could suffer. This 
could ultimately lead to a loss of sales of our products and have a negative effect on our business, financial condition or results of 
operations.  

Delays in production at new facilities, in implementing new production techniques or in curing problems associated with 
technical equipment malfunctions may lower yields and reduce our revenues.  

Our manufacturing processes are highly complex, require advanced and costly equipment and are continuously being modified 
in an effort to improve yields and product performance. Impurities or other difficulties in the manufacturing process can lower yields. 
Our manufacturing efficiency is an important factor in our future profitability, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to 
maintain our manufacturing efficiency or increase manufacturing efficiency to the same extent as our competitors.  

In addition, as is common in the semiconductor industry, we have from time to time experienced difficulty in beginning 
production at new facilities or in effecting transitions to new manufacturing processes. Resultant delays have ranged in length from 
one month to six months. During the past five years Intersil has experienced one material delay (six months) of starting production at 
a new facility and no material delays in producing  
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product using new manufacturing processes. As a consequence, we suffered delays in product deliveries and reduced yields. We may 
experience manufacturing problems in achieving acceptable yields or experience product delivery delays in the future as a result of, 
among other things, capacity constraints, construction delays, upgrading or expanding existing facilities or changing our process 
technologies, any of which could result in a loss of future revenues. Increases in fixed costs and operating expenses related to 
increases in production capacity may adversely affect our operating results if revenues do not increase proportionately.  

We rely on a limited number of packaging subcontractors that may not have adequate capacity to meet our product delivery 
requirements.  

We rely on a limited number of packaging subcontractors with whom we do not have long-term contracts. The wafers of 
integrated circuits we fabricate or purchase from our outside foundries are sent to our packaging subcontractors for packaging and 
assembly. Our reliance on these subcontractors involves significant risks to us, including the possibility that the subcontractors will 
lack adequate capacity to deliver our products at the times and in the quantities that we request, the subcontractors will eliminate 
process technologies necessary for our products and the quality of our products will suffer from our lack of control over packaging 
and delivery. These independent subcontractors may discontinue doing business with us for a variety of reasons. As a result, we may 
experience product delivery and quality assurance problems, which in turn may harm our reputation and operating results.  

If our products contain defects or fail to achieve industry reliability standards, our reputation may be harmed, and we may 
incur significant unexpected expenses and lose sales opportunities.  

Our products have in the past contained, and may in the future contain, undetected errors or defects. Any similar problem in the 
future may:  
  

  

  

  

  

In addition, we may not find defects or failures in our products until after commencement of commercial shipments, which may 
result in loss or delay in market acceptance and could significantly harm our operating results. Our current or potential customers also 
might seek to recover from us any losses resulting from defects or failures in our products. Liability claims could require us to spend 
significant time and money in litigation or to pay significant damages. Any of these claims, whether or not successful, could seriously 
damage our reputation and business.  

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO R&D, ENGINEERING, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND NEW TECHNOLOGIES  
We may be unsuccessful in developing and selling new products required to maintain or expand our business.  

We operate in a dynamic environment characterized by price erosion, rapid technological change and design and other 
technological obsolescence. Our competitiveness and future success depend on our ability to achieve design wins for our products 
with current and future customers and introduce new or improved products that meet customer needs while achieving favorable 
margins. A failure to achieve design wins, to introduce these new products in a timely manner or to achieve market acceptance for 
these products, could harm our business.  
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 •  cause delays in product introductions and shipments; 

 •  result in increased costs and diversion of development resources; 

 •  cause us to incur increased charges due to obsolete or unusable inventory; 

 •  require design modifications; or 

 •  decrease market acceptance or customer satisfaction with these products, which could result in product returns. 



The introduction of new products presents significant business challenges because product development commitments and 
expenditures must be made well in advance of product sales. The success of a new product depends on accurate forecasts of long-term 
market demand and future technological developments, as well as on a variety of specific implementation factors, including:  
  

  

  

  

  

The failure of our products to achieve market acceptance due to these or other factors could harm our business.  

We use a significant amount of intellectual property in our business. If we are unable to protect this intellectual property, we 
could lose our right to prevent others from using our key technologies, resulting in decreased revenues.  

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to develop or obtain and subsequently maintain 
proprietary technology used in our principal products. We rely on intellectual property rights, including, but not limited to, rights 
existing under patent, trade secret, trademark, maskwork and copyright law, to protect this technology. Some of our technology is not 
covered by any patent or patent application, and there are risks that:  
  

  

Further, others may develop technologies that are similar or superior to our technology, duplicate our technology or design 
around our patents. In addition, effective patent, trademark, copyright, maskwork and trade secret protection may be unavailable, 
limited or not applied for in certain foreign countries.  

We also seek to protect our proprietary technology, including technology that may not be patented or patentable, in part by 
confidentiality agreements and, if applicable, inventors’ rights agreements with our collaborators, advisors, employees and 
consultants. We cannot assure you that these agreements will always be undertaken or will not be breached or that we will have 
adequate remedies for any breach.  

Some of our current licenses to use others’ technology and intellectual property are scheduled to expire periodically over the 
next several years, unless extended. We will need to negotiate renewals of these agreements or obtain the technology and intellectual 
property from alternative sources. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain alternative technology and intellectual 
property, or renewals on substantially similar terms as those that currently exist or at all.  

The failure to protect the our intellectual property, to extend its existing license agreements, or utilize alternative technology 
could adversely affect our revenues.  
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 •  timely and efficient completion of process design and development; 

 •  timely and efficient implementation of manufacturing and assembly processes; 

 •  product performance; 

 •  the quality and reliability of the product; and 

 •  effective marketing, sales and service. 

 •  some of the more than 1,000 patents that we own may be invalidated, circumvented, challenged or licensed to others; 

 
•  the patents that we own may not provide competitive advantages to us; or some of our pending or future patent applications 

may not be issued with the initially sought scope of the claims sought by it, if issued at all. 



Products that we manufacture and sell, or products formerly produced and sold by us and now manufactured and sold by 
purchasers of business that we have divested, may infringe other parties’ intellectual property rights—we may have to pay 
others for infringement and misappropriation of their intellectual property rights, suspend the manufacture use or sale of 
some affected products, or incur the cost of defending in a litigation, resulting in significant expense to us.  

The semiconductor industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights. We have received 
and may receive in the future notices of claims of infringement and misappropriation of other parties’ proprietary rights. In the event 
of an adverse decision in a patent, trademark, copyright, maskwork or trade secret action, we could be required to withdraw the 
product or products found to be infringing from the market or redesign products offered for sale or under development. We have, at 
times, assumed indemnification obligations in favor of our customers that could be triggered upon an allegation or finding of our 
infringement of other parties’ proprietary rights. We have also, at times, assumed indemnification obligations in favor of the 
purchasers of businesses that we have divested that could be triggered upon an allegation or finding of infringement of other parties’ 
proprietary rights by those purchasers. These indemnification obligations would be triggered for reasons including the sale or supply 
of a product that was later discovered to infringe another party’s proprietary rights. Whether or not these infringement claims are 
successfully asserted, we would likely incur significant costs and diversion of our resources with respect to the defense of these 
claims. To address any potential claims or actions asserted against us or those we have indemnified, we may seek to obtain a license 
under a third party’s intellectual property rights. However, in such an instance, a license may not be available on commercially 
reasonable terms, if at all. Litigation could result in significant expense to us, adversely affecting sales of the challenged product or 
technology and diverting the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not the litigation is determined in our 
favor. In the event of an adverse outcome in any litigation, we may be required to:  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS  
Our future success depends on international sales and the management of global operations.  

Non-U.S. sales accounted for approximately 78% of our revenue in fiscal 2005. We expect that international sales will continue 
to account for a significant majority of our total revenue in future years. We are subject to various challenges related to the 
management of global operations, and international sales are subject to risks including, but not limited to:  
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 •  pay substantial damages, e.g. enhanced damages for willful infringement, and incur significant attorneys’ fees; 

 
•  indemnify customers for damages they might suffer if the products they purchase from us infringe intellectual property 

rights of others; 

 
•  indemnify purchasers of businesses that we have divested for damages they might suffer if certain of the products they sell 

infringe intellectual property rights of others; 

 •  stop our manufacture, use, sale or importation of infringing products; 

 •  expend significant resources to develop or acquire non-infringing technology; 

 •  discontinue the use of some processes; or 

 
•  obtain licenses to intellectual property rights covering products and technology that we may, or have been found to, infringe 

or misappropriate such intellectual property rights. 

 •  trade balance issues; 

 •  economic and political conditions; 

 •  changes in currency controls; 

 •  differences in our ability to acquire and enforcement of intellectual property and contract rights in varying jurisdictions; 



  

  

  

  

  

Many of the challenges noted above are applicable in China, which is a large and fast growing market for semiconductors and 
therefore an area of additional and continued growth for our business. As the business volume between China and the rest of the 
world grows, there is inherent risk, based on the complex relationships between China, Taiwan, Japan, and the United States, that 
political and diplomatic influences might lead to trade disruptions which would adversely affect our business with China and/or 
Taiwan and perhaps the entire Asia region. A significant trade disruption in these areas could have a material, adverse impact on our 
future revenue and profits.  

Fluctuations in the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar and foreign currencies could increase operating expenses and negatively 
affect our financial performance and results of operations.  

While we and our subsidiaries transact business primarily in U.S. dollars, and most of our revenues are denominated in U.S. 
dollars, a portion of the costs and revenues is denominated in other currencies, such as the Euro and the Japanese Yen. As a result, 
changes in the exchange rates of these currencies or any other applicable currencies to the U.S. dollar will affect the costs of goods 
sold and operating margins and could result in exchange losses. The impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on results of 
operations cannot be accurately predicted. From time to time, we have engaged in, and may continue to engage in, exchange rate 
hedging activities in an effort to mitigate the impact of exchange rate fluctuations. However, any hedging technique that we may 
implement may not be effective or may result in foreign exchange hedging losses.  

The outbreak of severe acute respiratory syndrome (SARS), avian flu or other health related issues, could impact our 
customer or supply base, especially in Asia.  

A large percentage of our sales are to customers located in Asia, particularly in China. SARS, avian flu or other health related 
issues could have a negative impact on consumer demand, on travel needed to secure new business or manage our operations, on 
transportation of our products from our suppliers or to our customers, or on workers needed to perform assembly, test and packaging 
of our products. These and similar matters could adversely affect our results of operations.  

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO SALES, MARKETING AND COMPETITION  
Our business is very competitive, and increased competition could reduce gross margins and the value of an investment in our 
company.  

The semiconductor industry, and the semiconductor product markets specifically, are highly competitive. Competition is based 
on price, product performance, quality, reliability and customer service. The gross margins realizable in our markets can differ across 
regions, depending on the economic strength of end-product markets in those regions. Even in strong markets, price pressures may 
emerge as competitors attempt to gain more market share by lowering prices. Competition in the various markets in which we 
participate comes from companies of various sizes, many of which are larger and have greater financial and other resources than we 
have and thus can better withstand adverse economic or market conditions. Competitors include manufacturers and designers of  
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 •  our ability to develop relationships with local suppliers; 

 •  compliance with U.S. laws and regulations, including U.S. export restrictions; 

 
•  compliance with international laws and regulations, including the European Union’s Restriction of Hazardous Substances 

(“RoHS”), which bans lead and certain other substances from products put on the market; 

 •  fluctuations in interest and currency exchange rates; 

 •  the need for technical support resources in different locations; and 

 •  our ability to secure and retain qualified people for the operation of our business. 



standard semiconductors, application-specific integrated circuits, and fully customized integrated circuits, as well as customers who 
develop their own integrated circuit products. In addition, companies not currently in direct competition with us may introduce 
competing products in the future.  

We depend upon the continued demand for our products in the high-end consumer, communications, industrial and 
computing markets for a significant portion of our net revenues.  

We realize a significant portion of our net revenues from products sold in the high-end consumer, communications, industrial, 
and computing markets. Therefore, our success depends in part on the continued acceptance of our products within these markets and 
our ability to continue to develop and introduce new products on a timely basis for these markets. These markets may experience 
changes in demand that will adversely affect our business and operating results.  

Difficulties in estimating the amount and timing of sales to our customers could harm our operating results.  
It is difficult for us to forecast accurately the timing and amount of sales to our customers, which include distributors and 

original equipment manufacturers. Customers generally take a long time to evaluate products and technologies before committing to 
design our products into their systems. Moreover, our business is characterized by short-term orders and shipment schedules, and 
customer orders typically can be canceled or rescheduled on short notice to us and without significant penalty to our customers. We 
do not have substantial non-cancelable backlog and often we are forced to obtain inventory and materials from our manufacturing 
subcontractors in advance of anticipated customer demand. Because we incur expenses, many of which are fixed, based in part on our 
forecasts of future product sales, our operating results could be harmed if sales levels are below our expectations.  

We compete against larger, more established entities and our market share may be reduced if we are unable to respond to our 
competitors effectively.  

The semiconductor industry is intensely competitive and is characterized by price erosion, rapid technological change, and 
design and other technological obsolescence. We compete with domestic and international semiconductor companies, some of which 
have substantially greater financial and other resources with which to pursue engineering, manufacturing, marketing and distribution 
of their products. We expect continued competition from existing competitors as well as competition from new entrants in the 
semiconductor market, especially Asian-based producers. Our ability to compete successfully in the rapidly evolving area of 
integrated circuit technology depends on several factors, including:  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

To the extent that our products achieve market success, competitors typically seek to offer competitive products or lower prices, 
which, if successful, could harm our business.  
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 •  success in designing and manufacturing new products that implement new technologies; 

 •  protection of our proprietary products, processes, trade secrets and know-how; 

 •  maintaining high product quality and reliability; 

 •  pricing policies of our competitors; 

 •  performance of competitors’ products; 

 •  ability to deliver in large volume on a timely basis; 

 •  marketing, manufacturing and distribution capability; and 

 •  financial strength. 



Most of our distributors and resellers, who represent over 40% of net sales, can terminate their contract with us with little or 
no notice. The termination of a distributor could negatively impact our business, including net sales and accounts receivable.  

In fiscal 2005, our distributors and value-added resellers accounted for approximately 43% of our net sales. We generally do not 
have non-cancelable, long-term contracts with these parties and most can terminate their agreement with us with little or no notice. 
For fiscal 2005, our largest distributor was based in Asia. The termination of a significant distributor or reseller could impact our net 
sales and limit our access to certain end-customers. It could also result in the return of excess inventory of our product they hold as 
the distributor. Since many distributors simply resell our products, they generally operate on low profit margins. If a distributor or 
reseller were to terminate their agreement with us or go out of business, our unsecured accounts receivable from them are subject to 
collection risk.  

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS, GOVERNMENTAL REGULATIONS, 
INCLUDING TAXES, AND FINANCIAL REPORTING RULES AND REGULATIONS  
Environmental liabilities and other governmental regulatory matters could force us to expend significant capital and incur 
substantial costs.  

We are subject to various environmental laws relating to the management, disposal and remediation of hazardous materials and 
the discharge of pollutants into the environment. We are also subject to laws relating to workplace safety and worker health which, 
among other things, regulate employee exposure to hazardous substances. Harris Corporation has agreed to indemnify us for 
substantially all environmental liabilities related to events or activities occurring before our acquisition of their semiconductor 
business. This indemnification does not expire, nor is it subject to a dollar limitation.  

The nature of our ongoing operations exposes us to the risk of liabilities with respect to environmental matters, including those 
relating to the on- and off-site disposal and release of hazardous materials, and there can be no assurance that material costs will not 
be incurred in connection with such liabilities.  

Based on our experience, we believe that the future cost of compliance with existing environmental and health and safety laws 
(and liability for known environmental conditions) even without the indemnity from Harris will not have a material adverse effect on 
our business, financial condition or results of operations. However, we cannot predict:  
  

  

  

  

Our financial results may be adversely impacted by higher than expected tax rates or exposure to additional income tax 
liabilities.  

As a global company, our effective tax rate is highly dependent upon the geographic composition of worldwide earnings and tax 
regulations governing each region. We are subject to income taxes in both the United States and various foreign jurisdictions, and 
significant judgment is required to determine worldwide tax liabilities. Our effective tax rate could be adversely affected by changes 
in the split of earnings between countries with differing statutory tax rates, in the valuation of deferred tax assets, in tax laws or by 
material audit assessments, which could affect our profitability. In particular, the carrying value of deferred tax assets, which are 
predominantly in the United States, is dependent on our ability to generate future taxable income in the  
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 •  what environmental or health and safety legislation or regulations will be enacted in the future; 

 •  how existing or future laws or regulations will be enforced, administered or interpreted; 

 
•  the amount of future expenditures which may be required to comply with these environmental or health and safety laws or to 

respond to future cleanup matters or other environmental claims; or 

 •  the extent of our obligations to the purchasers of our environmentally challenged sites. 



United States. In addition, the amount of income taxes we pay is subject to ongoing audits in various jurisdictions, and a material 
assessment by a governing tax authority could affect our profitability.  

Accounting pronouncements are moving toward “fair value” methodology accounting, leading to more volatility in reported 
earnings which might cause a decline in our stock price.  

In recent years, new accounting pronouncements and guidance have been promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board that require companies to regularly attempt to determine or estimate the fair value of both certain assets and certain liabilities 
and adjust those amounts to reflect the revised estimates. With regard particularly to indefinite life intangible assets (“goodwill”), 
certain other “long-lived assets” such as property, plant and equipment, and stock-based compensation, these standards increase the 
likelihood that we will encounter a situation requiring a significant adverse adjustment to our statement of operations and earnings per 
share measures. Such an adverse and significant adjustment to our operating results might cause our investors and the analysts who 
follow our industry to change their opinion of our prospects and might cause a decline in our stock price.  

Changes in accounting standards for stock-based compensation may adversely affect our operating results, our stock price, 
and our competitiveness in the employee marketplace.  

The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) requires us to expense all stock-based compensation provided to employees beginning with 
our quarter ending March 31, 2006. The environment for skilled employees that are knowledgeable about our required skill sets is a 
competitive one, and we believe that stock-based compensation is an important part of the overall compensation that we offer to 
attract and retain such employees. SFAS No. 123(R) will decrease our earnings as reported on a generally accepted accounting 
principles basis by the amount of stock-based compensation. There is some risk that the design of our compensation plans is 
ineffective at balancing our profitability and employee retention objectives. Further, as this decrease in earnings becomes evident, our 
stock price may decline or may not rise to the same extent it otherwise might have due to the reduced apparent profitability.  

We are subject to the internal control evaluation and attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley act of 
2002.  

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we are required to include in our annual report our assessment of 
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and our audited financial statements as of the end of each fiscal year. 
Furthermore, our independent registered public accounting firm (Firm) is required to attest to whether our assessment of the 
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting is fairly stated in all material respects and separately report on whether it 
believes we maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of the end of each fiscal year. We 
have successfully completed our assessment and obtained our Firm’s attestation as to the effectiveness of our internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 30, 2005. In future years, if we fail to timely complete this assessment, or if our Firm cannot 
timely attest to our assessment, we could be subject to regulatory sanctions and a loss of investor confidence in our internal control. In 
addition, any failure to implement required new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation or the 
operation of existing controls, could cause us to fail to timely meet our regulatory reporting obligations and cause our stock price to 
be adversely affected due to the loss of investor confidence in us.  

Our independent registered public accounting firm must confirm its independence in order for us to meet our regulatory 
reporting obligations on a timely basis.  

Our independent registered public accounting firm communicates with us at least annually regarding any relationships between 
the Firm and Intersil that, in the Firm’s professional judgment, might have a bearing on the Firm’s independence with respect to us. If, 
for whatever reason, our independent registered public accounting  
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firm finds that it cannot confirm that it is independent of us based on existing securities laws and registered public accounting firm 
independence standards, we could experience delays or other failures to meet our regulatory reporting obligations.  

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS STRATEGIES, PERSONNEL AND OTHER OPERATIONS  
If we fail to attract and retain qualified personnel, our business may be harmed.  

Our future success depends largely upon the continued service of our key management and technical personnel, and on our 
continued ability to hire, integrate and retain qualified management and technical personnel, particularly engineers. Competition for 
these employees in the analog semiconductor industry is intense, and we may not be successful in attracting or retaining these 
personnel. In addition, it is difficult to obtain work visas for foreign professionals trained in the United States. The loss of any key 
employee, the failure of any key employee to perform in his or her current position or our inability to attract and retain skilled 
employees as needed could impair our ability to meet customer and technological demands. The loss of the services of any executive 
officer or other key technical or management personnel could harm our business. To help retain the continued services of some of our 
key executives, we have entered into employment agreements with some of them. We do not have key person life insurance on any of 
our key personnel.  

If we choose to acquire or dispose of product lines and technologies, we may encounter unforeseen costs and difficulties that 
could impair our financial performance.  

An important element of our management strategy is to review acquisition prospects that would complement our existing 
products, augment our market coverage and distribution ability, or enhance our technological capabilities. As a result, we may make 
acquisitions of companies, products or technologies, or we may reduce or dispose of certain product lines or technologies, which no 
longer fit our long-term strategies. Managing an acquired business or disposing of product technologies entails numerous operational 
and financial risks, including difficulties in assimilating new personnel, coordinating new product and process development, 
conforming the acquired company’s standards, processes, procedures and controls with our operations, separating or reorganizing 
existing business or product groups, in addition to diversion of management’s attention away from other business concerns, 
amortization of acquired definite-lived intangible assets, immediate expensing of certain acquired R&D project values, goodwill 
impairment charges and potential loss of key employees or customers of acquired or disposed operations, among others. Further, 
acquisitions may require the potentially dilutive issuances of equity securities, the incurrence of debt and the assumption of 
contingent liabilities. There can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve and manage successfully any such integration of 
potential acquisitions, disposition of product lines or technologies, or reduction in personnel or that our management, personnel, or 
systems will be adequate to support continued operations. Any such inabilities, inadequacies, debt incurrence, common stock issuance 
or assumption of liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial condition, cash flows and 
the price of our Class A common stock.  

We rely upon certain critical information systems for the operation of our business.  
We maintain and rely upon certain critical information systems for the effective operation of our business. These information 

systems include telecommunications, the Internet, our corporate intranet, various computer hardware and software applications, 
network communications, and e-mail. These information systems may be owned by us or by our outsource providers or even third 
parties such as vendors and contractors and may be maintained by us or by such providers or third parties. These information systems 
are subject to attacks, failures, and access denials from a number of potential sources including viruses, destructive or inadequate 
code, power failures, and physical damage to computers, hard drives, communication lines, and networking equipment. To the extent 
that these information systems are under our control, we have implemented security procedures, such as virus protection software and 
emergency recovery processes, to address the outlined risks; however, security procedures for information systems cannot be 
guaranteed to be failsafe and our inability to use or access these information systems at critical points in time could unfavorably 
impact the timely and efficient operation of our business.  
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The potential anti-takeover effects of our certificate of incorporation may inhibit a change of control desired by some of our 
stockholders.  

In August 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (“Rights Plan”). Under the Rights Plan, 
rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of common stock of the Company. Until the occurrence of 
certain events, the rights are represented by and traded in tandem with the common stock. Each right will separate and entitle the 
shareholders to buy stock upon an occurrence of certain takeover or stock accumulation events. The existence of these rights, also 
known as a “poison pill” takeover defense, could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of Intersil. Such factors 
might deter certain acquirers from making takeover proposals or tender offers, even if such takeover proposals or control changes 
could improve our short-term stock price.  

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS  
None.  

Item 2. Properties  
In the United States, we lease our corporate headquarters in Milpitas, California. Additional manufacturing, warehouse and 

office facilities are housed in approximately 846,000 square feet of owned facilities in Palm Bay, Florida.  

We conduct engineering activity and maintain regional sales offices in various locations throughout the world including the 
United States, Asia, and Europe. Except for our Florida facilities, all of our offices are leased under generally short-term leases.  

We are consolidating and modernizing our Florida manufacturing and design facilities and we are currently seeking to sell 
approximately 300,000 square feet of manufacturing and office space. While the modernization and consolidation project is largely 
complete, we are still offering the aforementioned manufacturing and office space to the market. We expect to conclude a sale during 
2006.  

We believe that our facilities after the Florida consolidation are suitable and adequate for our present purposes, and that the 
productive capacity in our facilities not being offered for sale is being substantially utilized.  

Item 3. Legal Proceedings  
(a) Legal Proceedings  

We and certain of our present officers and directors as well as our lead initial public offering underwriter and lead underwriter of 
our September 2000 initial public offering, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, were named as defendants in several law suits, the 
first of which is a class action filed on June 8, 2001 in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. The 
complaints allege violations of Rule 10b-5 based on, among other things, the dissemination of statements containing material 
misstatements and/or omissions concerning the commissions received by the underwriters of the initial public offering, as well as 
failure to disclose the existence of purported agreements by the underwriters with some of the purchasers in these offerings to 
thereafter buy additional shares of Intersil in the open market at pre-determined prices above the offering prices. These lawsuits 
against us, as well as those alleging similar claims against other issuers in initial public offerings, have been consolidated for pre-trial 
purposes with a multitude of other securities related suits. In April 2002, the plaintiffs filed a consolidated amended complaint against 
us and certain of our officers and directors. The consolidated amended complaint pleads claims under both the 1933 Securities Act 
and under the 1934 Securities Exchange Act. In addition to the allegations of wrongdoing described above, plaintiffs also now allege 
that analysts employed by underwriters who were acting as investment bankers for us improperly touted  
  

20 



the value of our shares during the relevant class period as part of the purported scheme to artificially inflate the value of our shares. In 
October 2002, the individual employee defendants were dismissed from the class action suit. The plaintiffs seek unspecified damages, 
litigation costs and expenses. A tentative settlement has recently been reached between the plaintiffs and all defendant stock issuers, 
with ongoing negotiations as to the specific terms of the settlement agreement. Under that agreement, we would not be required to 
pay any damages, expenses or litigation costs to the plaintiffs. When negotiations are completed and the parties have agreed upon the 
final terms of the settlement agreement, the agreement must be approved by the court before dismissal of us and other parties to the 
agreement from the suit. On February 15, 2005, the Judge preliminarily approved the issuer’s settlement agreement. Final approval is 
subject to certain revisions requested by the Judge, notice to the affected class members, and a final hearing.  

Symbol Technologies, Inc. v. Intersil Corporation and Choice-Intersil Microsystems, Inc., Index No. 03-18971 (Supreme Court, 
Suffolk County, New York, filed July 23, 2003). In this action, Symbol seeks recovery under various indemnity theories for costs and 
attorneys fees allegedly incurred by Symbol in defending two federal court actions in which patent infringement was asserted against 
Symbol. Symbol contends that the Company and its former subsidiary Choice-Intersil Microsystems owe an indemnity obligation 
because components of systems accused of being used in an infringing manner were supplied by the Company or by Choice-Intersil 
Microsystems. The Company’s summary judgment motion recently was denied and trial is set for June 2006. Symbol seeks 
approximately $2.6 million in damages, plus pre-judgment interest which would increase the total claim to more than $4 million. The 
Company believes that it has fully honored its obligations to Symbol and intends to contest the case vigorously.  

On April 14, 2004, Freeport Partners, LLC (“Freeport”), a purported shareholder of Xicor, filed an action in the California 
Superior Court in Santa Clara County against Intersil, Xicor, and Xicor’s directors in connection with our acquisition of Xicor. On 
June 4, 2004, we were dismissed with prejudice as a defendant, and on July 9, 2004, the Court sustained Xicor’s demurrer with leave 
to amend. The Freeport suit was then consolidated with a similar suit flied by another plaintiff, and was renamed “In re: Xicor. Inc. 
Shareholder Litigation.” On August 9, 2004, plaintiffs in the consolidated suit filed an amended complaint, which does not name 
Intersil as a party. On December 21, 2004, the Superior Court sustained Xicor’s demurrer without leave to amend, and on January 10, 
2005, the Superior Court entered judgment dismissing Xicor with prejudice. On March 10, 2005, the plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal 
of the judgment dismissing Xicor. Our President and Chief Operating Officer, Louis DiNardo, remains a defendant in this suit along 
with Xicor’s former directors. Although Intersil and Xicor are no longer parties to this lawsuit, pursuant to our acquisition agreement 
with Xicor, we assumed certain specified obligations to indemnify Xicor’s directors against claims, losses, damages, liabilities, costs 
and expenses (including reasonable legal expenses) in connection with such lawsuits. On February 14, 2006, the Judge granted 
preliminary approval of the stipulated settlement agreement. A final approval hearing will take place on June 20, 2006.  

Because the Company believes the defense of these matters to be probable, the Company has an accrual of $3.7 million as of 
December 30, 2005 for estimated costs to defend these positions, exclusive of settlement or judgment costs.  

(b) Legal Proceedings Terminated in the Fourth Quarter of our Fiscal Year 2005  
None.  

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  
No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005.  
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PART II  

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities  
(a) Market Information:  

Our Class A Common Stock has been traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market’s National Market since February 2000 under the 
symbol “ISIL.” Prior to that time, there was no public market for our common stock. During 2005, our Class B Common Stock, 
which had all been converted to Class A, was eliminated through a charter amendment. The following table sets forth, for the periods 
indicated, the high and low closing prices per share of our Class A Common Stock as reported in NASDAQ Stock Market trading.  
  

(b) Holders:  
On February 24, 2006 the last reported sale price for our Class A Common Stock was $28.48 per share. At the same date, there 

were about 395 record holders of our Class A Common Stock.  

(c) Dividends:  
In late fiscal year 2003 we initiated a dividend and paid $0.03 per share. In fiscal year 2004, we declared and paid dividends of 

$0.13 per share. In fiscal year 2005, we declared and paid dividends of $0.17 per share, including a fourth quarter dividend of $0.05 
per share, which is an indicated annual rate of $0.20 per share.  

Our dividend policy is impacted by, among other items, our views on potential future capital requirements relating to research 
and development, creation and expansion of sales distribution channels, investments and acquisitions, share dilution management, our 
stock repurchase program, legal risks, liquidity, and profitability. Any determination to declare and pay a dividend will be made by 
our Board of Directors in light of these and other factors the Board of Directors deems relevant.  

(d) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities:  
In both fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $100.0 and $150.0 million of our 

Class A common stock during the twelve months following the respective announcements. Both of these plans were fully utilized. On 
November 2, 2005, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $150.0 million of our Class A common stock during the 
twelve months following the authorization. Further, we retired the treasury stock we held at that time and plan to retire additional 
stock repurchased concurrent with the repurchase settlements. During fiscal year 2005, we repurchased 6,375,751 shares of our 
Class A common stock at an approximate cost of $127.7 million.  
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Fiscal Quarter:   High   Low

First quarter of 2004 (from January 3, 2004 to April 2, 2004)   $29.29  $20.76
Second quarter of 2004 (from April 3, 2004 to July 2, 2004)   $23.99  $18.14
Third quarter of 2004 (from July 3, 2004 to October 1, 2004)  $18.42  $15.37
Fourth quarter of 2004 (from October 2, 2004 to December 31, 2004)   $17.54  $15.20
First quarter of 2005 (from January 1, 2005 to April 1, 2005)   $17.50  $13.82
Second quarter of 2005 (from April 2, 2005 to July 1, 2005)   $20.11  $15.55
Third quarter of 2005 (from July 2, 2005 to September 30, 2005)   $21.78  $18.99
Fourth quarter of 2005 (from October 1, 2005 to December 30, 2005)   $26.67  $20.09



The following table details repurchase activity in our fourth fiscal quarter under the Plan announced November 2, 2005 (“Plan 
A”):  
  

Footnotes Required  
  

  

We did not sell unregistered securities during fiscal year 2005.  

Item 6. Selected Financial Data  
The following table sets forth our selected financial data. The historical financial data for each of our fiscal years in the five year 

period ended December 30, 2005 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. All periods presented have been 
audited. This information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report 
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”  
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Period   
(a)

  
(b)

  
(c)

  
(d)

  
 Begin   End           

10/01/05   10/28/05  —     —    —   $ 150,000,000  Plan A
10/29/05   11/25/05   1,160,000  $ 25.18  1,160,000  $ 120,790,744  Plan A
11/26/05   12/30/05   322,488  $ 25.71  322,488  $ 112,500,010  Plan A

                  

Total     1,482,488  $ 25.30  1,482,488  $ 112,500,010  
                  

(a) Total Number of Shares Purchased 
(b) Average Price Paid per Share 
(c) Total Number of Shares Purchased as Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs 
(d) Maximum Number of Shares or Approximate Dollar Value that May Yet Be Purchased Under the Plans or Programs 

     Plan A

(1) The date each plan or program was announced   November 2, 2005
(2) The dollar amount approved   $150,000,000
(3) The expiration date of each plan or program   November 1, 2006
(4) Each plan or program that has expired during the period covered by the table   None
(5)

 

Each plan or program the issuer has determined to terminate prior to expiration, or under which the 
issuer does not intend to make further purchases   

 

None 

(e) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities: 

   

Fiscal 
Year 2001 

(a)(b)   

Fiscal 
Year 
2002 

(c)(d)(g)
(h)   

Fiscal Year
2003 

(e)(g)(h)   

Fiscal Year
2004 

(f)(g)(h)   

Fiscal Year
2005 
(g)(h)

   ($ in millions, except per share amounts)
Revenue   $ 398.5  $ 419.6  $ 507.7  $ 535.8  $ 600.3
Income (loss) from continuing operations  $ 96.0  $ (23.3) $ 58.5  $ 40.4  $ 86.8
Basic income (loss) per share from continuing operations   $ 0.91  $ (0.19) $ 0.42  $ 0.29  $ 0.61
Diluted income (loss) per share   $ 0.88  $ (0.19) $ 0.41  $ 0.28  $ 0.59
Total assets   $1,200.2  $2,369.5  $ 2,448.9  $ 2,587.6  $ 2,583.7
Long-term debt, including current portion   —    —     —     —     —  
Dividend per common share   —    —    $ 0.03  $ 0.13  $ 0.17



The following transactions significantly affect the comparability of the results between the fiscal periods above:  
a) In fiscal 2001, we sold the assets of our Discrete Power product group. The results of operations of this product group 

were excluded after the date of sale.  
b) In fiscal 2001, we recorded losses related to the early extinguishment of some of our then outstanding debt.  
c) Fiscal 2002 contains 53 weeks. All other periods identified as “fiscal years” include 52 weeks.  
d) In May 2002, we acquired Elantec. Accordingly, Elantec’s results of operations since the acquisition date are included 

within the results above.  
e) In August 2003, we sold the assets of our Wireless Networking product group. The results of operations of the product 

were excluded after the date of sale. Please refer to Note 19.1 within the Consolidated Financial Statements for further 
discussion.  

f) In July 2004, we acquired Xicor by issuing Intersil Class A common stock and cash to purchase 100% of the outstanding 
common stock of the Milpitas, California-based company. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of 
accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations of Xicor have been included in the accompanying Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date. Please refer to Note 8 within the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further discussion.  

g) During fiscal 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, we recorded various impairment charges or credits. Please refer to Note 10 
within the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.  

h) During fiscal 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, we recorded various restructuring charges. Please refer to Note 9 within the 
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.  

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our consolidated 

financial statements, including the notes thereto. This discussion generally refers to elements within our consolidated financial 
statements on a pre-tax basis unless otherwise stated. Except for historical information, the discussions in this section contain 
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results could differ materially from those discussed below. For 
further information regarding risks and uncertainties, see Item 1A. in this Annual Report on Form 10-K entitled “Risk Factors.”  

Overview  
We focus our design, manufacturing and marketing efforts on the High-Performance Analog (“HPA”) segment of the 

semiconductor market. Digital and analog semiconductor components are the basic ingredient in today’s electronic devices. In 
contrast to the binary nature of digital components, analog components monitor, evaluate and modify electrical signals and strengths 
allowing them to deal with basic and essential properties such as heat, touch, light and sound. The HPA segment is distinguished by 
its highly differentiated and technologically advanced products which can be building blocks for more complex circuits or highly 
integrated for specific applications. Historically, the HPA segment has yielded higher gross margins and suffers less competition than 
the digital and broader analog segments of the semiconductor market. The HPA segment requires uniquely talented and experienced 
designers, engineers and specialized selling and marketing efforts to address the myriad of challenges associated with today’s 
complex applications.  

We began our transformation into an HPA company with the acquisition of Elantec in 2002, the divestiture of our wireless 
networking business in 2003 and further strengthened with the 2004 acquisition of Xicor. Our first full year as a pure HPA company 
was fiscal 2005. We achieved quarter-over-quarter revenue and earnings per share growth in each of the quarters of 2005. Our 
revenue growth has been very broad-based across many products. Our investments to expand our product portfolio to over 40 product 
families appear to be enabling us to  
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reduce the seasonal effect on our quarterly revenue. We have introduced hundreds of new products in each of the last few years 
including several new product families that have significantly expanded our served available market.  

Statement of Operations  
($ millions and % of revenue*)  
NM = not meaningful  
  

* Totals and percentages may not add or calculate precisely due to rounding  
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Percentage Change 
From Previous Year  

 2005   2004   2003       2005          2004     

Revenue  $600.3  100.0%  $535.8  100.0%  $507.7  100.0%  12.0%  5.5%
Costs, expenses and other income         

Cost of product sales (a)   265.6  44.2%  237.2  44.3%  221.1  43.5%  12.0% 7.3%
   

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

Gross profit   334.7  55.8%  298.6  55.7%   286.6  56.5%  12.1%  4.2%
Research and development (b)   110.8  18.5%  107.4  20.1%   91.3  18.0%  3.2%  17.7%
Selling, general and administrative (b)   99.7  16.6%  90.8  16.9%   88.2  17.4%  10.0%  2.7%
Amortization of intangibles   9.6  1.6%  7.4  1.4%   6.3  1.2%  29.7%  17.4%
Amortization of unearned compensation   14.1  2.4%  10.8  2.0%  10.9  2.1%  30.2% (.6)%
In-process research and development   —    .0%   31.2  5.8%   —    .0%  NM  NM 
Impairment (gain) of long-lived assets   (0.6) (.1)% 26.2  4.9%   12.6  2.5%  NM  108.5%
Restructurings   2.8  .5%  6.1  1.1%   4.9  1.0%  (53.4)% 24.9%
(Gain) on sale of certain operations   —    .0%  (0.9) (.2)%  (1.4) (.3)% NM  36.9%
Other losses (gains)   (2.0) (.3)% 3.4  .6%   —    .0%  NM  —  

                           

Operating income   100.1  16.7%  16.2  3.0%   73.8  14.5%  518.5%  (78.1)%
Interest income, net   19.0  3.2%  13.2  2.5%   9.0  1.8%  43.4%  47.7%
Gain (loss) on investments   —    .0%  3.8  .7%   (3.4) (.7)% NM  NM

                           

Income from continuing operations 
before income taxes   119.1  19.9%  33.2  6.2%   79.4  15.6%  258.6%  (58.1)%

Income taxes (benefit)   32.3  5.4%  (7.1) (1.3)%  20.9  4.1%  NM  NM
   

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

Income from continuing operations   86.8  14.5%  40.4  7.5%  58.5  11.5%  115.2% (31.0)%
Discontinued operations         

Income (loss) from discontinued 
operations   (1.1) (.2)% 1.1  .2%   20.0  3.9%  NM  (94.5)%

Income taxes (benefit) from discontinued 
operations   (0.1) (.0)% 0.8  .1%   32.6  6.4%  NM  (97.7)%

                           

Net income (loss) from discontinued 
operations   (0.9) (.2)% 0.3  .1%   (12.6) (2.5)% NM  NM

   
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

   
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

Net income  $ 85.9  14.3%  $ 40.7  7.6%  $ 45.8  9.0%  111.1%  (11.2)%
   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

(a) Cost of product sales includes the 
following:         

 Amortization of unearned 
compensation  $ 1.1  .2%  $ 0.7  .1% $ 1.1  .2%  52.6% (35.1)%

(b) Amortization of unearned 
compensation is excluded from the 
following:         

 Research and development  $ 7.4  1.2%  $ 4.9  .9%  $ 4.5  .9%  50.2%  8.7%
 Selling, general and administrative   6.7  1.1%  5.9  1.1%   6.3  1.3%  13.5%  (7.2)%

                           

 $ 14.1  2.4%  $ 10.8  2.0%  $ 10.9  2.1%  30.2%  (.6)%
   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

   

 

  

 

  

 

  

 



Geographical revenue: 
  

Revenue  
Our revenue for 2005 was $600.3 million, an increase of $64.5 million or 12.0% over 2004. This increase was primarily due to a 

43% increase in high-end consumer products, single-digit percentage growth in computing and industrial products, and a partially 
offsetting decline of 2% in our communications products. In aggregate, higher unit demand increased sales by approximately $146 
million, which was partially offset by a decline in average selling prices (ASPs), which decreased sales by approximately $82 million. 
Of this sales growth, approximately $74 million came from our sales to customers in Asian and Pacific Rim regions and $4 million 
from North America, which was partially offset by an approximately $14 million sales decline to customers in Europe.  

Our revenue for 2004 was $535.8 million, an increase of $28.1 million or 5.5% over 2003. This growth was primarily due to a 
38% increase in high-end consumer products and a 16% increase in communications products, which was partially offset by a decline 
of 18% in our computing products. In aggregate, higher unit demand increased sales by $52.4 million, this was offset by a decline in 
ASPs, which decreased sales by $24.0 million. Of this sales growth, approximately $17 million came from our sales to customers in 
Asian and Pacific Rim regions and was bolstered by sales growth in Europe of approximately $9 million.  

We anticipate that our revenue from Asian and Pacific Rim customers will continue to grow in both absolute and percentage 
terms as that region’s companies lead in manufacture of the finished applications (consumer electronics, computers, industrial 
equipment) that our products are used in. End market demand for those applications is more global and hence dependent on aggregate 
global economic metrics and conditions such as personal incomes and business activity.  

Cost of Product Sales  
Cost of product sales consists primarily of purchased materials and services, labor, overhead and depreciation associated with 

manufacturing pertaining to products sold.  

Our gross margin improved slightly during 2005 compared to a decrease in 2004. The 2004 decrease in gross margin was 
partially due to a decline in ASPs and also due to two hurricanes that impacted our operations in Palm Bay, Florida. These hurricane 
related costs consisted primarily of additional paid time off during the temporary closure of our Palm Bay facilities.  

Operating Expenses  
Research and Development (“R&D”)  

R&D expenses consist primarily of salaries and expenses of employees engaged in product/process research, design and 
development activities, as well as related subcontracting activities, prototype development, cost of design tools and technology 
license agreement expenses.  

Our R&D expenses increased by 3.2% to $110.8 million for 2005 compared to $107.4 million for 2004 and $91.3 million for 
2003. Our R&D spending increased by 17.7% in 2004 compared to 2003 due to additional  
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($ millions) 

  2005   2004   2003  

  Revenue  
% of 
Total  Revenue  

% of 
Total  Revenue  

% of
Total 

Asia/Pacific   $ 396  66% $ 322  60% $ 305  60%
North America    138  23%  134  25%  132  26%
Europe    66  11%  80  15%  71  14%

       
 

      
 

      
 

Total   $ 600  100% $ 536  100% $ 508  100%



R&D spending associated with our acquisition of Xicor in July 2004. The modest increase in R&D expenses during 2005 reflects the 
first full year of an integrated R&D function and the synergies gained by combining the Xicor R&D organization. We expect our 
future R&D expenses to grow at a higher rate than in 2005 as we continue to increase our new product introductions.  

Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”)  
SG&A expenses consist primarily of salaries and expenses of employees engaged in selling and marketing our products as well 

as the salaries and expenses required to perform our Human Resources, Finance, Information Systems, Legal, Executive and other 
administrative functions.  

Our SG&A expenses increased by 10.0% to $99.8 million for 2005 compared to $90.7 million for 2004 and $88.3 million for 
2003. The increase in 2005 compared to 2004 was driven primarily by increased selling and marketing expenses associated with 
higher sales. The increase in 2004 compared to 2003 was driven by increased selling expenses associated with higher sales and 
increased labor costs resulting from the acquisition of Xicor during 2004.  

Amortization of Intangible Assets  
Amortization of intangible assets increased by 29.7% to $9.6 million for 2005 compared to $7.4 million for 2004 and $6.3 

million for 2003. The increase in 2005 compared to 2004 resulted from a full year of amortization of developed technology acquired 
with our purchase of Xicor in July 2004 compared to only five months of amortization recognized during 2004. The increase in 2004 
compared to 2003 resulted from the acquisition of developed technology acquired with our purchase of Xicor in July 2004 as well as 
additional amortization of intangible assets acquired with our purchase of BitBlitz Communications, Inc. in 2004.  

Definite lived intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives ranging from 4 to 11 years.  

We review goodwill for impairment indicators quarterly and perform substantive impairment testing annually. During the fourth 
quarter of 2005, we determined that the value of our reporting units exceeded the goodwill value stated on our balance sheet and 
therefore, did not record any impairment to goodwill. However, our goodwill value is dependent on many factors including future 
market demand for our products, our stock market valuation, valuation of our expected cash flow, relative values of our reporting 
units and many other factors. We could have goodwill impairment in the future which would negatively impact our earnings.  

Amortization of Unearned Compensation  
Amortization of unearned compensation increased 30.2% to $14.1 million for 2005 compared to $10.8 million for 2004 and 

$10.9 million for 2003. The increase in 2005 compared to 2004 resulted in a full year of amortization compared to only six months of 
amortization in 2004. The decrease in 2004 compared to 2003 resulted from an increase from the purchase of Xicor offset by a 
decrease in amortization related to the purchase of Elantec Semiconductor in 2002.  

In-Process Research and Development (“IPR&D”)  
In connection with our acquisition of Xicor in July 2004, we allocated $31.2 million of the purchase price to IPR&D projects. 

This allocation represents the estimated fair value based on risk-adjusted cash flows related to the incomplete projects. At the date of 
the acquisition, the development of these projects had not yet reached technological feasibility and the IPR&D had no alternative 
future uses and did not otherwise qualify for capitalization. Accordingly, these costs were expensed as a charge to income in fiscal 
year 2004. See Footnote 8 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere herein relating to the Xicor acquisition 
consideration and allocation of purchase price, including that allocated to IPR&D.  

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets  
During 2004, we announced that we would move all internal volume of our 0.6-micron wafer processing to an outside 

provider’s manufacturing facility and our Florida manufacturing capacity will be used to manufacture  
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products using greater than 1 micron proprietary processes. In conjunction with this shift, we recorded an impairment of $26.6 million 
($16.5 million net of tax) during the quarter ended April 2, 2004 on certain production equipment that was used to produce the 0.6-
micron wafers at our Palm Bay facility. The impairment was calculated as the excess of the assets’ carrying value over their fair value 
as determined by the market prices of these types of assets. The majority of these assets have either been sold or are being held for 
sale. During 2005 and 2004, we reversed $0.6 and $0.8 million, respectively, of the impairment on this equipment as the actual selling 
price of certain assets exceeded the impaired value by at least that amount.  

Restructurings  
We have completed multiple restructuring plans during the 2003 to 2005 time span as we execute our long-term High 

Performance Analog business objectives. The cumulative effects of these restructurings have resulted in our estimate of 
approximately $34 million in reduced annual operating costs and we believe has streamlined our business operations and enabled 
measurable progress toward our business objectives.  

Severance related costs are expensed when incurred and substantially all of our severance agreements entitle terminated 
employees to benefits upon notification of termination. Restructurings that were to reflect our 2004 Xicor acquisition integration are 
described below:  

July 2004  
In July 2004, we announced a restructuring plan to streamline our manufacturing and support functions and recorded $6.1 

million in restructuring expense. Approximately 200 employees were notified that their employment would be terminated The 
affected positions included manufacturing, research and development, and selling, general and administrative employees. All of 
the employees were located in the United States. As of December 30, 2005, all of the affected positions had been terminated.  

We realized the following annual benefits as a result of this restructuring  
  

  

  

March 2005  
In March 2005, we announced a restructuring plan to further streamline operations and to reduce costs. The restructuring 

plan included the termination of employment of approximately 7% of our workforce and we recorded $2.8 million in 
restructuring expense. Approximately 100 employees were notified that their employment would be terminated. The affected 
positions included manufacturing, research and development, and selling, general and administrative employees. As of 
December 30, 2005, the affected positions had all been terminated.  

We realized the following annual benefits as a result of this restructuring  
  

  

  

Other Gains & Losses  
During 2005 we recovered $2.0 million for insured business interruption losses resulting from the hurricanes in 2004. During 

2004, our Florida facilities were damaged by hurricanes resulting in $2.7 million in reconstruction costs. The remaining $0.7 million 
contained in the “other losses” line resulted from the license agreement that the Company entered into with a third party wherein we 
licensed sales rights that had been disputed relating to our ability to sell components for certain cellular technology applications.  
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 •  A reduction in the cost of product sales of $8.1 million 

 •  A reduction in research and development expenses of $2.5 million 

 •  A reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses of $4.8 million. 

 •  A reduction in the cost of product sales of $5.2 million 

 •  A reduction in research and development expenses of $ 2.1 million 

 •  A reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses of $1.1 million. 



Gain on Sale of Certain Operations  
During 2003, we recorded an additional $1.4 million ($0.9 million net of tax) gain related to the sale of our Discrete Power 

product group. This gain was the result of a reduction of accrued exit costs due to favorable contract termination negotiations with 
software vendors. Similarly, in fiscal year 2004, we recorded an additional $0.9 million ($0.6 million net of tax) gain related to the 
sale of our Discrete Power product group. This gain was the result of a reduction of accrued exit costs due to favorable contract 
negotiations with landlords and other vendors.  

Interest Income, net  
Our interest income increased 43.4% to $19.0 million in 2005 compared to $13.2 million for 2004 and $9.0 million for 2003. 

Interest income increased in 2005 due almost solely to increased interest rates earned on our investments compared to 2004. Our 2004 
interest income increased 47.7% to $13.2 million due to longer maturities on our held-to-maturity investment balances and increases 
in short-term interest rates. We net a small amount of bank fees and charges against our interest income for presentation purposes.  

Gain (Loss) on Investments  
During 2003, we recorded an impairment charge of $13.0 million related to a cost method investment, recognized a $7.2 million 

gain ($4.7 million net of tax) from the sale of all shares of GlobespanVirata, Inc. (“Globespan”) common stock received as part of the 
sale of our Wireless Networking product group and recorded a gain of $0.6 million ($0.4 million net of tax) from sale of our 
investment in another company in June 2002.  

At year end 2003, we had marketable securities that consisted of shares of a former related party’s common stock that were 
classified as investments on the balance sheet. They were recorded at fair value, which was determined based on quoted market 
prices. As of January 2, 2004 we carried an unrealized gain on the investment of $1.7 million, before taxes. We held approximately 
1% of the company’s shares outstanding, at January 2, 2004. During 2004, we sold all of our holdings in the former related party for a 
realized gain of $3.8 million ($2.4 million net of tax). Proceeds from the sale were $8.7 million.  

Income Tax Expense (Benefit)  
Our income tax expense from continuing operations was $32.3 million or 27% of pretax income for 2005 compared to a tax 

benefit of $(7.1) million or (21)% of pretax income for 2004 and tax expense of $20.9 million or 26% of pretax income for 2003.  

Our income tax expense for 2005 included a provision of $6.6 million relating to our repatriation of $150 million of foreign 
earnings. See Footnote 17.4 in our consolidated financial statements for more information about our repatriation.  

The tax benefit realized in 2004 was primarily due to a settlement of our 1999 and 2000 Internal Revenue Service audits, an 
increase in our tax exempt investments and the impact of the in-process R&D charge related to the Xicor acquisition.  

In determining net income, we must make certain estimates and judgments in the calculation of tax expense and tax liabilities 
and in the recoverability of deferred tax assets that arise from temporary differences between the tax and financial statement 
recognition of revenues and expenses.  

In the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions and calculations where the ultimate tax outcome is uncertain. The 
calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax laws. We recognize probable 
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in the United States and other tax jurisdictions based on an estimate of the ultimate 
resolution of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes will be due. Although we believe the estimates are reasonable, no 
assurance can be given that the final  
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outcome of these matters will not be different than what is reflected in the historical income tax provisions and accruals. Such 
differences could have a material impact on the income tax provision and operating results in the period in which such determination 
is made.  

In addition to the risks to the effective tax rate described above, the effective tax rate reflected in forward-looking statements is 
based on current enacted tax law. Significant changes in enacted tax law could materially affect these estimates. See Footnote 17.3 for 
our statutory to effective tax rate reconciliation for the three years ended December 30, 2005.  

Discontinued Operations  
During 2003, we recognized a gain on the sale of our Wireless Networking product group. In 2004, we recorded an additional 

gain of $6.9 million ($4.2 million net of tax) primarily as a result of finalizing a contingent working capital adjustment with the buyer. 
Also, during 2004, we reached a settlement with Agere Systems Corporation on all pending litigations related to our Wireless 
Networking product group under mutually agreeable terms. As part of the confidential agreement, we recorded an expense of $5.8 
million ($5.0 million net of tax). In 2005 we settled a foreign tax liability relating to this sale, which made up the majority of our loss 
of $1.1 million ($0.9 million net of tax) from discontinued operations.  

Backlog  
Our sales are made pursuant to purchase orders that are booked up to six months in advance of delivery. Our standard terms and 

conditions of sale provide that these orders become non-cancelable thirty days prior to our original committed delivery date for 
standard products and ninety days prior to our original committed delivery date for semi-custom and custom products. Backlog is 
influenced by several factors, including market demand, pricing and customer order patterns in reaction to product lead times. Our 
year end backlog for 2005 was $132.8 million; for 2004 it was $78.8 million; and 2003 it was $83.6 million. Although not always the 
case, we believe backlog can be an indicator of performance for approximately the next two quarters.  

Business Outlook  
The first quarter of any year is a quarter in which we expect a sequential decline in total sales due to the normal seasonality of 

our business. As we announced via our Fourth Quarter 2005 Earnings press release (filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K, both 
as of January 25, 2006), we believe that despite historical seasonality, our recent design win momentum makes it likely that our first-
quarter fiscal 2006 revenue will be approximately flat with the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. Based on this outlook, we believe our 
history of sales growth in 2005 will continue into 2006. The press release stated that in the first quarter of fiscal 2006, we expect 
earnings per share of $0.20 to $0.21 per share. This earnings per share estimate includes quarterly option expense of $0.05 per share 
and amortization of acquisition-related intangibles of $0.01.  

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
Contractual Obligations  

The following table sets forth our future contractual obligations as of December 30, 2005 ($ in millions):  
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   Payment due by period

Contractual Obligations      Total      
Less than 1

year   
1-3

years  
3-5 

years  
More than

5 years

Future minimum operating lease commitments   $ 16.7  $ 4.2  $6.1  $5.1  $ 1.3
Open capital asset purchase commitments 

   7.0   7.0   
—

   
—

     —  
Open raw material purchase commitments

   16.0   16.0   
—

   
—

     —  
Standby letters of credit 

  3.4   3.4   
—

   
—

     —  
                    

Total   $ 43.1  $ 30.6  $6.1  $5.1  $ 1.3



Our future minimum lease commitments consist primarily of leases for buildings and other real property. Open capital asset 
purchase commitments include $2.0 million for building improvements relating to our Palm Bay campus consolidation and $2.6 
million for test and handling equipment. Open raw material purchase commitments include purchase orders for $15.4 million for 
externally produced wafers. We utilize standby letters of credit primarily for security for various contracts or services such as workers 
compensation ($1.3 million), environmental items ($1.3 million), as well as for security for certain vendor relationships. These 
standby letters of credit have annual renewals.  

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements  
We do not have any guarantees that would affect our liquidity, cash flow or financial position. We do not have any relationships 

with other parties that would have a material negative impact on our liquidity, cash flow or financial position.  

Liquidity and Capital Resources  
Our capital requirements depend on a variety of factors, including but not limited to, the rate of increase or decrease in our 

existing business base; the success, timing and amount of investment required to bring new products to market; revenue growth or 
decline; and potential acquisitions. We believe that we have the financial resources necessary to meet business requirements for the 
next 12 months, including the requisite capital expenditures for the expansion or upgrading of worldwide manufacturing capacity, 
working capital requirements, our dividend program, our treasury share repurchase program and potential future acquisitions or 
strategic investments. As of December 30, 2005, our total shareholders’ equity was $2.4 billion. At that date we also had $555 million 
in cash and short-term securities, as well as $157 million in long-term investments. We have no debt outstanding.  

Our primary sources and uses of cash during the three fiscal years ended December 30, 2005 are presented in this summarized 
table:  
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   Fiscal Years Ended  
     Jan 2, 2004      Dec 31, 2004      Dec, 30, 2005   
   (millions)  

Sources of Cash     

Existing business performance and activities     

Operating activities, including working capital 
changes   $ 71  $ 98  $ 153 

Proceeds from exercise of stock options, warrants and 
purchases under the employee stock purchase plan    25   22   40 

    
 

   
 

   
 

 $ 96  $ 120   $ 193  
    

 
   

 
   

 

Uses of Cash     

Business improvement investments     

Business (acquisitions) and divestitures, net   $ 231  $ (267)  $ (1)
Capital expenditures, net of sale proceeds   (59)   —     (18)

    
 

   
 

   
 

  $ 172  $ (267 )  $ (19 )
    

 
   

 
   

 

Returned to shareholders    
Stock repurchases   $ (52)  $ (128)  $ (128)
Dividends paid    (4)   (18)   (24)

    
 

   
 

   
 

  $ (56 )  $ (146 )  $ (152 )
             

Cash/Investment Management Activities     

Decrease (increase) in investments and foreign 
exchange effects   $ (309 )  $ 233   $ (14 )

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   $ (96)  $ (61)  $ 8 
    

 

   

 

   

 



In each of the three years, our primary sources of cash have generated nearly or over $100 million. We have returned a 
substantial amount of that cash to shareholders via our stock repurchase programs and our dividend payments. In 2004 we acquired 
Xicor for a combination of cash and stock that represents a strategic growth investment to strengthen our power management products 
and our management. The aim of the Xicor acquisition, as with most acquisitions that we might pursue, is to increase future cash 
flows from operating activities. The cash portion of the purchase price for Xicor represents a significant portion of the $267 million 
shown in the table above in fiscal 2004 for business acquisitions.  

The basic aim of the Company is to constantly improve the cash flows from our existing business activities and use the majority 
of that cash flow to return to stockholders. We will also continue to seek to maintain and improve our existing business performance 
with necessary capital expenditures and, potentially, acquisitions that may further improve our base business with prospects of a 
proper return. Acquisitions, should we undertake them to improve our business, might be made for either cash or stock consideration, 
or a combination of both.  

Our cash, cash equivalents and investments noted above, when combined with lack of any outstanding long or short-term debt 
obligations, give us the flexibility to continue to return much of our free cash flow to our stockholders while also pursuing business 
improvement opportunities for our future.  

Non-cash Working Capital  
Trade accounts receivable, less valuation allowances, increased by $21.9 million, or 28%, to $99.8 million at December 30, 

2005 from $77.9 million at December 31, 2004. This increase primarily reflects our year-over-year fourth quarter sales improvement 
in 2005 of 38% over 2004. Inventories decreased by $9.9 million, or 10%, to $86.6 million at December 30, 2005 from $96.5 million 
at December 31, 2004 as we improved turns with our increased business levels. We believe our overall working capital investment 
will remain relatively constant in relation to our volume of business activity measured by sales revenues and unit volumes for the 
foreseeable future.  

Our standard trade receivable terms range from net 30 to net 60 days. From time to time, management has made exceptions to 
these standard terms for various business and competitive reasons and extended the terms up to 90 days.  

Capital Expenditures  
Capital expenditures were $24 million for fiscal 2005, $6 million for fiscal 2004 and $59 million for fiscal 2003. Our fiscal 2005 

rate was much closer to our normal rate of capital expenditures. In 2003 we had invested significantly in our foundry and fabrication 
operations in Florida. In 2005 our expenditures focused on test and packaging equipment and expenditures related to preparing for our 
2006 campus consolidation in Florida.  

Proceeds from exercises of Stock Options and our Stock Purchase Plan  
In 2005, with our rising stock price, we enjoyed increased cash flow from stock plans (exercises of stock options and sales under 

our ESPP). At more than $40 million for the fiscal year, cash collected from such exercises approached the $47 million sum of the 
prior two years. While the level of such cash inflow to us is subject to certain market forces we don’t control, we believe that such 
proceeds will remain an important secondary source of cash after operating cash flow.  

Stock Repurchases and Dividends  
We currently have in effect an active stock repurchase program and a 5¢ per share quarterly dividend program. Both programs 

represent our major effort to return our operating cash flow to our shareholders and we currently intend to continue both programs for 
the foreseeable future.  
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Transactions with Related and Certain Other Parties  
Former related party—Intersil had a contract in place with a former related party, which expired in mid-year fiscal 2005, in 

which they provided a specified percentage of Intersil’s test and package services. The terms of the contract were the result of arms-
length negotiations and, in the opinion of management, were no less favorable than those that could be obtained from non-affiliated 
parties. At the time the contract was entered into the companies shared a common board member and Intersil once held an equity 
position in the Asian company. Although the Company continues to procure a portion of its test and package services from this firm, 
it utilizes other vendors for these services as well.  

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates  
In response to the SEC’s financial reporting release, FR-60, “Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical 

Accounting Policies,” we have included our more subjective accounting estimation processes for purposes of explaining the 
methodology used in calculating the estimates, in addition to the inherent uncertainties pertaining to the estimates, and the possible 
effects on our financial condition. The five accounting estimation processes discussed below are:  

1) the allowance for collection losses on trade receivables,  
2) distributor, OEM and warranty reserves,  
3) reserves for excess or obsolete inventory,  
4) the assessment of recoverability of goodwill, and  
5) tax valuation allowances  

These estimates involve certain assumptions that if incorrect could create an adverse impact on our operations and financial 
position. Below, we discuss these policies further, as well as the estimates and judgments involved. We also have other policies that 
we consider key accounting policies; however, these policies do not meet the definition of critical accounting policies, because they 
do not generally require us to make estimates or judgments that are difficult or subjective.  

Allowance for collection losses on trade receivables, or “Receivables Allowance”  
  

Our Receivables Allowance was $0.9 million on gross trade receivables of $105.7 million at December 30, 2005 and $0.6 
million on gross trade receivables of $85.4 million at December 31, 2004. This allowance is used to state trade receivables at a net 
realizable value or the amount that we estimate will be collected on our gross receivables. Since the amount that we will actually 
collect on the receivables outstanding cannot be known until the future, we rely primarily on prior experience. Our historical 
collection losses have been typically infrequent with write-offs of trade receivables being well below 1% of sales. In order to allow 
for future collection losses that arise from customer accounts that do not indicate the inability to pay but will have such an inability, 
we maintain an allowance based on a 48-month rolling average of write-offs, which as of December 30, 2005 equaled 0.1% of our 
gross trade receivables balance. We also maintain specific allowances for customer accounts that we know may not be collectible due 
to various reasons, such as bankruptcy and other customer liquidity  
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December 31, 2004

($ in millions)   
December 30, 2005

($ in millions)  

Gross trade receivables   $ 85.4  $ 105.7 
Receivables allowance    (0.6)  (0.9)
Other allowances    (6.9)  (5.0)

    
 

   
 

Net trade receivables   $ 77.9  $ 99.8 
         



issues. We analyze our trade receivable portfolio based on the age of each customer’s invoice. In this way, we can identify the 
accounts that are more likely to have collection problems. We then reserve a portion or all of the customer’s balance.  

Distributor, OEM and warranty reserves, or “Other Allowances”  
Shown in the immediately foregoing table relating to Receivables Allowance as “Other allowances,” are our allowances for 

various reserves for eventual customer credits. This is a combination of distributor, Original Electronic Manufacturer (“OEM”) and 
warranty reserves. Distributor reserves were $1.4 million and $2.0 million at December 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004, 
respectively. Revenue is recognized from sales to all other customers, excluding North American distributors, when a product is 
shipped. Sales to international distributors are made under agreements, which provide the distributors certain price protection on a 
percentage of unsold inventories they hold. Accordingly, distributor reserves are amounts within our trade receivable allowance 
section of the balance sheet that estimate the amount of price adjustments that will be encountered in the future on the inventory that 
is held by international distributors as of the balance sheet date. As the amount of inventory held by international distributors that will 
be adjusted in the future cannot be known with certainty as of the date hereof, we rely primarily on historical international distributor 
transactions. The international distributor reserves comprise two components that are reasonably estimable. The first component of 
international distributor reserves is the price protection reserve, which protects the distributors’ gross margins in the event of falling 
prices (which are common in semiconductors and other electronic components). This reserve is based on the relationship of historical 
credits issued to distributors in relation to historical inventory levels and the price paid by the distributor as applied to current 
inventory levels. The second component is a stock rotation reserve, which is based on the percentage of sales made to limited 
international distributors whereby the distributors can periodically receive a credit for unsold inventory they hold. Specific reserves 
for our OEM customers, of which various types of returns are the largest component, totaled $2.6 million at December 30, 2005; 
warranty reserves, returns for which there are product performance claims, totaled $1.0 million as of December 30, 2005.  

Reserves for excess or obsolete inventory, or “Inventory Reserves”  
We record our inventories at the lower of cost or market as described in the footnotes to the financial statements. As the ultimate 

market value that we will recoup through sales on our inventory can not be known with exact certainty as of the date of this filing, we 
rely on past sales experience and future sales forecasts to project it. In analyzing our inventory levels, we classify certain inventory as 
either excess or obsolete. These classifications are maintained for all classes of inventory, although due to the commonality between 
our products, raw materials are seldom deemed excess or obsolete. We classify inventory as obsolete if we have withdrawn it from 
the marketplace or if we have had no sales of the product for the past 12 months and no sales forecasted for the next 12 months. We 
reserve 100% of the standard cost of obsolete inventory. It is our policy to scrap obsolete inventory. Reviews are conducted of excess 
inventory on a monthly basis. We classify inventory as excess if we have quantities of product greater than the amounts we have sold 
in the past 12 months or have forecasted to sell in the next 12 months. We typically retain excess inventory until the inventory is sold 
or reclassified as obsolete. We reserve approximately 40% to 50% of the standard cost of the excess inventory. We believe that 
approximately 50% represents the portion we will not be able to recover when we attempt to sell this inventory due to our new 
product (next generation) introductions and other technological advancements. For all items identified as excess or obsolete during 
the process described above, management reviews the individual facts and circumstances (i.e. competitive landscape, industry 
economic conditions, product lifecycles and product cannibalization) specific to that inventory. Inventory Reserves totaled 
approximately $23.8 million on gross inventory of $110.4 million at December 30, 2005 and $21.2 million on gross inventory of 
$117.6 million at December 31, 2004.  

Product demand estimates are a key element in determining Inventory Reserves. Our estimate of product demand requires 
significant judgment and is based in part on historical product sales. Historical sales may not accurately predict future demand. If 
future demand is ultimately lower than our estimate, we could incur significant additional expenses to scrap obsolete inventory.  
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Assessment of recoverability of goodwill  
Pursuant to our adoption of SFAS 142 on December 29, 2001, we completed an initial impairment review of our goodwill and 

intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives and found no impairment. According to our accounting policy, we also performed an 
annual review during the fourth quarter of each subsequent year, and have found no impairment in any period. We will perform a 
similar review in the fourth quarter of each year, or more frequently if indicators of potential impairment exist. Goodwill is tested 
under the two-step method for impairment at a level of reporting referred to as a reporting unit. Our reporting units at December 30, 
2005 were the Analog Signal Processing and Power Management product groups. The first step of the goodwill impairment test, the 
purpose of which is to identify potential impairment, compares the fair value of each reporting unit with its carrying amount, 
including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, no impairment of the goodwill of the reporting 
unit is indicated and the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary. If the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair 
value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test will be performed to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The 
second step of the goodwill impairment test, the purpose of which is to measure the amount of impairment loss, compares the implied 
fair value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of reporting unit goodwill 
exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss will be recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The loss 
recognized cannot exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. After a goodwill impairment loss is recognized, the adjusted carrying 
amount of goodwill will be its new accounting basis. We have not recognized any impairment losses on goodwill since adopting 
SFAS 142.  

Tax valuation allowances  
As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of 

the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current tax liability together with assessing 
temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred 
tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our 
deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we must 
establish a valuation allowance. We have not provided for a valuation allowance because we believe it is more likely than not that our 
deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income. At December 30, 2005, our net deferred tax asset amounted to $98.7 
million compared to $112.0 million at December 31, 2004. This decrease is primarily due to usage and thereby reversal of deferred 
tax assets recorded as part of the purchase accounting of Xicor associated with their net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs”). An 
analysis is performed relating to our ability to continue to utilize these NOLs and we have concluded, as discussed above, that these 
assets will likely be recovered from future taxable income.  

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  
FASB Statement 123R: Share-Based Payment  

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS 123R, which is a revision of SFAS 123. 
SFAS 123R supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and its interpretations, and amends FASB’s 
Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally, the approach to accounting for share-based payments in SFAS 123R is similar 
to the fair-value approach permitted in SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to employees, including 
grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values (i.e., pro forma disclosure will 
no longer be an alternative to financial statement recognition). SFAS 123R allows for either prospective recognition of compensation 
expense or retrospective recognition. The Company adopted SFAS 123R effective with its fiscal 2006 year which began 
December 31, 2005. In October 2005, the Company took the action of mitigating a portion of the prospective effect on its financial 
statements through an acceleration of certain unvested stock options. This acceleration is expected to reduce the after-tax stock option 
expense it would otherwise have been required to record by approximately $17.5 million over a three-year period (our fiscal 2006-
2008, inclusive), of  
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which approximately $10.1 million would have been recorded in fiscal 2006. Even with this acceleration action, the application of 
SFAS 123R will have a negative effect on consolidated net income. In a press release dated January 25, 2006, the Company estimated 
this negative effect on the first quarter of fiscal 2006 to be approximately $0.05 of diluted net income per share.  

In August 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) 123R-1, “Classification and Measurement of Freestanding 
Financial Instruments Originally Issued as Employee Compensation.” This FSP defers the requirement of SFAS 123R that a 
freestanding financial instrument originally subject to SFAS 123R becomes subject to the recognition and measurement requirements 
of other applicable generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) when the rights conveyed by the instrument to the holder are no 
longer dependent on the holder being an employee of the entity. Under the provisions of the FSP, a freestanding financial instrument 
originally issued as employee compensation shall be subject to the recognition and measurement provisions of SFAS 123R 
throughout the life of the instrument, unless its terms are modified subsequent to the time the rights conveyed by the instrument are 
no longer dependent on the individual being an employee.  

In October 2005, the FASB issued FSP 123R-2, “Practical Accommodation to the Application of Grant Date as Defined in 
FASB Statement No. 123R.” This FSP provides guidance with regard to the determination of the “grant date” of a share-based 
payment instrument by expanding on the meaning of the parties reaching a “mutual understanding” of the terms and conditions of 
such award.  

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP 123R-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-
Based Payment Awards.” This FSP provides a practical transition election related to accounting for the tax effects of share-based 
payment awards to employees. This matter has to do with the ability (or lack thereof) of entities to quantify their “APIC pool” of 
excess tax benefits which may be available to absorb tax deficiencies recognized after the adoption of SFAS 123R.  

In February 2006, the FASB issued FSP 123R-4, “Classification of Options and Similar Instruments Issued as Employee 
Compensation that Allow for Cash Settlement upon the Occurrence of a Contingent Event.” This FSP addresses the classification of 
options and other instruments that are issued as share-based payments that allow for cash settlement upon the occurrence of a 
contingent event. This guidance amends the requirement that any opportunity or circumstance permitting settlement of the instrument 
in cash would cause its classification to be as a liability on an entity’s balance sheet.  

FASB Statement No. 154: Accounting Changes And Error Corrections  
In May 2005, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, a replacement of APB 

Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and FASB Statement No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements. 
The Statement applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle, and changes the requirements for accounting for and reporting 
of a change in accounting principle. Statement 154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements of a 
voluntary change in accounting principle unless it is impracticable. Opinion 20 previously required that most voluntary changes in 
accounting principle be recognized by including in net income of the period of the change the cumulative effect of changing to the 
new accounting principle. Statement 154 also requires that a change in method of depreciation, amortization, or depletion for long-
lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate that is affected by a change in accounting principle. 
Opinion 20 previously required that such a change be reported as a change in accounting principle.  

Statement 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2005. The Company adopted Statement 154 effective with its fiscal 2006 year which began on December 31, 2005 and does not 
anticipate any effect of this pronouncement on its statements of operations.  
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ED on Earnings Per Share—an Amendment to FAS 128  
In December 2004, the FASB decided to defer the issuance of its final standard on earnings per share (EPS) entitled “Earnings 

per Share—an Amendment to FAS 128.” In September 2005, the FASB issued its further deliberations on this subject as an Exposure 
Draft (“ED”) of the same name. A final standard is expected to be adopted in 2006. The significant proposed changes to the EPS 
computation are changes to the treasury stock method and contingent share guidance for computing year-to-date EPS, removal of the 
ability to overcome the presumption of share settlement when computing diluted EPS when there is a choice of share or cash 
settlement and inclusion of mandatorily convertible securities in basic EPS. Additionally, the ED proposed further changes of a 
complex and technical nature in the application of FAS 128. We are currently evaluating the proposed provisions of this amendment 
to determine the impact on our consolidated financial statements.  

FSP’s FAS 115-1 and 124-1  
In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP 115-1 and 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its 

Application to Certain Investments.” This FSP addresses the determination as to when an investment is considered impaired, whether 
that impairment is temporary, and the measurement of an impairment loss. Further it includes accounting considerations subsequent 
to the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures about unrealized losses that have not been 
recognized as other-than-temporary investments. We are currently evaluating the proposed provisions of this amendment to determine 
the impact on our consolidated financial statements.  

FASB Statement No. 155: Accounting for Hybrid Financial Instruments  
In February 2006, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 155, Accounting for Hybrid Financial Instruments, which is an 

amendment to FAS No. 133 regarding derivative instruments and hedging activities and FAS No. 140 regarding transfer and servicing 
of financial assets and the extinguishment of liabilities. Statement 155 permits the fair value re-measurement for any hybrid financial 
instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation and clarifies that both interest-only and 
principal-only strips are not subject to the provision of FAS 133. Further, Statement 155 establishes a requirement to evaluate 
interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding vs. those that are embedded derivatives. Other 
provisions relate to matters of concentration of credit risk and application of certain provisions to special purpose entities. The 
effective date for the provisions of Statement 155 is for those instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of our fiscal year 
2007. We are currently evaluating the provisions of this Statement to determine the impact on our consolidated financial statements.  

Subsequent Events  
In January 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock. Payment 

of the dividend was made on February 17, 2006 to shareholders of record as of the close of business on February 8, 2006.  

On January 25, 2006, we issued a press release which was filed with a Current Report on Form 8-K on that same date, 
announcing the promotion of Mr. Louis DiNardo, age 46, to the newly-created post of President & Chief Operating Officer. 
Mr. DiNardo joined Intersil upon its acquisition of Xicor, Inc. in 2004. At Xicor, Mr. DiNardo served as President & CEO.  

On February 8, 2006, we issued a press release which was filed with a Current Report on Form 8-K on that same date, 
announcing an increase in the size of the Board of Directors from eight seats to nine seats and the election of Mr. Gregory Lang, age 
42, to the new Board seat. Mr. Lang is President, CEO and a director of Integrated Device Technology, Inc.  
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  
We, in the normal course of doing business, are exposed to the risks associated with foreign currency exchange rates and 

changes in interest rates. We employ established policies and procedures governing the use of financial instruments, entered into for 
purposes other than trading purposes, to manage our exposure to these risks.  

At December 30, 2005, we had open foreign exchange contracts with a notional amount of approximately $10.9 million, which 
was to hedge forecasted foreign cash flow commitments up to six months. As hedges on forecasted foreign cash flow commitments 
do not qualify for deferral, gains and losses on changes in the fair market value of the foreign exchange contracts are recognized in 
income. Total net gains on foreign exchange contracts for 2005 were approximately $0.3 million. During 2005, we purchased and 
sold $66.4 million of foreign exchange forward contracts. The derivatives were also recognized on the balance sheet at their fair 
value, which was nominal, at December 30, 2005. The table below summarizes our foreign exchange contract activity over the past 
two years ($ in millions):  
  

Our hedging activities provide only limited protection against currency exchange risks. Factors that could impact the 
effectiveness of our hedging programs include accuracy of sales estimates, volatility of currency markets and the cost and availability 
of hedging instruments. A 10% adverse change in currency exchange rates for our foreign currency derivatives held at December 30, 
2005 will have a negligible impact on the fair values of these instruments. This qualification of exposure to the market risk associated 
with foreign exchange financial instruments does not take into account the offsetting impact of changes in the fair values of foreign 
denominated assets, liabilities and firm commitments.  
  

38 

   Fiscal Year Ended

   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005

Gain (loss) on foreign exchange contracts   $ 0.2  $ 0.3
Purchases and sales of foreign exchange contracts   $ 41.5  $ 66.4
Notional amount of open contracts at year end   $ 1.4  $ 10.9
Fair value of open contracts at year end    —    —  



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  
The following consolidated financial statements, and the related Notes thereto, of Intersil Corporation and the Independent 

Registered Certified Public Accountants’ Reports are filed as a part of this report.  

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
INTERSIL CORPORATION  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF INTERSIL CORPORATION  
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Intersil Corporation as of December 30, 2005 and 

December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity and cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 30, 2005. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule 
listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of Intersil Corporation at December 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004, and the consolidated results of its operations and its 
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 30, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
effectiveness of Intersil Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2005, based on criteria established 
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and 
our report dated February 28, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.  

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP  

Fort Lauderdale, Florida  
February 28, 2006  
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF INTERSIL CORPORATION  
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over 

Financial Reporting, that Intersil Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2005, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Intersil Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audit.  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control 
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control 
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.  

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.  

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Intersil Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Intersil 
Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2005, based on 
the COSO criteria.  

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
2005 consolidated financial statements and schedule of Intersil Corporation and our report dated February 28, 2006 expressed an 
unqualified opinion thereon.  

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP  

Fort Lauderdale, Florida  
February 28, 2006  
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INTERSIL CORPORATION  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

  

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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December 31,

2004   
December 30, 

2005  

   
($ in thousands, 

except share amounts)  

ASSETS    

Current Assets    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 129,700  $ 137,697 
Short-term investments   393,299   417,531 
Trade receivables, less allowances ($7,522 at Dec. 31, 2004 and $5,950 at Dec. 30, 2005)   77,919   99,791 
Inventories, net   96,450   86,604 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    14,649   11,893 
Deferred income taxes   43,175   32,849 

    
 

   
 

Total Current Assets   755,192   786,365 

Non-current Assets    
Property, plant and equipment, less accumulated depreciation ($124,738 at Dec. 31, 2004 and 

$137,080 at Dec. 30, 2005)   101,354   96,610 
Goodwill and purchased intangibles, less accumulated amortization   1,478,762   1,462,960 
Long-term investments   168,920   157,139 
Deferred income taxes   68,860   65,862 
Other   14,482   14,781 

         

Total Non-current Assets   1,832,378   1,797,352 
    

 
   

 

Total Assets   $2,587,570  $2,583,717 
         

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    

Current Liabilities    

Trade payables   $ 18,401  $ 27,122 
Accrued current and retirement compensation   24,841   32,203 
Deferred net revenue   11,347   10,961 
Other accrued items    34,391   22,203 
Non-income taxes payable   2,976   3,481 
Income taxes payable   56,211   58,140 

    
 

   
 

Total Current Liabilities   148,167   154,110 

Shareholders’ Equity    

Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 2 million shares authorized at Dec. 31, 2004 and Dec. 30, 2005, 
respectively; no shares issued or outstanding   —     —   

Class A Common Stock, $.01 par value, voting; 300 million shares authorized, 151,848,424 shares 
issued at Dec. 31, 2004; 600 million shares authorized, 141,051,346 shares issued at Dec. 30, 2005   1,518   1,411 

Additional paid-in capital   2,553,855   2,312,663 
Retained earnings   63,103   124,779 
Unearned compensation    (22,900)  (9,455)
Accumulated other comprehensive income   1,494   209 
Treasury shares, at cost; 8,078,670 shares at Dec. 31, 2004; none at Dec. 30, 2005   (157,667)  —   

    
 

   
 

Total Shareholders’ Equity   2,439,403   2,429,607 
         

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity   $2,587,570  $2,583,717 
    

 
   

 



INTERSIL CORPORATION  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS  

  

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

   
(in thousands, 

except share and per share amounts)  

Revenue     

Product sales   $507,684  $ 535,775  $ 600,255 
Costs, expenses and other income     

Cost of product sales (a)   221,074   237,155   265,560 
Research and development (b)   91,267   107,430   110,834 
Selling, general and administrative (b)   88,274  90,697   99,788 
Amortization of intangibles    6,298   7,397   9,597 
Amortization of unearned compensation   10,895   10,834   14,109 
In-process research and development   —     31,205   —   
Impairment (gain) of long–lived assets   12,576   26,224   (618)
Restructurings   4,887   6,104   2,845 
(Gain) on sale of certain operations   (1,428)  (901)  —   
Other losses (gains)   —    3,439   (2,000)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Operating income   73,841   16,191   100,140 
Interest income, net   8,958   13,227   18,966 
Gain (loss) on investments   (3,443)  3,799   —   

             

Income from continuing operations before income taxes   79,356   33,217   119,106 
Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations   20,899   (7,136)  32,284 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Income from continuing operations   58,457  40,353   86,822 
Discontinued operations     

Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes (including gain 
from disposal of $61,411 during fiscal year 2003)   19,983   1,092   (1,071)

Income tax expense (benefit) from discontinued operations   32,603   764   (126)
             

Income (loss) from discontinued operations    (12,620)  328   (945)
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net income   $ 45,837  $ 40,681  $ 85,877 
             

Basic income per share:     

Income from continuing operations   $ 0.42  $ 0.29  $ 0.61 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations   (0.09)  —    (0.01)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net income   $ 0.33 $ 0.29  $ 0.60 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Diluted income per share:     

Income from continuing operations   $ 0.41  $ 0.28  $ 0.60 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations   (0.09)  —    (0.01)

             

Net income   $ 0.32  $ 0.28  $ 0.59 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Weighted average common shares outstanding (in millions):     

Basic   137.3  140.9   142.2 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Diluted   141.3   143.6   145.2 
             

(a) Cost of product sales includes:     

Amortization of unearned compensation   $ 1,085  $ 704  $ 1,074 
(b) Amortization of unearned compensation is excluded from:     

Research and development   $ 4,547  $ 4,942  $ 7,421 
Selling, general and administrative   6,348   5,892   6,688 

             

  $ 10,895  $ 10,834  $ 14,109 
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                                   Year Ended                                

   
January 2, 

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005
   ($ in thousands and net of associated tax effects)
Net income   $ 45,837  $ 40,681  $ 85,877
Currency translation adjustments   1,286  705   938
Realization of unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities   (583)  (1,824)   —  
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities   4,099  —     —  

            

Comprehensive income   $ 50,639  $ 39,562  $ 86,815
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See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  
   ($ in thousands)  
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:     
Net income (loss) from continuing operations  $ 58,457  $ 40,353  $ 86,822 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash provided by operating 

activities:     
Depreciation and amortization    49,783   47,870   49,618 
Provisions for inventory obsolescence    3,274   3,005   3,295 
Other loss    —     3,439   —   
Write-off of in-process research and development   —     31,205   —   
Restructuring and impairments, net    30,463   32,328   2,227 
Gain on sale of certain operations    (1,428)  (901)  —   
Gain on sale of certain investments    (9,557)  (3,799)  —   
(Gain) loss on sale of equipment    —     (725)  15 
Deferred income taxes    (825)  2,622   12,400 
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations    (12,620)  328   (945)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) from discontinued operations to net cash provided by operating 

activities:     
Gain on sale of Wireless Networking product group    (61,411)  (7,900)  —   
Other adjustments    36,783   —     —   
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
Trade receivables    11,284   3,815   (21,872)
Inventories   (25,903)  (9,831)  6,550 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    2,849   (5,912)  1,646 
Trade payables and accrued liabilities    (33,301)  (23,711)  1,996 
Income taxes    69,044   (19,328)  12,399 
Other    (1,675)  5,500   (1,116)
Net assets held for sale    (44,100)  —     —   

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash provided by operating activities    71,117   98,358   153,035 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:     
Proceeds from sale of auction rate securities    451,016   658,508   1,000,636 
Purchases of auction rate securities   (743,241)  (411,319)  (1,143,301)
Proceeds from sale or maturity of short-term investments    80,001   56,175   211,563 
Purchases of short-term investments    (224,505)  (80,592)  (93,130)
Proceeds from maturities or sales of long-term investments    126,661   156,652   49,745 
Purchases of long-term investments    —     (147,979)  (37,964)
Proceeds (costs) from sale of Wireless Networking product group, net    237,513   (23,953)  (1,503)
Cash paid for acquired businesses    (3,116)  (1,987)  (12)
Purchase of Xicor, net of cash received   —     (235,980)  434 
Purchase of BitBlitz Communications    —     (2,602)  (14)
Purchase of cost method investments    —     (3,042)  —   
Purchase of property, plant and equipment for discontinued operations    (3,678)  —     —   
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment    —     6,422   5,626 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment    (58,809)  (6,022)  (24,007)

    
 

   
 

   
 

Net cash used in investing activities    (138,158)  (35,719)  (31,927)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:     
Proceeds from exercise of stock options    25,285   21,568   40,455 
Dividends paid   (4,159)  (18,476)  (24,202)
Repurchase of treasury shares    (51,582)  (127,670)  (127,750)

             

Net cash used in financing activities   (30,456)  (124,578)  (111,497)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents    1,203   1,182   (1,614)

             

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    (96,294)  (60,757)  7,997 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period   286,751   190,457   129,700 

             

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period   $ 190,457  $ 129,700  $ 137,697 
    

 
   

 
   

 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES—NON-CASH ACTIVITIES:     
Additional paid-in-capital from tax benefit on exercise on non-qualified stock options   $ 4,890  $ 7,631  $ 12,155 

    
 

   
 

   
 

Conversion of note receivable to other long-term investments    —    $ 1,000   —   
    

 
   

 
   

 

Stock issued in acquisition of Xicor, Inc.    —    $ 221,454   —   
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  Common Stock   Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

 Retained
Earnings
(Deficit)  

 
Unearned 

Compensation 

 
Accumulated

Other 
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 
Treasury 

Stock  

 

Total    Class A  Class B       
   ($ in thousands)  
Balance at January 3, 2003    1,290   78   2,228,925   (780)  (20,104)  (3,116)  (3,622)  2,202,671 
Net income    —     —     —     45,837   —     —     —     45,837 
Dividends paid    —     —     —     (4,159)  —     —     —     (4,159)
Shares issued under stock option plan, net of taxes    23   —     25,154   —     —     —     —     25,177 
Shares issued under employee stock purchase plan    5   —     4,994   —     —     —     —     4,999 
Sterling Holding Co., LLC share Exchange    78 (78) —   —    —    —     —     —   
Issuance of deferred stock units    —     —     2,145   —     (2,145)  —     —     —   
Amortization of unearned compensation    —     —     —     —     12,264   —     —     12,264 
Forfeiture of unvested Elantec options    —     —     (1,029)  —     1,029   —     —     —   
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities    —     —     —     —     —     4,099   —     4,099 
Realized gain on available-for-sale securities    —     —     —     —     —     (583)  —     (583)
Foreign currency translation    —     —     —     —     —     1,978   —     1,978 
Proceeds from warrant exercises    11 —   (11) —    —    —     —     —   
Acceleration of option vesting period    —     —     11,417   —     —     —     —     11,417 
Shares retired    (14)  —     (25,193)  —     —     —     25,207   —   
Shares repurchased    —     —     —     —     —     —     (51,583)  (51,583)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

Balance at January 2, 2004   $ 1,393  $ —    $2,246,402  $ 40,898  $ (8,956) $ 2,378  $ (29,998) $2,252,117 
Net income    —     —     —     40,681   —     —     —     40,681 
Dividends paid    —     —     —     (18,476)  —     —     —     (18,476)
Shares issued under stock option plan, net of taxes    21   —     14,912   —     —     —     —     14,933 
Shares issued under employee stock purchase plan    3   —     4,527   —     —     —     —     4,530 
Shares issued in acquisition of Xicor    101 —   284,791 —    (22,265) —     —     262,627 
Issuance of deferred stock units    —     —     3,425   —     (3,425)  —     —     —   
Amortization of unearned compensation    —     —     —     —     11,538   —     —     11,538 
Forfeiture of unvested Elantec options    —     —     (208)  —     208   —     —     —   
Realized (loss) on available-for-sale securities    —     —     —     —     —     (1,824)  —     (1,824)
Foreign currency translation    —     —     —     —     —     940   —     940 
Proceeds from warrant exercises    —   —   6 —    —    —     —     6 
Shares repurchased    —     —     —     —     —     —     (127,669)  (127,669)

                                 

Balance at December 31, 2004   $ 1,518  $ —    $2,553,855  $ 63,103  $ (22,900) $ 1,494  $(157,667) $2,439,403 
Net income    —   —   —   85,877   —    —     —     85,877 
Dividends paid    —     —     —     (24,201)  —     —     —     (24,201)
Shares issued under stock option plan, net of taxes    34   —     37,989   —     —     —     —     38,023 
Shares issued under employee stock purchase plan    4   —     4,355   —     —     —     —     4,359 
Issuance of deferred stock units    —     —     1,736   —     (1,736)  —     —     —   
Amortization of unearned compensation    —     —     —     —     15,181   —     —     15,181 
Foreign currency translation    —   —   —   —    —    (1,285)  —     (1,285)
Shares repurchased    —     —     —     —     —     —     (115,315)  (115,315)
Shares retired    (140)  —     (272,843)  —     —     —     272,982   —   
Shares repurchased and simultaneously retired    (5)  —     (12,430)  —     —     —     —     (12,435)

                                 

Balance at December 30, 2005   $ 1,411  $ —    $2,312,663  $ 124,779  $ (9,455) $ 209  $ —    $2,429,607 
                                 



INTERSIL CORPORATION  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION  
1.1) Organization: Markets and Products  

Intersil Corporation (“Intersil” or the “Company”) is a global designer and manufacturer of high performance analog integrated 
circuits. Our portfolio addresses some of the fastest growing applications within four end markets: high-end consumer, industrial, 
communications and computing.  

High-end consumer products: optical storage, display and handheld products. These products target high growth applications 
such as DVD recorders for the home market, liquid crystal display (“LCD”) televisions, smart phones and digital still cameras. High-
end consumer products accounted for 27% and 21% of the Company’s sales in fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

Industrial products: operational amplifiers, bridge driver power management products, interface and analog switches and 
multiplexers, and other standard analog products. These products target end markets including medical imaging, energy management 
and factory automation. Industrial products represented 26% and 27% of the Company’s sales in fiscal years 2005 and 2004, 
respectively.  

Communications products: line drivers, broadband and hot plug power management products and high-speed converters 
targeted to applications in markets such as DSL, home gateway, space and VOIP. Communications accounted for 23% and 27% of 
the Company’s sales in fiscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively.  

Computing products: desktop, server and notebook power management, including core power devices and power management 
applications for peripheral devices. Computing products accounted for 24% and 25% of the Company’s sales in fiscal years 2005 and 
2004, respectively.  

1.2) Basis of Presentation  
The transactions discussed below significantly affect the comparability of the results of operations between the fiscal periods 

presented within the Consolidated Financial Statements.  

On August 28, 2003, the Company sold its Wireless Networking product group to Globespan. In accordance with the provisions 
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144 (SFAS 144), “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets,” the Company has not included the results of operations of its Wireless Networking product group in the results from 
continuing operations. The results of operations for this product group have been reflected as discontinued operations in all years 
presented.  

On July 29, 2004, the Company acquired Xicor by issuing Intersil Class A common stock and cash to purchase 100% of the 
outstanding common stock of the Milpitas, California-based company. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method 
of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations of Xicor have been included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated 
Financial Statements since the acquisition date.  

The Company utilizes a 52/53 week fiscal year. All fiscal years presented herein contain 52 weeks.  

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Accounts denominated in non-U.S. currencies have been remeasured using the U.S. 
dollar as the functional currency.  
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)  

  
1.3) Reclassifications  

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year classifications.  

NOTE 2—SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
2.1) Cash Equivalents—Cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid debt securities with insignificant interest rate risk 

and with original maturities from the date of purchase of three months or less.  

2.2) General Investment Information—The Company continually monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of, the 
governmental and financial institutions that are the issuers (Issuers) of its investments, and does not anticipate nonperformance by the 
Issuers. The Company would not realize a material loss as of December 30, 2005 in the event of nonperformance by any one Issuer. 
The Company enters into transactions only with Issuers that have a long-term debt rating of no less than AA by Standard & Poor’s or 
AA by Moody’s. For short-term debt (a maturity date less that 365 days), the Issuer must have no less than an A1 Standard & Poor’s 
and a P1 Moody’s credit rating. In addition, the Company limits the amount of investment credit exposure with any one Issuer. At 
December 30, 2005, the Company did not require and was not required to collateralize any of its financial instrument obligations.  

2.2.1) Available for Sale (“AFS”) Investments—Investments designated as AFS include marketable debt and equity securities. 
Investments that are designated as AFS are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, recorded in 
stockholders’ equity. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Realized gains and losses on the sale of 
debt securities are recorded in interest income, net. Realized gains or losses on the sale or exchange of equity securities and declines 
in value judged to be other than temporary are recorded in gains (losses) on equity securities, net. Marketable equity securities are 
presumed to be impaired if the fair value is less than the cost basis continuously for two consecutive quarters, absent evidence to the 
contrary.  

AFS debt investments consisted exclusively of auction rates securities with a final maturity of greater than three months. The 
Company invests in auction rate securities as an alternative to cash and frequently sells positions to fund its working capital. These 
investments are reflected in the “Short-term Investments” line item in the current section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Auction 
rate securities are securities issued primarily by state and local governmental agencies that have contractual maturities that extend up 
to 30 years. They have the effective characteristic of floating rate investments since the earnings rate is reset at intervals from 7 to 90 
days. Due to an active secondary market for such investments, the rate reset for each instrument is an opportunity to accept the reset 
rate or sell the instrument at its face value in order to seek an alternative investment. The table below shows the contractual maturity 
of our auction rate securities; however the instruments are classified as short-term due to the reset feature which serves as an 
opportunity to realize proceeds from the investment.  

During fiscal year 2004, Intersil sold all of its holdings in a former related party. As a result of this sale, the Company reversed 
$2.8 million ($1.8 million net of tax) of previously unrealized gains from the accumulated other comprehensive income line item 
within shareholders’ equity on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

2.2.2) Held-to-Maturity (“HTM”) Investments—Investments designated as HTM include marketable debt with maturities of 
greater than three months. Examples of such debt securities include commercial paper, corporate bonds, corporate notes and federal, 
state, county and municipal government bonds. In accordance with SFAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and 
Equity Securities,” these securities are classified as HTM securities as the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold until 
maturity. Securities in the HTM classification are carried at amortized cost. Accordingly, unrealized gains and losses are not reported 
in the  
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financial statements until realized or until a decline is deemed to be other-than-temporary. Management deems its unrealized losses to 
be temporary as there are short periods until the related investments mature, the issuers are deemed highly creditworthy and the 
Company has ability and intent to hold the investments until maturity at which time the investment will be redeemed at amortized 
cost. HTM investments with maturities one year or less are contained in the balance sheet line item “Short-term investments” within 
the current section, and those beyond one year are contained in the balance sheet line item “Long-term investments” within the non-
current section.  

The Company’s portfolios of short-term investments consisted of the following as of the dates set forth below:  

December 31, 2004  
  

December 30, 2005  
  

The fair market value of these securities as of December 31, 2004 was $392.0 million, which was an unrecognized loss of $1.3 
million. The fair market value of these securities as of December 30, 2005 was $417.3 million, which was an unrecognized loss of 
$0.3 million. None of the unrecognized losses relate to auction rate securities.  

The Company’s portfolio of long-term investments included the following as of the dates set forth below:  

December 31, 2004  
  

December 31, 2005  
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Type of Security   
Amortized Cost
($ in millions)   

Maturity Range
(in years)

US Treasury and government debt (HTM)   $ 176.5  < 1
State & municipality issued debt (HTM)    11.2  < 1
Corporate issued debt (HTM)    4.1  < 1
Auction rate securities (AFS)    201.5  > 10

      

Total   $ 393.3  
      

Type of Security   
Amortized Cost
($ in millions)   

Maturity Range
(in years)

US Treasury and government debt (HTM)   $ 20.0  < 1
State & municipality issued debt (HTM)    53.4  < 1
Auction rate securities (AFS)    344.1  > 10

      

Total   $ 417.5  
      

Type of Security   
Amortized Cost
($ in millions)   

Maturity Range
(in years)

US Treasury and government debt (HTM)   $ 168.9  1-3
      

Type of Security   
Amortized Cost
($ in millions)   

Maturity Range
(in years)

US Treasury and government debt (HTM)   $ 129.2  1-2
State & municipality issued debt (HTM)    27.9  1-2

      

Total   $ 157.1  
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The fair market value of these securities as of December 31, 2004 was $167.2 million, which was an unrealized loss of $1.7 

million. Of this $1.7 million at December 31, 2004, $0.2 million represents unrealized loss that has existed for more than one year. 
The fair market value of these securities as of December 30, 2005 was $154.2 million, which was an unrealized loss of $2.9 million. 
Of this $2.9 million at December 30, 2005, $2.8 million represents an unrealized loss that has existed for more than one year. These 
unrealized losses are a result of generally rising interest rates during the periods presented.  

2.2.3) Trading Investments—Trading investments are stated at fair value, with gains or losses resulting from changes in fair 
value recognized currently in earnings. The Company elects to classify as “trading” assets a portion of its marketable equity 
securities, which are contained in the “Other” line item in the non-current section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These 
investments consist exclusively of a marketable equity portfolio held to generate returns that seek to offset changes in liabilities 
related to certain deferred compensation arrangements. Gains or losses from changes in the fair value of these equity securities are 
offset by losses or gains on the related liabilities and thus have no net impact on earnings. The Company’s portfolios of trading 
investments included the following securities as of the dates set forth below:  

December 31, 2004  
  

December 30, 2005  
  

2.2.4) Cost Method Investments—All investments that are not accounted for as HTM, AFS or “trading” are accounted for 
under the cost method. Under the cost method, investments are held at historical cost, less impairments, as there are no readily 
determinable market values. Furthermore, the Company holds less than 20% ownership of the cost method investments, cannot 
exercise significant influence over the investee and is not the primary beneficiary. These investments are reviewed at least quarterly 
for impairment indicators such as insolvency or competitive problems. Impairments are determined using several analytical 
techniques such as discounted cash flow analysis and management’s qualitative evaluations. Cost method investments are contained 
in the “Other” line item in the non-current section of the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets.  

In 2004, the Company made investments in two such cost method investees consisting of $3.1 million in cash investment and 
the conversion of a $1 million note receivable for a total cost and carrying value of $4.1 million. The Company and one of these 
investees share a common board member. Each investment was reviewed for impairment indicators during the quarter ended 
December 30, 2005 and no adjustment was required to the carrying values.  

2.2.5) Other Financial Instruments and Derivatives  
Letters of Credit: The Company issues letters of credit during the ordinary course of business through major financial 

institutions as required by certain vendor contracts. The Company had outstanding letters of credit  
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Type of Security   
Fair Value 

($ in millions)  
Net Unrealized

Gains

Mutual fund holdings to offset deferred compensation 
liabilities   $ 5.4  $ 0.4

        

Type of Security   
Fair Value 

($ in millions)  
Net Unrealized

Gains

Mutual fund holdings to offset deferred compensation 
liabilities   $ 7.4  $ 0.4
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totaling $4.2 million and $3.4 million at December 31, 2004 and December 30, 2005, respectively. Certain cash equivalents with a 
carrying value of $4.7 million are pledged to secure such letters of credit.  

Derivatives: The Company’s primary objective for holding derivative financial instruments is to manage currency risks. The 
Company’s derivative instruments are recorded at fair value and are included in other current assets. The Company’s accounting 
policies for these instruments are based on whether they meet the Company’s criteria for designation as hedging transactions, either as 
cash flow or fair value hedges. A hedge of the exposure to variability in the cash flows of an asset or a liability, or of a forecasted 
transaction, is referred to as a cash flow hedge. A hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or a liability, or of an 
unrecognized firm commitment, is referred to as a fair value hedge. The criteria for designating a derivative as a hedge include the 
instrument’s effectiveness in risk reduction and, in most cases, a one-to-one matching of the derivative instrument to its underlying 
transaction. Gains and losses on derivatives that are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes are recognized currently in 
earnings, and generally offset changes in the values of related assets, liabilities or debt. Intersil uses foreign exchange contracts to 
hedge forecasted foreign cash flow commitments up to six months. Hedges on forecasted foreign cash flow commitments do not 
qualify for deferral, as the hedges are not related to a specific, identifiable transaction. Therefore, gains and losses on changes in the 
fair market value of the foreign exchange contracts are recognized in cost of product sales. Premiums paid for option contracts that 
are not exercised are written off at the time of expiration. Gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts are included within cost of 
product sales within the consolidated statements of operations.  

Intersil uses foreign exchange contracts to hedge anticipated foreign cash flow commitments up to six months. Total net gains 
(losses) on foreign exchange contracts were $0.0 million, ($0.2) million and $0.3 million for fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, 
respectively. Realized gains and losses from hedges are classified in the statements of operations consistent with the accounting 
treatment of the items being hedged. Open foreign exchange contracts had fair values of $1.4 million and $10.9 million at 
December 31, 2004 and December 30, 2005, respectively.  

All such contracts are used to hedge anticipated foreign cash flow commitments. Intersil purchased and sold foreign exchange 
forward and put option contracts with a notional value of $89.4 million, $41.5 million and $66.4 million during fiscal years 2003, 
2004 and 2005, respectively. Management believes its cash flow hedges have been effective.  

Total open foreign exchange contracts at December 31, 2004 and December 30, 2005 are described in the tables below (all are 
options to sell foreign currencies):  

December 31, 2004  
  

December 30, 2005  
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   Contract Amount    

Currency   
Foreign

Currency  U.S.   
Maturities 
(in months)

   (in millions)    

Japanese Yen   150.0  $1.4  1

   Contract Amount    

Currency   
Foreign

Currency  U.S.   
Maturity 

(in months)
  (in millions)    
Japanese Yen   375.0  $3.2  1-5
Euros   6.5  $7.7  1-5
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2.3) Trade Receivables—Trade receivables are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that we expect to collect on our 

gross customer trade receivables. The Company maintains a reserve of approximately 0.1% of gross trade receivables (0.2% at 
December 31, 2004) in addition to specific reserves for receivables with known collection problems due to circumstances such as 
bankruptcy or customer disputes. Collection problems are identified using an aging of receivables analysis based on invoice due dates 
and information from the field. Estimated losses from collection items are provided for currently. Items that are deemed uncollectible 
are written off against the allowance for collection losses, the provision for which is made through sales. Credit limits, ongoing 
evaluation and trade receivable monitoring procedures are utilized to reduce the risk of credit loss. Credit is extended based on an 
evaluation of the customer’s financial condition and collateral is generally not required. Intersil has not charged interest on overdue 
receivables during the time periods presented.  

2.4) Inventories—Inventories are carried at the lower of standard cost, which approximates actual cost, determined by the First-
In-First-Out (“FIFO”) method, or market. All inventory adjustments establish a new cost basis and are considered permanent even in 
instances where the costs are recoverable. Shipping and handling costs are classified as a component of cost of product sales in the 
consolidated statements of operations.  

2.5) Property, Plant and Equipment—Buildings, machinery and equipment are carried on the basis of cost, less impairment 
charges, if any. The estimated useful lives of buildings, which include leasehold improvements, range between 5 and 50 years. The 
estimated useful lives of machinery and equipment range between 3 and 10 years. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line 
method using the estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation expense from continuing operations was $31.5 million, $28.9 million 
and $24.9 million for fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The Company expenses all repairs and maintenance costs that 
do not extend an asset’s useful life or increase an asset’s capacity.  

2.6) Revenue Recognition—Revenue is recognized from sales to all customers (except North American distributors and certain 
immaterial royalty arrangements) when a product is shipped, provided that persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, the 
price is fixed or determinable, title has transferred, collection of resulting receivables is reasonably assured, there are no customer 
acceptance requirements and there are no remaining significant obligations. When taking orders for products from our customers, 
they typically provide us with a customer request date (“CRD”) which indicates their preferred date for receipt of the ordered 
products. Based on estimated transit time and other logistics, we may deliver products to the carrier in advance of the CRD, and 
recognize revenue from the sale of such products. It is our intent that such deliveries be made not more than ten days in advance of 
CRD. Shipments to domestic distributors are made under agreements which provide for certain pricing credits and limited product 
return privileges. Given the uncertainties associated with the levels of returns and credits that may be issued to these distributors, the 
Company defers recognition of such sales until the domestic distributors sell the merchandise. The Company relieves inventory and 
records a receivable on the initial sale to the distributor as title has passed to the distributor and payment is collected on the receivable 
within normal trade terms. The income to be derived from distributor sales is recorded under current liabilities on the balance sheet as 
“Deferred net revenue” until such time as the distributor confirms a final sale to its end customer. The following table summarizes 
deferred net revenue:  
  

The Company’s sales to international distributors are made under agreements which permit limited stock return privileges and 
pricing credits. Revenue on these sales is recognized upon shipment, at which time title  
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Deferred net revenue: North American distributor and certain royalties   
December 31, 2004

($ in millions)   
December 30, 2005

($ in millions)

Deferred revenues   $ 14.3  $ 13.6
Deferred cost of revenues    3.0   2.6

        

Deferred net revenue   $ 11.3  $ 11.0
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passes. The Company estimates international distributor returns and pricing credits based on historical data and current business 
expectations and defers a portion of international distributor sales and profits based on these estimated returns. The international 
distributor reserves are made up of two components that are reasonably estimable:  

International price protection reserve—protects the distributors’ gross margins in the event of falling prices. This reserve is 
based on the relationship of historical credits issued to distributors in relation to historical inventory levels and price paid by the 
distributor as applied to current inventory levels.  

International stock rotation reserve—protects distributors for certain unsold inventories of our products which they hold. This 
reserve is based on the percentage of sales made to certain international distributors.  

Sales are also reduced based on an analysis of historical returns related to accommodation and warranty related returns. Such 
amounts are classified in “Allowances to trade receivables” on the face of the accompanying balance sheets. Accommodation returns 
are those we are not contractually obligated to accept for credit. We believe that we can make reasonable and reliable estimates of 
future returns and price protections, other than those aforementioned for the domestic distributors, because these sales reductions are 
relatively small and predictable.  

For fiscal year 2005, gross revenues were approximately $622 million and various returns, allowances and deferrals as noted 
above were approximately $22 million. For fiscal year 2004, gross revenues were approximately $564 million and various returns, 
allowances and deferrals as noted above were approximately $28 million. For fiscal year 2003, gross revenues were approximately 
$528 million and various returns, allowances and deferrals as noted above were approximately $20 million.  

2.7) Research and Development—Research and development costs, consisting of the cost of designing, developing and testing 
new or significantly enhanced products are expensed as incurred.  

2.8) Loss Contingencies—Intersil estimates and accrues loss contingencies at the point that the losses become probable. For 
litigation, we include an estimate of legal costs to defend.  

2.9) Retirement benefits—Retirement benefits are provided to substantially all employees primarily through a defined 
contribution plan to which both the Company and its employees contribute (a 401(k) Plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 401
(k)). Contributions by Intersil are based on a dollar-for-dollar match of employees’ contributions up to a certain predetermined 
percentage. Employees fully vest in the Company’s matching contributions upon the completion of five years of service.  

Retirement benefits also include an unfunded limited healthcare plan for U.S.-based retirees and employees on long-term 
disability (“retiree benefit plan”). Intersil accrues the estimated cost of these medical benefits during an employee’s active service life. 
Expenses related to this plan were $1.9 million, $1.0 million and $1.2 million during fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. 
The accrued liability related to the unfunded limited healthcare plan was $1.0 million and $0.5 million at December 31, 2004 and 
December 30, 2005, respectively. During fiscal year 2003, the Company approved a change to the retiree benefit plan whereby 
benefits will be terminated by 2008.  

Retirement plans expense from continuing operations was $6.0 million, $5.5 million and $5.2 million for fiscal years 2003, 2004 
and 2005, respectively.  

2.10) Stock-Based Compensation—The Company accounts for its stock based award plans in accordance with Accounting 
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and Financial  
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Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 44 “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation.” 
Compensation expense is recorded on the date of the grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeds the 
exercise price (the “intrinsic value” method). For stock options, no such compensation expense has been recorded to date. Had 
compensation cost for the Company’s stock options been determined consistent with SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation,” the Company would have reported a net income (loss) of $(22.4) million, $(0.2) million and $34.6 million for fiscal 
years 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.  

The following table reconciles net income (loss) as previously reported to the net income (loss) that would have been reported 
had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plan been determined consistent with SFAS 123:  
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   Year Ended  

  
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004  
December 30,

2005  

   
($ in millions, except per share  

information)  

Net income, as reported   $ 45.8  $ 40.7  $ 85.9 
Add: Stock-based employee compensation included in reported net income, 

net of tax  14.7  7.1   9.4 
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under 

fair value based method for all awards (1), net of tax   (82.9) (48.0)  (60.7)
    

 
   

 
   

 

Net income (loss), pro forma   $ (22.4) $ (0.2) $ 34.6 
             

Basic income (loss) per share:     

As reported   $ 0.33  $ 0.28  $ 0.60 
             

Pro forma  $ (0.16) $ —   $ 0.24 
    

 
   

 
   

 

Diluted income (loss) per share:     

As reported   $ 0.32  $ 0.28  $ 0.59 
             

Pro forma   $ (0.16) $ —   $ 0.24 
    

 
   

 
   

 

(1) In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company accelerated certain options resulting in $17.5 million of expense, net of tax, 
which is a component part of the $60.7 million of net stock-based employee compensation for fiscal 2005. The Company 
accelerated the vesting in order to enable the Company to forego recognizing the related compensation expense in its statements 
of operations upon the effective and adoption date of SFAS 123R, “Share Based Payment” in January 2006. As a result of this 
action, options to purchase approximately 1.8 million shares became exercisable immediately. Of this $17.5 million, which 
represents three years of charges with regard to the affected shares, approximately $10 million would have been recorded in the 
Company’s 2006 fiscal year absent the acceleration. 
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In the foregoing proforma tables showing the effect of SFAS 123 application, the Company previously reported proforma net 

income (loss) figures that did not reflect the application of a tax effect to the stock-based employee compensation included in reported 
net income and did not reflect the application of recent guidance regarding the method of calculating and presenting the tax effect on 
the proforma fair value based compensation expense. The following table reconciles the previously reported amounts to the amounts 
shown above:  
  

The Company estimated the fair value of each option as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes pricing model for the first 
three quarters of fiscal year 2004 and prior years and the Lattice model for the last quarter of fiscal year 2004 and forward. The 
Company believes that the Lattice model is a more accurate model for valuing employee stock options as it uses historical exercise 
patterns to predict the expected life of options and better predicts future volatility of the underlying stock price. If the Company would 
have used the Black-Scholes pricing model for the full fiscal year 2004, the Company would have reported additional proforma 
expense of approximately $0.7 million or $0.01 per share for the year ended December 31, 2004. The Black-Scholes pricing model 
uses the following assumptions for the periods in which it was utilized:  
  

The Lattice model uses the following assumptions for the periods in which it was utilized:  
  

In addition to the change in volatility from the use of the Lattice model, the Company changed the contractual expiration period 
for most of its newly issued options in April 2004. Contractual life was generally reduced from 10 years to 7 years for new options, 
thus impacting the options’ ranges of expected life as depicted in the table above.  
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Year Ended
January 2, 

2004   

Year Ended
December 31,

2004  

   
($ in millions, except per 

share information)  

Net loss, proforma, as previously reported   $ (13.4) $ (5.4)
Tax effect of stock-based employee compensation included in reported net loss    (9.0)  (4.4)
Incremental tax effect on fair value based compensation expense for all awards    —    (1.2)

    
 

   
 

Net loss, pro forma, as restated   $ (22.4) $ (0.2)
    

 
   

 

Proforma diluted net loss per share, as previously reported   $ (0.10) $ (0.04)

Proforma diluted net loss per share, as restated   $ (0.16) $ —   

   

Year Ended
January 2,

2004  

Three Quarters
Ended 

October 1, 
2004

Range of expected volatilities 
  

71%-
78%  67%-71%

Range of dividend yields   0.5%  0.5%-0.6%
Range of risk-free interest rates 

  

2.8%-
4.0%  2.9%-4.2%

Range of expected lives, in years   7.0  6.0–7.0

   

Quarter Ended
December 31,

2004  

Year Ended
December 31,

2005

Range of expected volatilities   41%-43%  33%-43% 
Range of dividend yields 

  

1.15%
 

0.7%-
1.0% 

Range of risk-free interest rates 
  

3.3%-3.4% 
 

3.5%-
4.5% 

Range of expected lives, in years   5.4–6.4  2.2–5.8
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2.11) Income Taxes—Intersil follows the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in SFAS 109, 

“Accounting for Income Taxes.” Current income taxes payable and deferred income taxes resulting from temporary differences 
between the financial statements and the tax basis of assets and liabilities are separately classified on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets.  

2.12) Asset Impairment—Intersil accounts for long-lived asset impairments under SFAS 144. Consistent with prior guidance, 
SFAS 144 requires a three-step approach for recognizing and measuring the impairment of assets to be held and used. The Company 
recognizes impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations when indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted 
cash flows estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the assets’ carrying amounts. The impairment loss is measured by 
comparing the fair value of the asset to its carrying amount. Fair value is estimated based on discounted future cash flows or market 
value, if available. Assets to be sold are stated at the lower of the assets’ carrying amount or fair value and depreciation is no longer 
recognized. Prior to SFAS 144’s adoption on December 29, 2001, Intersil accounted for impairments under SFAS 121, “Accounting 
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of.”  

2.13) Intangibles—In 2005 the Company conducted its annual impairment review and determined that no impairment of its 
intangibles is required in the year ended December 30, 2005.  

Background: In June 2001 the FASB issued SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which the Company adopted 
on December 29, 2001. Under SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but 
are subject to annual impairment tests. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their estimated useful lives and 
evaluated for impairment under SFAS 144 when indicators are present.  

As required by SFAS 142, the Company ceased amortizing goodwill and other indefinite lived intangible assets beginning 
December 29, 2001. Pursuant to SFAS 142, the Company completed an initial impairment review of its goodwill and intangible assets 
deemed to have indefinite lives at the end of 2001 and found no impairment. Beginning in 2002, the Company has performed an 
annual impairment review during the fourth quarter of each year (or more frequently if the Company believes indicators of 
impairment exist).  

Goodwill is tested under the two-step approach for impairment at a level of reporting referred to as a reporting unit at the end of 
2005. The Company has one segment with two reporting units. The Company’s reporting units for the 2005 impairment review were 
the Analog Systems Processing and the Power Management product groups, each managed by a general manager.  
  

  

  
56 

 

•  Step one is identification of potential impairment. This involves comparing the fair value of each reporting unit with its 
carrying amount, including goodwill. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the 
reporting unit is considered not impaired, thus the second step of the impairment test is unnecessary. If the carrying amount 
of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the impairment test shall be performed to measure the amount of 
impairment loss, if any. 

 

•  Step two is measurement of the amount of impairment loss. This involves comparison of the implied fair value of the 
reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill 
exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss shall be recognized in an amount equal to that excess. 
The loss recognized cannot exceed the carrying amount of the goodwill. After a goodwill impairment loss is recognized, the 
adjusted carrying amount of goodwill shall be its new accounting basis. 
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2.14) Foreign Currency Translation—The functional currency for Intersil’s international subsidiaries is predominately the 

local currency. Assets and liabilities are translated at current rates of exchange, and income and expense items are translated at the 
weighted average exchange rate for the year. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of 
shareholders’ equity. Aggregate cumulative translation gains were $0.6 million, $1.5 million and $2.8 million at January 2, 
2004, December 31, 2004 and December 30, 2005, respectively.  

2.15) Income (Loss) Per Share—Income (loss) per share is computed and presented in accordance with SFAS 128, “Earnings 
per Share” and the Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 98.  

2.16) Use of Estimates—The statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States and require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

2.17) Restructuring—Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit 
or Disposal Activities.” SFAS 146 addresses financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities 
and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination 
Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS 146 requires that a liability 
for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity be recognized when a liability is incurred rather than when an exit or disposal 
plan is approved. Also, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 112, the Company records restructuring charges when severance 
obligation is probable and reasonably estimable and is a vested right attributable to the employees’ service already rendered.  

2.18) Advertising Expense—Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred. Advertising expense from continuing 
operations was $6.6 million, $6.0 million and $5.3 million for fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. There are no prepaid 
advertising costs in any period presented.  

NOTE 3—INVENTORIES  
Inventories are summarized below ($ in thousands):  

  

At December 31, 2004 and December 30, 2005, Intersil was committed to purchase $9.9 million and $16.0 million, respectively, 
of inventory from suppliers.  
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December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005

Finished products   $ 25,966  $ 22,977
Work in process    67,182  61,011
Raw materials and supplies    3,302  2,616

        

Total inventories, net   $ 96,450  $ 86,604
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NOTE 4—PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Property, plant and equipment are summarized below ($ in thousands):  
  

NOTE 5—INTANGIBLE ASSETS  
Intangible assets are summarized below ($ in thousands):  

  

Definite lived intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives, which are 4 to 11 years for developed technology. 
Amortization expense on intangible assets from continuing operations was $6.3 million, $7.4 million and $9.6 million for fiscal years 
2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Expected amortization expense by year to the end of the current amortization schedule is the 
following: 2006—$9.5 million, 2007—$9.5 million, 2008—$9.3 million, 2009—$7.3 million, 2010—$3.3 million and 2011—$0.5 
million.  

The following table summarizes changes in Intersil’s net goodwill balances ($ in thousands):  
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December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Land  $ 2,024  $ 2,024 
Buildings  50,161   53,556 
Machinery and equipment  173,907   178,110 

        

Total property, plant and equipment  226,092   233,690 
Less allowances for depreciation  (124,738)  (137,080)

   
 

   
 

Total property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation  $ 101,354 $ 96,610 
   

 
   

 

   
December 31, 

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets:    

Goodwill   $1,433,183  $1,426,979 
Less accumulated amortization    (3,349)  (3,349)
Definite Lived Intangible Assets:    

Developed Technology    58,991   58,991 
Less accumulated amortization    (10,178)  (19,661)
Xicor Customer Backlog    750   750 
Less accumulated amortization    (635)  (750)

    
 

   
 

Total Intangible Assets   $1,478,762  $1,462,960 
         

   Year Ended  

   
December 31, 

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Goodwill balance at beginning of period   $1,059,121  $1,429,834 
Goodwill adjustment resulting from purchase of Elantec Inc.    (4,660)  (376)
Goodwill resulting from purchase of Xicor Inc.    374,165   —   
Goodwill adjustment resulting from purchase of Xicor    —     (5,844)
Goodwill resulting from purchase of BitBlitz Communications Inc.    1,208   —   
Goodwill adjustment resulting from purchase of BitBlitz    —     14 

    
 

   
 

Goodwill balance at end of period   $1,429,834  $1,423,628 
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The decrease to the Elantec-related goodwill resulted from the tax benefit received due to the exercise of vested stock options 

issued as part of the acquisition of Elantec in both years and in 2004 included a decrease of $1.1 million due to the reversal of unused 
exit cost reserves relating to the acquisition. The decrease to the Xicor-related goodwill in 2005 results from the tax benefit received 
due to the exercise of vested stock options issued as part of the acquisition (decrease of $10.6 million), final adjustments to 
transaction and litigation costs (increase of $1.5 million) and final tax return adjustments (increase of $3.3 million).  

NOTE 6—INCOME PER SHARE  
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted income per share ($ in thousands, except per share amounts):  

  

The weighted average diluted common shares outstanding for fiscal 2005, 2004, and 2003 excludes the dilutive effect of 
approximately 10.9 million, 12.6 million and 9.4 million options, respectively, since such options have an exercise price in excess of 
the average market value of the Company’s common stock during the fiscal year.  

NOTE 7—GAIN (LOSS) FROM INVESTMENTS  
The tables below details our gain (loss) from investments for all periods presented ($ in millions):  

  

During fiscal year 2003, the Company recognized a $7.2 million gain ($4.7 million net of tax) from the sale of GlobespanVirata, 
Inc. (“Globespan”) common stock. The Globespan common stock sold represented a portion of the consideration paid by Globespan 
to the Company for its Wireless Networking product group (“Wireless”) (see Note 19).  
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   Year Ended

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005

Numerator:       

Net income   $ 45,837  $ 40,681  $ 85,877
            

Denominator:       

Denominator for basic earnings per share—weighted average common 
shares outstanding   137,291   140,860   142,208

Effect of dilutive securities stock options   3,140   2,484   2,731
Deferred stock units   59   240   200
Warrants   777   16   79

            

Denominator for diluted earnings per share—adjusted weighted 
average shares outstanding   141,267   143,600   145,219

            

Basic income per share  $ 0.33  $ 0.29  $ 0.60
            

Diluted income per share   $ 0.32  $ 0.28  $ 0.59
            

   Year Ended

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005

Gain from sale of former related party available-for-sale securities (see 
Note 2.2.1)   $ 1.8  $ 3.8  $ —  

Gain from sale of a cost method investment   0.6   —     —  
Gain from sale of Globespan available-for-sale securities (see below)    7.2   —     —  
Loss from write down of cost method investment (see below)    (13.0)  —     —  

    
 

       

Total gain (loss) from investments   $ (3.4) $ 3.8  $ —  
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During fiscal year 2003, the Company recorded a write down of $13.0 million related to an investment, which is accounted for 

under the cost method of accounting as the Company holds less than 20% ownership and can not exercise significant influence over 
the investee. The impairment reflects the excess of the investment’s carrying value over the estimated undiscounted cash flows 
resulting from the eventual disposal of the securities. The primary reason for the impairment was a corporate reorganization, which 
included a headcount reduction that affected personnel who were key contributors to the investment’s future. Furthermore, a change 
in market focus ensued that we believed would eliminate a large portion of the investment’s projected market opportunity.  

During fiscal year 2004, the Company sold all of its holdings in a former related party for a realized gain of $3.8 million ($2.4 
million net of tax). Proceeds from the sale were $8.7 million.  

NOTE 8—XICOR ACQUISITION  
8.1) Summary—On July 29, 2004, Intersil acquired 100% of Xicor, Inc. for securities and cash. Xicor designed and produced 

primarily power management semiconductor products. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting 
and, accordingly, the results of operations of Xicor have been included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements since 
the acquisition date.  

8.2) Consideration and allocation of purchase price—The total purchase price for accounting purposes was $499 million. The 
consideration to acquire Xicor consisted of cash, common stock, warrants and options to purchase common stock as follows ($ in 
millions):  
  

The purchase price allocation for Xicor is as summarized as follows ($ in millions):  
  

The acquired in-process research and development was expensed at the time of acquisition  

NOTE 9—RESTRUCTURINGS  
This note serves to outline each of the Company’s material or current restructuring plans as authorized by the Board of 

Directors. Each plan is discussed individually, and the relevant financial implications are summarized in the tables following each 
discussion. In the table below, amounts identified as “additions” represent accruals recorded via the income statement, while amounts 
identified as “utilizations” represent cash expenditures reducing such accruals. Restructuring expense in shown in the line item 
“Restructurings” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.  
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Cash paid to Xicor shareholders   $232 
Intersil Class A common stock issued    221 
Fair value of stock options and stock warrants issued    63 
Transaction costs incurred    5 
Unearned stock-based compensation    (22)

    
 

Total purchase price   $499 
    

 

Tangible assets, net   $ 13
Tax assets    58
Acquired in-process research and development    31
Identified intangibles    23
Goodwill    374

    

Total purchase price   $499
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July 2004  

In July 2004, the Company announced a restructuring plan to streamline its manufacturing and support functions. The 
restructuring plan included the termination of employment of approximately 12% of the workforce. The terms of the relevant 
severance benefits were outlined in the pre-existing employee benefit policies of the Company. As the severance obligation is 
probable and reasonably estimable and is a vested right attributable to the employees’ service already rendered, the Company 
recorded restructuring charges within continuing operations of $6.1 million during the quarter ended October 1, 2004 for the 
severance benefits it was obligated to pay in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 112, “Employers’ Accounting for 
Postemployment Benefits.” In connection with the restructuring, approximately 200 employees were notified that their employment 
would be terminated and were apprised of the specifics of their severance benefits. The affected positions included manufacturing, 
research and development, and selling, general and administrative employees. As of December 31, 2005, all of the affected positions 
had been terminated.  

March 2005  
In March 2005, the Company announced a restructuring plan to further streamline its operations and reduce costs. The 

restructuring plan included the termination of employment of approximately 100 employees. The terms of the relevant severance 
benefits were outlined in the pre-existing employee benefit policies of the Company. As the severance obligation is probable and 
reasonably estimable and is a vested right attributable to the employees’ service already rendered, the Company recorded 
restructuring charges within continuing operations of $2.8 million during the quarter ended April 1, 2005 for the severance benefits it 
was obligated to pay in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 112. In connection with the restructuring, the employees were 
notified that their employment would be terminated and were apprised of the specifics of their severance benefits. The affected 
positions included manufacturing, research and development, and selling, general and administrative employees. As of December 31, 
2005, all of the affected positions had been terminated.  
  

NOTE 10—IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS  
The Company recorded an impairment of long-lived assets of approximately $13 million ($8 million net of tax) during fiscal 

2003. This primarily consisted of an $11 million ($6 million net of tax) write down of certain definite-lived intangible assets, which 
were tested for impairment following the sale of the Wireless Networking product group. Specifically, the Company impaired a 
portion of its customer base and developed technology balances that resulted from the purchase of the net assets of Harris 
Corporation’s semiconductor business. The impairments were measured as the excess of the assets’ carrying value over the assets fair 
value as determined by the present value of cash flows arising from the assets in accordance with SFAS 144. Prior to this impairment 
these assets had a combined carrying value of approximately $33 million. Also included in the aforementioned  
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   Restructurings  
   July 2004  March 2005 
   ($ in millions)  

Balance, January 2, 2004   $ —    $ —   
Additions    6.1   —   
Utilizations    (4.1)  —   

    
 

   
 

Balance, December 31, 2004    2.0   —   
Additions    —     2.8 
Utilizations    (1.8)  (2.8)

    
 

   
 

Balance, December 30, 2005   $ 0.2  $ —   
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$13 million impairment was a $2.0 million impairment ($1 million net of tax) related to the write-off of a prepaid technology royalty 
for which the technology was deemed unusable. The write-off reduced the value of the prepaid royalty to zero. This treatment is in 
accordance with SFAS 144.  

In fiscal 2004, the Company announced that it would move all internal volume of a certain wafer process to an outside provider. 
Due to this change in manufacturing usage, the Company recorded an impairment of approximately $27 million ($17 million net of 
tax) on certain production equipment and other assets. The impairment was calculated as the excess of the assets’ carrying value over 
its fair value as determined by the market prices of these types of assets. In fiscal 2004 and 2005, the Company reversed $0.8 million 
and $0.6 million of the impairment on this equipment, respectively, as the actual selling price of certain assets exceeded the impaired 
value.  

All impairments described above relate to continuing operations and are contained within the caption “Impairment (gain) of 
long-lived assets” on the face of the Consolidated Statements of Operations.  

NOTE 11—OTHER LOSSES (GAINS)  
During fiscal 2004, Hurricanes Frances and Jeanne damaged the Company’s Palm Bay, Florida facilities. The Company began 

repairs to the facilities during September 2004 and the majority of the work was completed by the end of fiscal year 2004. The 
Company recorded $2.7 million in losses related to the reconstruction costs incurred and those contracted for in order to fully restore 
the facilities to their original usefulness. The remaining $0.7 million contained in the “other loss” line item on the Condensed 
Consolidated Statements of Operations is recognition of a loss on a licensing agreement. During fiscal 2005, the Company received a 
$2 million insurance claim payment relating to damages caused by the aforementioned hurricanes.  

NOTE 12—SEGMENT INFORMATION  
The Company operates and accounts for its results in one reportable segment. The Company designs, develops, manufacturers 

and markets high performance integrated circuits. The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker as defined by SFAS 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” Further, we utilize one 
reportable segment in accordance with the aggregation provision of SFAS 131.  

NOTE 13—LEASES AND COMMITMENTS  
Total rental expense from continuing operations amounted to $7.8 million, $6.9 million and $7.1 million for fiscal 2003, 2004 

and 2005, respectively. Future minimum lease commitments under non-cancelable operating leases primarily related to land and 
office buildings amounted to approximately $16.7 million at December 30, 2005.  

The following table sets forth the Company’s future contractual obligations and off balance sheet arrangements as of 
December 30, 2005 ($ in millions):  
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   2006   2007   2008   2009   2010   Thereafter

Future minimum lease commitments   $ 4.2  $3.3  $2.8  $2.7  $2.4  $ 1.3
Open capital asset purchase commitments 

   7.1   
—

     
—

    
—

     
—

   —  
Open raw material purchase commitments 

   16.0   
—

     
—

    
—

     
—

   —  
Standby letters of credit

   3.4   
—

     
—

     
—

     
—
     —  

                        

  $30.7  $3.3  $2.8  $2.7  $2.4  $ 1.3
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Future minimum lease commitments consist primarily of leases for buildings and other real property. Open raw material 

purchase commitments are comprised of purchase orders for foundry wafers, silicon wafers, as well other miscellaneous expense 
items. The Company utilizes standby letters of credit primarily for security for workers compensation, environmental items, and 
electricity as well as for security for our vendors.  

NOTE 14—COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDENDS  
14.1) Common Stock—Intersil shareholders approved an Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation in 2005 that 

restated the Company’s authorized capital stock to consist of 600 million shares of Intersil Class A common stock, par value $0.01 
per share, and 2 million shares of preferred stock. Holders of Class A common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held. The 
Board of Directors has broad discretionary authority to designate the terms of the preferred stock should it be issued.  

On July 29, 2004, in connection with the acquisition of Xicor, Intersil reserved 547,887 shares of Intersil Class A common stock 
in conjunction with its exchange of warrants for the warrants outstanding to purchase 922,461 shares of Xicor common stock. Under 
terms of the acquisition agreement each warrant holder is entitled to receive $8.00 and 0.335 shares of Intersil Class A common stock 
in exchange for each outstanding Xicor stock warrant with an exercise price of $12.24 per share. As of December 30, 2005, all 
547,887 shares of Intersil Class A Common Stock remained to be issued pursuant to these warrants.  

During 2005, the Company retired its treasury stock and adopted the policy of immediately retiring shares of its Class A 
common stock that it repurchases under plans approved by the Company’s Board of Directors (see Note 15).  

The table below summarizes the Class A common stock issuance and retirement activity for all periods presented:  
  

14.2) Dividends—In September 2003, the Board of Directors declared the Company’s first dividend, of $0.03 per share, which 
was paid in November 2003. Subsequent to that time the Company has paid a regular quarterly dividend, which was increased to 
$0.04 per share in the fourth quarter of 2004 and to $0.05 per share in the fourth quarter of 2005. Dividends in the future will be 
declared at the discretion of the Board of Directors upon consideration of business conditions, liquidity and outlook.  

Dividends paid were $4.2 million, $18.5 million and $24.2 million in fiscal 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.  
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   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  
   (shares in thousands)  

Beginning Balance   129,140  139,331  151,849 
Shares issued under stock plans   2,727  2,399  3,657 
Conversion from formerly authorized Class B shares   7,787  —    —   
Purchase of Xicor   —    10,110  —   
Treasury shares retired   (1,373) —    (12,972)
Repurchase and retirement of shares   —    —    (1,483)
Exercised warrants   1,050  9  —   

   
 

     
 

Ending Balance   139,331  151,849  141,051 
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NOTE 15—TREASURY SHARES; SHARE REPURCHASES  

Since 2001, the Company has been repurchasing its own Class A common shares on the open market acting under plans 
authorized by the Board of Directors. The primary purpose of the share repurchases has been to return cash generated by the business 
to shareholders. A secondary objective has been to offset the dilution from employee stock option exercises.  

The following table presents a summary of the stock repurchase programs that have been authorized by the Board of Directors 
since this strategy has been adopted:  
  

The number of shares to be repurchased and the timing of purchases will be based on a variety of factors, including general 
market conditions and the market price and trading volume of its shares. In 2005, concurrent with the November program 
authorization by the Board, the Company retired all treasury shares then held and plans to immediately retire shares repurchased in 
the future. No treasury shares had ever been reissued.  

The following tables summarize stock repurchase activity during fiscal year 2004 and 2005 (at cost and in millions, except share 
amounts):  
  

NOTE 16—DEFERRED STOCK UNITS AND UNEARNED COMPENSATION  
The Board of Directors has established minimum common stock ownership requirements for the CEO and other key executives. 

The ownership requirement established for the Chief Executive Officer is four times his base salary. For other key executives, the 
ownership requirement is two times their base salary. The CEO and other key executives have a five-year period over which to 
achieve the targeted ownership requirement. In order to achieve this level of ownership, the Company continued to issue deferred 
stock units (“DSU’s”) in 2005 to the affected individuals. The issuance of DSU’s is in conjunction with a decrease in the issuance of 
stock options.  
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Plan Approval   Plan Term   
Approved 
Amount   

Repurchased 
Amount

March 2001   21 months   $50 million   $50 million
September 2003   1 year   $100 million   $100 million
September 2004   1 year   $150 million   $150 million
November 2005 

  

1 year
  

$150 million
  

$37.5 million by 
December 30, 2005 

      

Total: $337.5 million by 
December 30, 2005 

  
Cost of 
shares   

Number of 
Treasury shares 

Treasury shares as of January 2, 2004  $ 30.0  1,157,100 
Treasury shares repurchased   127.7 6,921,570 
Treasury shares retired   —    —   

   
 

  
 

Treasury shares as of December 31, 2004  $ 157.7  8,078,670 
Treasury shares repurchased   90.2  4,893,263 
Treasury shares retired   (247.9) (12,971,933)

   
 

  
 

Treasury shares as of December 30, 2005  $ —    —   
   

 

  

 

Shares repurchased and simultaneously 
retired:  

  Fiscal 2005  
Cost          $37.5  
Number of shares  1,482,488  
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The number of DSU’s and their weighted-average fair values at the time of issuance is summarized below:  

  

The DSU’s entitle the executives to receive one share of Intersil Class A common stock for each DSU issued, provided the 
executives are employed at Intersil or continuing their Board service on the third anniversary of the grant date. DSU’s receive 
dividends declared and paid.  

According to the provisions of FASB Interpretation No 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock 
Compensation,” the issuance of DSU’s requires compensation expense to be measured upon issuance and recognized evenly over the 
three-year vesting period. Accordingly, the Company recorded $1.7 million in unearned compensation within the shareholders’ equity 
section of the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet during fiscal 2005. The unearned compensation was calculated by multiplying 
the closing share price on the day of issuance by the number of DSU’s issued. Upon acceleration of vesting of DSU’s the remainder 
of the unamortized fair value is charged to current operations. Upon the cancellation of DSU’s, the remainder of the unamortized fair 
value is reversed from the unearned compensation account. Unearned compensation is recorded within the shareholders’ equity 
portion of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. As of December 30, 2005, the Company’s unearned compensation balance was the result 
of issuances of the aforementioned deferred stock units as well the issuance of unvested stock options as part of purchase-method 
acquisitions.  

Recognized amortization of unearned compensation from continuing operations and expected amortization from currently issued 
grants is presented in the following table:  
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Fiscal year   DSU’s issued  

Weighted-
average 

fair value

2003   132,600  $ 16.17
2004   165,200  $ 21.74
2005   101,000  $ 17.19

   DSU Amortization
   Fiscal Year  $ in millions

Recognized amortization   2003  $ 12.0
  2004  $ 11.5
  2005  $ 15.2

Expected amortization   2006   $ 7.8
  2007   $ 1.3
  2008   $ 0.2
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NOTE 17—INCOME TAXES  

17.1) Income tax expense (benefit)—The provision (benefit) for income taxes from continuing operations is summarized below 
($ in thousands):  
  

The benefit related to tax deductions from the exercise of non-qualified stock options is recorded as an increase to additional 
paid-in capital when realized. As a result of the exercise of non-qualified stock options, the Company realized tax benefits of 
approximately $4.9 million, $7.6 million and $12.2 million during fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.  

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations as follows ($ in 
thousands):  
  

17.2) Deferred income taxes—The components of deferred income tax assets (liabilities) are as follows ($ in thousands):  
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   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Current taxes:     

Federal   $ 16,900  $ 1,535  $ 12,794 
State    2,903   (2,327)  4,346 
Foreign   1,562   3,176  4,902 

    
 

   
 

   
 

   21,365   2,384   22,042 
Deferred taxes:     

Federal    (449)  (11,518)  11,032 
State   (17)  1,998  (790)

    
 

   
 

   
 

   (466)  (9,520)  10,242 
             

Income tax expense (benefit)  $ 20,899  $ (7,136) $ 32,284 
    

 
   

 
   

 

   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Income tax expense (benefit) from continuing operations   $ 20,899  $ (7,136) $ 32,284 
Income tax expense (benefit) from discontinued operations   32,603   764   (126)

             

Total income tax expense (benefit)   $ 53,502  $ (6,372) $ 32,158 
        

 
   

 

   December 31, 2004   December 30, 2005  

   Current   
Non- 

Current  Current   
Non- 

Current  
Receivables   $ 339  $ —   $ 62  $ —   
Inventory    28,535   —     18,539   —   
Fixed assets   —    427   —     2,778 
Accrued expenses   14,301  54   14,248   —   
Net operating loss carryforward   —    42,557   —     27,749 
Capitalized research and development   —    10,612   —     8,376 
Tax credits   —    25,354   —     26,113 
All other, net   —    9,422   —     12,347 

        
 

       
 

Deferred tax assets   43,175  88,426   32,849   77,363 
Deferred tax liabilities: Intangibles   —    (19,566)  —     (11,501)

                 

Net deferred tax assets   $43,175  $ 68,860  $32,849  $ 65,862 
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None of our deferred income tax assets related to discontinued operations.  

17.3) Income tax rate reconciliation—A reconciliation of the statutory United States income tax rate to the Company’s 
effective income tax rate follows:  
  

17.4) Other income tax information  
Pretax income of international subsidiaries was $25.5 million, $31.6 million and $53.0 million during fiscal years 2003, 2004 

and 2005, respectively.  

Income taxes paid were $2.1 million, $11.6 million and $9.0 million during fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively.  

The Company has completed an analysis of projected future taxable income and determined that all deferred tax assets, 
including net operating loss carryforwards (NOL’s) and tax-credit carryforwards, are more than likely to be utilized in the foreseeable 
future. Therefore, no valuation allowances have been provided on any deferred tax assets as of December 30, 2005 and December 31, 
2004. The Company has gross NOL’s of approximately $79 million from acquisitions that expire in years 2006 through 2024. The 
annual utilization of these NOL’s are limited pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382.  

U.S. income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of international subsidiaries because of Intersil’s intention 
to reinvest these earnings. In October 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act (“the AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA provided 
for a deduction of 85% of certain foreign earnings that are repatriated, as defined in the AJCA, effectively reducing the U.S. income 
rate on such actions. In December 2005, the Board of Directors authorized the repatriation, pursuant to the AJCA, of $150 million of 
accumulated foreign earnings. The Company completed the repatriation by the end of its fiscal 2005. As a result of the repatriation, 
the Company recorded an additional tax expense of $6.6 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. Determination of the remaining 
foreign earnings deemed to be permanently reinvested is not practicable.  

NOTE 18—GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION, CONCENTRATION OF RISK AND SEGMENTS  
18.1) Geographic Information—Intersil operates exclusively in the semiconductor industry and primarily the analog sector 

therein. Substantially all revenues result from the sale of semiconductor products. All intercompany revenues and balances have been 
eliminated.  
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   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Statutory U.S. income tax rate   35.0% 35.0%  35.0%
State taxes   3.6  (0.9)  1.7 
International income   (9.5)  (17.6)  (11.6)
Benefit related to export sales for tax purposes   (2.4)  (6.6)  (1.3)
Research credits  (5.2) (15.0)  (4.9)
In-process research and development  —  32.9  —   
Cost method investment impairment   5.8  —    —   
Sale of cost method investment   —   (5.4)  —   
Subpart F—interest & stock gains   2.7  6.9  2.7 
IRS audit settlement   —   (47.3)  —   
Tax-exempt interest   (1.7)  (4.5)  (1.1)
Repatriation dividend   —   —   5.5 
Other items  (2.0) 1.3  1.1 

   
 

  
 

  
 

Effective income tax rate   26.3% (21.2)% 27.1%
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A summary of the operations by geographic area is summarized below (in thousands):  

  

18.2) Concentrations of Operational Risk—Intersil markets its products for sale to customers, including distributors, primarily 
in China, the U. S., Taiwan and Japan. Credit is extended based on an evaluation of the customer’s financial condition and collateral 
is generally not required. The table below shows sales by country where such value exceeded 10% in any one year:  
  

In addition to those in the table above, customers in each of South Korea, Germany, Singapore, Thailand, Philippines, Malaysia, 
Italy, United Kingdom, France and the Netherlands accounted for at least 1% of the Company’s sales. In fiscal 2005, three 
distributors, each accounting for at least 5% of the Company’s sales, totaled 26% of sales. One of these distributors in Asia, Teco, 
accounted for 12% of sales during fiscal 2005 and net accounts receivable at December 30, 2005. These distributors support a wide 
range of customers in Asia, North America and Europe.  

NOTE 19—DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  
19.1) Wireless Networking sale—The Company sold its Wireless product group in August 2003 to Globespan with the 

appropriate authority of the Board of Directors. Initial proceeds from the transaction included $250.0 million in cash and $114.4 
million in Globespan common stock. These shares represented less than 20% of the voting shares of Globespan. The Company sold 
all of its Globespan shares in the same quarter in which it received them as consideration. The Company retained the Wireless 
accounts receivable and accounts payable balances that existed at the time of sale. The Company recorded a gain of $61.4 million 
($28.0 million net of tax) during fiscal 2003. The gain was calculated as the proceeds less $259.6 million of the product group’s net 
assets, $19.8 million of patent defense legal fees, $12.2 million of transaction costs, and $11.4 million in charges for employee stock 
option acceleration. Additionally, the Company accrued approximately $19.8 million for the estimated legal costs to be incurred in 
defense of patent litigations. As of December 30, 2005, the Company had approximately $2.7 million of accruals related to future 
patent defense costs. The Company recorded an additional gain of $6.9 million ($4.2 million net of tax) from discontinued operations 
in fiscal 2004 primarily due to the finalization of a contingent working capital adjustment and an additional loss of $1.1 million ($0.9 
million net of tax) from discontinued operations in fiscal 2005 primarily due to the finalization of foreign taxes from the transaction.  
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   Year Ended

   
January 2, 

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005

United States Operations       

Net sales   $126,411  $ 130,035  $ 133,748
Tangible long-lived assets   150,616  97,250  86,903

International Operations       
Net sales    381,273   405,740   466,507
Tangible long-lived assets   2,794  4,104  9,708

   Year Ended  

   
January 2,

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Sales by country for continuing operations     

China   24% 20% 33%
United States   25  24  22 
Taiwan   13  15  10 
Japan   12  12  7 
All Other   26  29  28 
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19.2) Agere settlement—The Company reached a settlement with Agere Systems Corporation (“Agere”) and all pending 

litigations between the two companies have been settled under mutually agreeable terms. As part of the confidential agreement, 
Intersil recorded an expense of $5.8 million ($5.0 million after-tax) as a result of this settlement. This charge has been reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2004 as part of discontinued operations since it stemmed from the Wireless 
group.  

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 144, the Company has not included the results of operations of its Wireless 
Networking product group in the results from continuing operations. The results of operations for this product group have been 
reflected in discontinued operations through the date of the sale.  

The income (loss) from discontinued operations is presented below ($ in thousands):  
  

NOTE 20—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS  
20.1) Equity Compensation Plan—In 1999 Intersil adopted the 1999 Equity Compensation Plan (“Plan”). The Plan authorizes 

the grant of options for up to 22.25 million shares of Intersil Class A common stock and can include (i) options intended to constitute 
incentive stock options under the Internal Revenue Code, (ii) non-qualified stock options, (iii) restricted stock, (iv) stock appreciation 
rights, and (v) phantom share awards. In addition to the Plan, the Company has outstanding stock options from the plans of certain 
acquired companies. The tables below show the consolidated status of the Company’s stock options from the Plan and plans of the 
acquired companies. No further options shall be granted from the acquired companies plans.  

The exercise price of each option granted under the Plan shall be determined by a committee of the Board of Directors. The 
maximum term of any option shall be 10 years from the date of grant for incentive stock options and 10 years and one day from the 
date of grant for non-qualified stock options. Options granted under the Plan are exercisable at the determination of the Board of 
Directors currently vesting ratably over approximately four years. Employees receiving options under the Plan may not receive in any 
one-year period options to purchase more than 666,667 shares of common stock.  
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   Year Ended  

   
January 2, 

2004   
December 31,

2004   
December 30,

2005  

Revenues   $120,821  $ —    $ —   
Costs of products sales    78,264   —     —   
Research and development   39,801  —     —   
Selling, general and administrative    16,516   —     —   
Amortization of intangible assets    1,254   —     —   
Amortization of unearned compensation    285   —     —   
Impairment of long-lived assets    15,928   —     —   
Restructuring    201   —     —   

             

Operating income (loss)    (31,428)  —     —   
Gain from sale of product group    61,411   1,092   —   
Settlement of foreign tax liability    —     —     (1,071)
Loss on investments    10,000   —     —   

             

Income (loss) before taxes    19,983   1,092   (1,071)
Income tax provision (benefit)    32,603   764   (126)

    
 

       
 

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations   $ (12,620) $ 328  $ (945)
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A summary of the activity and status of the Company’s stock options is presented in the table below:  

  

This table contains information with respect to stock options outstanding and stock options exercisable, presented in exercise 
price ranges:  
  

20.2) Employee Stock Purchase Plan—In 2000, Intersil adopted the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) whereby eligible 
employees can purchase shares of Intersil’s common stock. Intersil has reserved 2,333,334 shares of common stock for issuance 
under the ESPP. The Company had 792,746 shares available for issuance under the plan as of December 30, 2005. The ESPP permits 
employees to purchase common stock  
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  Year Ended
  January 2, 2004  December 31, 2004  December 30, 2005

  
Shares  

(in thousands)  

Weighted
Average 
Exercise 

Price  
Shares  

(in thousands)  

Weighted
Average  
Exercise 

Price  
Shares  

(in thousands)  

Weighted
Average  
Exercise 

Price

Outstanding at beginning of period  19,344  $ 21.56 17,889  $ 22.43 24,612  $ 19.37
Granted  3,572   22.17 10,839   13.47 4,805  18.74
Exercised  (2,501)  8.79 (2,062)  8.34 (3,383) 10.67
Canceled  (2,526)  28.86 (2,054)  25.99 (2,421) 23.82

                  

Outstanding at end of period  17,889   22.43 24,612   19.37 23,613   20.03
  

 
     

 
     

 
   

Exercisable at end of period  9,611   22.12 12,783   19.86 15,844  21.34
                  

Weighted average fair value of options granted(1)   $ 14.83  $ 12.28  $ 7.15
            

(1) As explained in footnote 2.10, the Company began valuing newly issued stock options using the lattice method in the last 
quarter of fiscal 2004. Prior to that, newly issued stock options were valued using the Black-Scholes method. 

   
Number  

Outstanding   

Weighted  
Average  

Remaining 
Contractual

Life   

Weighted
Average  
Exercise 

Price   
Number  

Exercisable   

Weighted
Average  
Exercise 

Price
   (in thousands)        (in thousands)   

Exercise price range as of December 31, 2004           

Less than $15.01   6,836  6.40  $ 7.25  4,844  $ 6.92
$15.01-$20.00   6,769  7.66  $ 17.44  1,569  $ 17.57
$20.01-$25.00   3,933  7.12  $ 23.60  1,824  $ 23.59
$25.01-$30.00   3,365  7.52  $ 26.70  2,020  $ 26.91
Greater than $30.00   3,709  6.17  $ 37.22  2,526  $ 37.77

            

  24,612      12,783  

Exercise price range as of December 30, 2005          
Less than $15.01   4,427  5.58  $ 7.17  3,599  $ 6.96
$15.01-$20.00   8,732  6.53  $ 17.44  3,175  $ 17.28
$20.01-$25.00   4,725  6.28  $ 23.15  3,496  $ 23.66
$25.01-$30.00   3,058  6.50  $ 26.65  2,903  $ 26.66
Greater than $30.00   2,671  5.24  $ 36.71  2,671  $ 36.71

            

  23,613      15,844  
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through payroll deductions, which may not exceed 10% of an employee’s compensation, at a price not less than 85% of the market 
value of the stock on specified dates. In no event, may any participant purchase more than $25,000 worth of shares in any calendar 
year and an employee may purchase no more than 16,667 shares on any purchase date. Unless sooner terminated by the Board, the 
ESPP shall terminate upon the earliest of (1) February 28, 2010, (2) the date on which all shares available for issuance under the 
ESPP shall have been sold pursuant to purchase rights exercised under the ESPP, or (3) the date on which all purchase rights are 
exercised in connection with a Corporate Transaction (as defined in the ESPP). As of December 31, 2004 and December 30, 2005, 
approximately 1,276,000 and 1,543,000, shares had been issued under the ESPP, respectively.  

NOTE 21—RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS  
21.1) FASB Statement 123R: Share-Based Payment—In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123R, which is a revision 

of SFAS 123. SFAS 123R supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and its interpretations, and 
amends FASB’s Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally, the approach to accounting for share-based payments in 
SFAS 123R is similar to the fair-value approach permitted in SFAS 123. However, SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to 
employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values (i.e., 
pro forma disclosure will no longer be an alternative to financial statement recognition). SFAS 123R allows for either prospective 
recognition of compensation expense or retrospective recognition. The Company adopted SFAS 123R effective with its fiscal 2006 
year which began December 31, 2005. In October 2005, the Company took the action of mitigating a portion of the prospective effect 
on its financial statements through an acceleration of certain unvested stock options. This acceleration is expected to reduce the after-
tax stock option expense it would otherwise have been required to record by approximately $17.5 million over a three-year period 
(our fiscal 2006-2008, inclusive), of which approximately $10.1 million would have been recorded in fiscal 2006. Even with this 
acceleration action, the application of SFAS 123R will have a negative effect on consolidated net income. In a press release dated 
January 25, 2006, the Company estimated this negative effect on the first quarter of fiscal 2006 to be approximately $0.05 of diluted 
net income per share.  

In August 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 123R-1, “Classification and Measurement of Freestanding 
Financial Instruments Originally Issued as Employee Compensation.” This FSP defers the requirement of SFAS 123R that a 
freestanding financial instrument originally subject to SFAS 123R becomes subject to the recognition and measurement requirements 
of other applicable generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) when the rights conveyed by the instrument to the holder are no 
longer dependent on the holder being an employee of the entity. Under the provisions of the FSP, a freestanding financial instrument 
originally issued as employee compensation shall be subject to the recognition and measurement provisions of SFAS123R throughout 
the life of the instrument, unless its terms are modified subsequent to the time the rights conveyed by the instrument are no longer 
dependent on the individual being an employee.  

In October 2005, the FASB issued FSP 123R-2, “Practical Accommodation to the Application of Grant Date as Defined in 
FASB Statement No. 123R.” This FSP provides guidance with regard to the determination of the “grant date” of a share-based 
payment instrument by expanding on the meaning of the parties reaching a “mutual understanding” of the terms and conditions of 
such award.  

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP 123R-3, “Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-
Based Payment Awards.” This FSP provides a practical transition election related to accounting for the tax effects of share-based 
payment awards to employees. This matter has to do with the ability (or lack thereof) of entities to quantify their “APIC pool” of 
excess tax benefits which may be available to absorb tax deficiencies recognized after the adoption of SFAS 123R.  
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In February 2006, the FASB issued FSP 123R-4, “Classification of Options and Similar Instruments Issued as Employee 

Compensation that Allow for Cash Settlement upon the Occurrence of a Contingent Event.” This FSP addresses the classification of 
options and other instruments that are issued as share-based payments that allow for cash settlement upon the occurrence of a 
contingent event. This guidance amends the requirement that any opportunity or circumstance permitting settlement of the instrument 
in cash would cause its classification to be as a liability on an entity’s balance sheet.  

21.2) FASB Statement No. 154: Accounting Changes And Error Corrections—In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS 154, 
“Accounting Changes and Error Corrections”, a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, and SFAS 3, “Reporting 
Accounting Changes in Interim Financial Statements”. The Statement applies to all voluntary changes in accounting principle, and 
changes the requirements for accounting for and reporting of a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 requires retrospective 
application to prior periods’ financial statements of a voluntary change in accounting principle unless it is impracticable. Opinion 20 
previously required that most voluntary changes in accounting principle be recognized by including in net income of the period of the 
change the cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. SFAS 154 also requires that a change in method of 
depreciation, amortization, or depletion for long-lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate that is 
affected by a change in accounting principle. Opinion 20 previously required that such a change be reported as a change in accounting 
principle.  

SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. 
The Company adopted SFAS 154 effective with its fiscal 2006 year which began on December 31, 2005 and does not anticipate any 
effect of this pronouncement on its statements of operations.  

21.3) Exposure Draft on Earnings Per Share—an Amendment to FAS 128—In December 2004, the FASB decided to defer 
the issuance of their final standard on earnings per share (EPS) entitled “Earnings per Share—an Amendment to FAS 128.” In 
September 2005, the FASB issued its further deliberations on this subject as an Exposure Draft (“ED”) of the same name. A final 
standard is expected to be adopted in 2006. The significant proposed changes to the EPS computation are changes to the treasury 
stock method and contingent share guidance for computing year-to-date EPS, removal of the ability to overcome the presumption of 
share settlement when computing diluted EPS when there is a choice of share or cash settlement and inclusion of mandatorily 
convertible securities in basic EPS. Additionally, the ED proposed further changes of a complex and technical nature in the 
application of SFAS 128. We are currently evaluating the proposed provisions of this amendment to determine the impact on our 
consolidated financial statements.  

21.4) FSP’s FAS 115-1 and 124-1—In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP 115-1 and 124-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments.” This FSP addresses the determination as to when an investment 
is considered impaired, whether that impairment is temporary, and the measurement of an impairment loss. Further it includes 
accounting considerations subsequent to the recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment and requires certain disclosures about 
unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary investments. We are currently evaluating the proposed 
provisions of this amendment to determine the impact on our consolidated financial statements.  

21.5) FASB Statement No. 155: Accounting for Hybrid Financial Instruments—In February 2006, the FASB issued 
SFAS 155, “Accounting for Hybrid Financial Instruments”, which is an amendment to SFAS 133 regarding derivative instruments 
and hedging activities and SFAS 140 regarding transfer and servicing of financial assets and the extinguishment of liabilities. SFAS 
155 permits the fair value re-measurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded derivative that otherwise 
would require bifurcation and clarifies that both interest-only and principal-only strips are not subject to the provision of SFAS 133. 
Further,  
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SFAS 155 establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding vs. 
those that are embedded derivatives. Other provisions relate to matters of concentration of credit risk and application of certain 
provisions to special purpose entities. The effective date for the provisions of SFAS 155 is for those instruments acquired or issued 
after the beginning of our fiscal year 2007. We are currently evaluating the provisions of this Statement to determine the impact on 
our consolidated financial statements.  

NOTE 22—SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN  
In August 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (“Rights Plan”). Under the Rights Plan, 

rights were distributed as a dividend at the rate of one right for each share of common stock of the Company. Until the occurrence of 
certain events, the rights are represented by and traded in tandem with the common stock. Each right will separate and entitle the 
shareholders to buy stock upon an occurrence of certain takeover or stock accumulation events. Should any person or group acquire 
beneficial ownership of 20% or more of the Company’s common stock, each right not held by the Acquiring Person becomes the right 
to purchase, at an exercise price of $115, that number of shares of the Company’s common stock that at the time of the transaction, 
have a market value of twice the exercise price. In addition, if after a person or group becomes an Acquiring Person the Company 
merges, consolidates or engages in a similar transaction in which it does not survive, each holder has a “flip-over” right to buy 
discounted stock in the acquiring company.  

Under certain circumstances, the rights are redeemable by the Company at a price of $0.0001 per right. Further, if any person or 
group becomes an Acquiring Person, the Board of Directors has the option to exchange one share of common stock for each right 
held by any Person other than the Acquiring Person. The rights expire on August 29, 2006. Currently the Company has not 
determined to extend or renew these rights.  

In connection with the adoption of a Stock Purchase Rights Plan, the Board of Directors adopted a resolution creating a series of 
25,000 shares of preferred stock designated as Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock. As of December 30, 2005, none of the 
shares were issued or outstanding.  

NOTE 23—GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS  
In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for 

Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” the provisions related to recognizing a liability at inception of 
a guarantee for the fair value of the guarantor’s obligations do not apply to product warranties or to guarantees accounted for as 
derivatives.  

23.1) Warranty—Intersil provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While the 
Company engages in extensive product quality programs and processes, including actively monitoring and evaluating the quality of 
its suppliers, the estimated warranty obligation is affected by ongoing product failure rates and material usage costs incurred in 
correcting a product failure. If actual product failure rates or material usage costs differ from estimates, revisions to the estimated 
warranty liability would be required. The Company warrants that its products will be free from defects in material workmanship and 
possess the electrical characteristics to which the Company has committed. The warranty period is for one year following shipment. 
The Company estimates its warranty reserves based on historical warranty experience. It tracks returns by type and specifically 
identifies those returns that were based on product failures and similar occurrences. The Company’s warranty reserve has not changed 
materially from quarter to quarter.  
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Information regarding the changes in Intersil’s aggregate product warranty liabilities was the following for fiscal years 2004 and 

2005 ($ in thousands):  
  

23.2) Indemnifications—The Company sold its facility in Pennsylvania to Fairchild Semiconductor (Fairchild) in 2001. 
Fairchild subsequently alleged that trichloroethylene was discovered in the groundwater under that site, and has indicated that they 
will be seeking indemnification from Intersil. To the extent any contamination was caused prior to August 1999, Harris has 
indemnified Intersil against any associated environmental liabilities. Harris’ indemnification of us and our indemnification of 
Fairchild have no expiration date, nor do they have a maximum amount.  

The Harris facilities in Palm Bay, Florida, are listed on the National Priorities List (NPL) for groundwater clean up under the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liabilities Act, or Superfund. Intersil’s adjacent facility is included in 
the listing since it was owned by Harris at the time of the listing. Remediation activities associated with the NPL site have ceased. 
However, Harris is still obligated to conduct groundwater monitoring on the Company’s property for an unspecified period of time. 
Harris has indemnified Intersil against any environmental liabilities associated with this contamination. This indemnification does not 
expire, nor does it have a maximum amount.  

The Company’s former facility in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, which the Company sold in June 2000, has known groundwater 
contamination from past operations. The contamination was discovered in May 2000, during the closure activities associated with a 
former waste storage pad. This contamination has been attributed to activities conducted prior to Intersil’s acquisition of the facility 
from Harris. Harris is conducting additional investigations and some remediation may be required. Harris has indemnified Intersil 
against any environmental liabilities associated with this contamination, and Intersil likewise is indemnifying the purchaser against 
those liabilities. Harris’ indemnification of us and our indemnification of purchaser have no expiration date, nor do they have a 
maximum amount.  

The Company generally provides customers with a limited indemnification against intellectual property infringement claims 
related to the Company’s products. The Company accrues for known indemnification issues if a loss is probable and can be 
reasonably estimated, and accrues for estimated incurred but unidentified issues based on historical activity.  

In certain instances when we sell product groups, the Company may retain certain liabilities for known exposures and provide 
indemnification to the buyer with respect to future claims arising from events occurring prior to the sale date, including liabilities for 
taxes, legal matters, intellectual property infringement, environmental exposures and other obligations. The terms of the 
indemnifications vary in duration, from one to two years for certain types of indemnities, to terms for tax indemnifications that are 
generally aligned to the applicable statute of limitations for the jurisdiction in which the divestiture occurred, and terms for 
environmental indemnities that typically do not expire. The maximum potential future payments that the Company could be required 
to make under these indemnifications are either contractually limited to a specified  
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Balance, January 2, 2004   $ 1,247 
Accruals for warranties issued during the period    3,229 
Xicor warranty accrual acquired    245 
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the period    (2,842)

    
 

Balance, December 31, 2004   $ 1,879 
Accruals for warranties issued during the period    625 
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the period    (1,480)

    
 

Balance, December 30, 2005   $ 1,024 
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amount or unlimited. The Company believes that the maximum potential future payments that the Company could be required to 
make under these indemnifications are not determinable at this time, as any future payments would be dependent on the type and 
extent of the related claims, and all available defenses, which are not estimable.  

NOTE 24—LITIGATION MATTERS  
The Company is currently party to various claims and legal proceedings, including those discussed below. When the Company 

believes that a loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, the Company recognizes the estimated amount 
of the loss. The Company includes legal costs in its estimate of losses. As additional information becomes available, the Company 
will reassess any potential liability related to these matters and, if necessary, will revise its estimates.  

If the Company believes a loss is less than likely but more than remote, it will disclose the nature of the matter and, if possible, 
disclose its estimate of the possible loss. Although the Company considers the risk of loss from the legal proceedings discussed below 
to be less than likely but more than remote, it is unable to estimate the amount of possible losses resulting from these proceedings 
based on currently available information. The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of these matters, individually and in the 
aggregate will not have a material adverse effect on its financial position or overall trends in results of its operations. However, 
litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties and unfavorable rulings could occur, including an award of monetary damages or 
issuance of an injunction prohibiting the Company from selling one or more products. It is possible that an unfavorable ruling could 
have a material adverse impact on the results of the Company’s operations for the period in which the ruling occurs, or in future 
periods. Because the Company believes the defense of these matters to be probable, the Company has an accrual of $3.7 million as of 
December 30, 2005 for estimated costs to defend these positions, exclusive of settlement or judgment costs.  

The Company and certain of their present officers and directors as well as their lead initial public offering underwriter and lead 
underwriter of their September 2000 initial public offering, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, were named as defendants in 
several law suits, the first of which is a class action filed on June 8, 2001 in the United States District Court for the Southern District 
of New York. The complaints allege violations of Rule 10b-5 based on, among other things, the dissemination of statements 
containing material misstatements and/or omissions concerning the commissions received by the underwriters of the initial public 
offering, as well as failure to disclose the existence of purported agreements by the underwriters with some of the purchasers in these 
offerings to thereafter buy additional shares of Intersil in the open market at pre-determined prices above the offering prices. These 
lawsuits against the Company, as well as those alleging similar claims against other issuers in initial public offerings, have been 
consolidated for pre-trial purposes with a multitude of other securities related suits. In April 2002, the plaintiffs filed a consolidated 
amended complaint against the Company and certain of their officers and directors. The consolidated amended complaint pleads 
claims under both the 1933 Securities Act and under the 1934 Securities Exchange Act. In addition to the allegations of wrongdoing 
described above, plaintiffs also now allege that analysts employed by underwriters who were acting as investment bankers for the 
Company improperly touted the value of their shares during the relevant class period as part of the purported scheme to artificially 
inflate the value of their shares. In October 2002, the individual employee defendants were dismissed from the class action suit. The 
plaintiffs seek unspecified damages, litigation costs and expenses. A tentative settlement has recently been reached between the 
plaintiffs and all defendant stock issuers, with ongoing negotiations as to the specific terms of the settlement agreement. Under that 
agreement, the Company would not be required to pay any damages, expenses or litigation costs to the plaintiffs. When negotiations 
are completed and the parties have agreed upon the final terms of the settlement agreement, the agreement must be approved by the 
court before dismissal of the Company and other parties to  
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the agreement from the suit. On February 15, 2005, the Judge preliminarily approved the issuer’s settlement agreement. Final 
approval is subject to certain revisions requested by the Judge, notice to the affected class members, and a final hearing.  

Symbol Technologies, Inc. v. Intersil Corporation and Choice-Intersil Microsystems, Inc., Index No. 03-18971 (Supreme Court, 
Suffolk County, New York, filed July 23, 2003). In this action, Symbol seeks recovery under various indemnity theories for costs and 
attorneys fees allegedly incurred by Symbol in defending two federal court actions in which patent infringement was asserted against 
Symbol. Symbol contends that the Company and its former subsidiary Choice-Intersil Microsystems owe an indemnity obligation 
because components of systems accused of being used in an infringing manner were supplied by the Company or by Choice-Intersil 
Microsystems. The Company’s summary judgment motion recently was denied and trial is set for June 2006. Symbol seeks 
approximately $2.6 million in damages, plus pre-judgment interest which would increase the total claim to more than $4 million. The 
Company believes that it has fully honored its obligations to Symbol and intends to contest the case vigorously.  

On April 14, 2004, Freeport Partners, LLC (Freeport), a purported shareholder of Xicor, Inc. (Xicor), filed an action in the 
California Superior Court in Santa Clara County against Intersil, Xicor, Inc., and Xicor’s directors in connection with the acquisition 
of Xicor by Intersil. On June 4, 2004, Intersil was dismissed with prejudice as a defendant, and on July 9, 2004, the Court sustained 
Xicor’s demurrer with leave to amend. The Freeport suit was then consolidated with a similar suit flied by another plaintiff, and was 
renamed “In re Xicor. Inc. Shareholder Litigation.” On August 9, 2004, plaintiffs in the consolidated suit filed an amended complaint, 
which does not name Intersil as a party. On December 21, 2004, the Superior Court sustained Xicor’s demurrer without leave to 
amend, and on January 10, 2005, the Superior Court entered judgment dismissing Xicor with prejudice. On March 10, 2005, the 
plaintiffs filed a notice of appeal of the judgment dismissing Xicor. Intersil’s President and Chief Operating Officer, Louis DiNardo, 
remains a defendant in this suit along with Xicor’s former directors. Although Intersil and Xicor are no longer parties to this lawsuit, 
pursuant to its acquisition agreement with Xicor, Intersil assumed certain specified obligations to indemnify Xicor’s directors against 
claims, losses, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (including reasonable legal expenses) in connection with such lawsuits. On 
February 14, 2006, the Judge granted preliminary approval of the stipulated settlement agreement. A final approval hearing will take 
place on June 20, 2006.  

NOTE 25—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
Former related party—Intersil had a contract in place with an Asian company, which expired in mid-year fiscal 2005, in 

which they provide a specified percentage of Intersil’s test and package services. The terms of the contract were the result of arms-
length negotiations and, in the opinion of management, were no less favorable than those that could be obtained from non-affiliated 
parties. At the time the contract was entered into the companies shared a common board member and Intersil once held an equity 
position in the Asian company. Although the Company continues to procure a portion of its test and package services from this firm, 
it utilizes other vendors for these services as well.  

Purchases by the Company under this contract during fiscal years 2003, 2004 and 2005, the latter including the period of the 
fiscal year not under contract, were $50 million, $38 million and $44 million, respectively. The Company had $6.3 million of trade 
accounts payable to this entity as of December 31, 2004.  

NOTE 26—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS  
In January 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock. Payment 

of the dividend was made on February 17, 2006 to shareholders of record as of the close of business on February 8, 2006.  
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NOTE 27—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)  

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly financial information for the periods indicated:  
  

—End of Consolidated Financial Statements—  
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  Quarters Ended

  
April 2,

2004  
July 2, 
2004  

October 1,
2004   

December 31,
2004  

April 1, 
2005  

July 1,  
2005  

September 30,
2005  

December 30,
2005

  (In millions, except per share data)
Net sales  $137.4 $144.2 $ 127.0  $ 127.1 $128.1 $139.1 $ 157.5 $ 175.6
Gross profit   78.3  82.6 68.1   69.7  70.4  76.9  88.2  99.2
Net income (loss)  $ 27.4 $ 27.2 $ (29.6) $ 15.6 $ 12.8 $ 17.3 $ 27.0 $ 28.8

                         

Income (loss) per share (basic):  $ 0.20 $ 0.20 $ (0.21) $ 0.11 $ 0.09 $ 0.12 $ 0.19 $ 0.20
         

 
               

Income (loss) per share (diluted):  $ 0.19 $ 0.19 $ (0.21) $ 0.11 $ 0.09 $ 0.12 $ 0.19 $ 0.19
                         

a) On July 29, 2004, the Company acquired Xicor by issuing Intersil Class A common stock and cash to purchase 100% of the 
outstanding common stock of the Milpitas, California-based company. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase 
method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations of Xicor have been included in the accompanying Condensed 
Consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date. Please refer to Note 8 within the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for further discussion. 

b) The Company experienced no extraordinary items during the time periods presented above. Therefore net income(loss) is equal 
to income(loss) before extraordinary items for all periods presented. 

c) During fiscal 2004 the Company recorded an impairment charge and, in fiscal 2005, had a subsequent reversing gain. These 
charges or credits reduce or increase expenses in periods subsequent to their recording thus affecting comparability of the 
financial data. Please refer to Note 10 for further discussion. 

d) During fiscal 2004 and 2005, the Company recorded restructuring charges. These charges reduce expenses in periods subsequent 
to their recording thus affecting comparability of the financial data. Please refer to Note 9 for further discussion. 



Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  
None.  

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures  
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  

We conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and 
procedures” (Disclosure Controls) as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-K. The controls evaluation was conducted 
under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our CEO and CFO. Disclosure Controls are controls and 
procedures designed to reasonably assure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act, such 
as this Form 10-K, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the U.S. Securities and 
Exchange Commission’s (SEC’s) rules and forms. Disclosure Controls are also designed to reasonably assure that such information is 
accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding 
required disclosure. Our quarterly evaluation of Disclosure Controls includes an evaluation of some components of our internal 
control over financial reporting, and internal control over financial reporting is also separately evaluated on an annual basis for 
purposes of providing the management report, which is set forth below.  

The evaluation of our Disclosure Controls included a review of the controls’ objectives and design, the company’s 
implementation of the controls and the effect of the controls on the information generated for use in this Form 10-K. In the course of 
the controls evaluation, we reviewed identified data errors, control problems or acts of fraud and sought to confirm that appropriate 
corrective actions, including process improvements, were being undertaken. This type of evaluation is performed on a quarterly basis 
so that the conclusions of management, including the CEO and CFO, concerning the effectiveness of the Disclosure Controls can be 
reported in our periodic reports on Form 10-Q and Form 10-K. Many of the components of our Disclosure Controls are also evaluated 
on an ongoing basis by our Internal Audit, Finance and by other personnel. The overall goals of these various evaluation activities are 
to monitor our Disclosure Controls, and to modify them as necessary. Our intent is to maintain the Disclosure Controls as dynamic 
systems that change as conditions warrant.  

Based upon the controls evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this Form 10-
K, our Disclosure Controls were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange 
Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC, and that material 
information relating to Intersil and its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to management, including the CEO and CFO, 
particularly during the period when our periodic reports are being prepared.  

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
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Management assessed our internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2005, the end of our fiscal year. 
Management based its assessment on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Management’s assessment included evaluation of such elements as the 
design and operating effectiveness of key financial reporting controls, process documentation, accounting policies, and our overall 
control environment. This assessment is supported by testing and monitoring by our management and Internal Audit organizations.  

Based on our assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the 
end of the fiscal year to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. We reviewed the results of 
management’s assessment with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors.  

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, audited management’s assessment and independently 
assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting. Ernst & Young has issued an attestation report, 
which is included at the beginning of Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls  
The company’s management, including the CEO and CFO, does not expect that our Disclosure Controls or our internal control 

over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can 
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. The design of a control system must 
reflect the fact that the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all 
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or 
that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the 
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls 
can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of 
the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and 
there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Projections of 
any evaluation of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures.  

PART III  

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant  
The information required under this item with respect to our Directors will appear under the caption “Election of Directors (Item 

1 on Proxy Card)” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by us with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) and is 
hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.  

The information required under this item with respect to our Executive Officers will appear under the caption “Executive 
Officers and Key Employees” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by 
us with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically 
incorporated herein by reference thereto.  

The information required under this item with respect to the compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act will appear 
under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in the definitive  
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Proxy Statement relating to our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by us with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.  

The information required under this item with respect to our Audit Committee will appear under the captions “Corporate 
Governance: Committees of the Board” and “Audit Committee” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to our 2006 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange 
Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.  

We have adopted a Code of Ethics applicable to our Senior Financial Officers, including our principal executive officer, 
principal financial officer and corporate controller. A copy of the Code of Ethics is available at 
http://www.intersil.com/Corporate_Governance/intersil_code_of_ethics.pdf. Any amendment to, or waiver of, any provision of the 
Code of Ethics will be disclosed on our website within five business days following such amendment or waiver.  

Item 11. Executive Compensation  
The information required under this item will appear under the captions “Compensation Tables,” “Retirement Plans,” 

“Corporate Governance: Director Compensation and Other Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Employment 
Agreements” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by us with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein 
by reference thereto.  

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management  
The information required under this item will appear under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and 

Directors and Officers” and the first table under the caption “Other Forms of Compensation” in the definitive Proxy Statement 
relating to our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 
Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.  

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions  
The information required under this item will appear under the captions “Corporate Governance: Director Compensation and 

Other Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Employment Agreements” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to 
our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) 
of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically incorporated herein by reference thereto.  

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services  
The information required under this item will appear under the captions “Audit Committee,” “Ratification of Appointment of 

Independent Accountants (Item 2 on Proxy Card),” “Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related Fees,” “Tax Fees,” “All Other Fees” and “Audit 
Committee Pre-Approval Policy” in the definitive Proxy Statement relating to our 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, to be filed 
by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, and is hereby specifically 
incorporated herein by reference thereto.  

PART IV  

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K  
(a) 1. The Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes thereto as set forth under Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K are 

incorporated herein by reference.  
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SCHEDULE II 
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  

($ In Thousands)  
  

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.  

The list of exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K to be filed as part of this Report is incorporated by reference to the 
Exhibit Index following the signatures herein. For exhibits incorporated by reference, the location of the exhibit in the previous filing 
is indicated in parentheses.  
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Balance 
at 

Beginning
of Period   

Additions
Charged to
Costs and  
Expenses   

Additions
Charged 
to Other 
Accounts   

Deduction
From  

Reserves   

Balance at
End  

of Period

Valuation and qualifying accounts deducted from the assets to 
which they apply          

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts      
2005   $ 609  $ 929  $ 371  $ 1,027  $ 882
2004   $ 1,090  $ 66  $ (500) $ 47  $ 609
2003   $ 1,107  $ 501  $ —    $ 518  $ 1,090
Inventory Reserve          

2005   $21,163  $ 7,564  $ 711  $ 5,662  $ 23,776
2004   $23,289  $ 7,361  $(1,947) $ 7,540  $ 21,163
2003  $21,472  $ 4,089  $ 2,128 $ 4,400  $ 23,289
Sales Reserves          

2005   $ 8,769  $ 25,204  $ —    $28,906  $ 5,067
2004   $ 9,739  $ 13,696  $ 2,060  $16,726  $ 8,769
2003   $12,399  $ 17,843  $(1,134) $19,369  $ 9,739



SIGNATURES  

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons 
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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INTERSIL CORPORATION

By: /s/    RICHARD M. BEYER         

 

Richard M. Beyer 
Chief Executive Officer 

March 3, 2006 

   Name   Title  Date

By:
 

/s/    RICHARD M. BEYER         
Richard M. Beyer   

Chief Executive Officer and Director 
(principal executive officer)  

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    DAVID A. ZINSNER         
David A. Zinsner   

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
(principal financial and accounting officer)  

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    GARY E. GIST         
Gary E. Gist  

Chairman of the Board of Directors March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    ROBERT W. CONN        
Robert W. Conn   

Director
 

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    JAMES V. DILLER         
James V. Diller   

Director
 

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    MERCEDES JOHNSON         
Mercedes Johnson   

Director
 

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    GREGORY LANG        
Gregory Lang   

Director
 

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    JAN PEETERS         
Jan Peeters   

Director
 

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    ROBERT N. POKELWALDT        
Robert N. Pokelwaldt   

Director
 

March 3, 2006

By:
 

/s/    JAMES A. URRY         
James A. Urry   

Director
 

March 3, 2006



INDEX TO EXHIBITS 
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Exhibit No.  Description 
2.01

  

Amended and Restated Master Transaction Agreement dated as of June 2, 1999, by and among Intersil Holding 
Corporation (“Holding”), Intersil Corporation (“Intersil”) and Harris Corporation (“Harris”) (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 2.01 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 previously filed by Intersil Corporation on 
November 10, 1999 (Registration No. 333-90857) (“Registration Statement on Form S-1”)).

2.02

  

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Intersil Corporation, Echo Acquisition, Inc. and Elantec 
Semiconductor, Inc., dated as of March 10, 2002 (incorporated by Reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Intersil’s Report on 
Form 8-K dated March 12, 2002).

2.03

  

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Intersil Corporation, Intersil (Pennsylvania) LLC and Fairchild 
Semiconductor Corporation dated as of January 20, 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.28 to the Annual 
Report on Form 10-K/A previously filed by Intersil Corporation on June 22, 2004)(“Annual Report on Form 10-
K/A, 2004”).

2.04
  

Asset Purchase Agreement by and among Intersil Corporation and GlobespanVirata Inc. dated as of July 15, 2003 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.29 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A, 2004).**

2.05

  

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Intersil Corporation, New Castle Merger Corporation, New Castle 
Merger Sub Corp., New Castle Sub LLC and Xicor, Inc. dated as of March 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 2.1 to the 8-K dated March 16, 2004).

3.01
  

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Intersil Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
B to the definitive proxy statement on Form DEF 14A, March 25, 2005).

3.02  Restated Bylaws of Intersil (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.02 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, 2004).

4.01
  

Specimen Certificate of Holding’s Class A Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.01 to the 
Registration Statement on Form 8-A previously filed by Intersil Corporation on February 18, 2000).

10.01

  

Intersil Corporation Amended and Restated 1999 Equity Compensation Plan, effective as of May 11, 2005 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to the definitive proxy statement on Form DEF 14A dated March 25, 
2005).

10.02
  

The Intersil Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan, effective as of February 25, 2000 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.55 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, 2000).

10.03  Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, between Intersil and Richard M. Beyer.*

10.04
  

Amendment to Executive Change in Control Severance Benefits Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2006, 
between Intersil and Richard M. Beyer.*

10.05  Employment Agreement dated as of January 25, 2006 between Intersil and Louis DiNardo.*

10.06
  

Amendment to Executive Change in Control Severance Benefits Agreement dated as of January 25, 2006 
between Intersil and Louis DiNardo.*

10.07
  

Form of Employment Letter between Intersil and certain executives and schedule of omitted details (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, August 12, 2002).

10.08
  

Building Sublease Agreement, dated as of November 5, 2004 by and between Avaya, Inc. and Intersil 
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.09 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, March 16, 2005).
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Exhibit No.  Description 
10.09

  

Building lease between WB Murphy Ranch LLC and Xicor, Inc. dated October 8, 2002 (incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Xicor, Inc.’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 29, 2002).

14.01  Intersil Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.01 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K, 2004).

21.01  Subsidiaries of Intersil Corporation.*

23.01  Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Certified Public Accountants.*

31.01
  

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as adopted by Section 
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

31.02
  

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Exchange Act, as adopted by Section 
302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

32.01

  

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the 
Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002.*

* Filed herewith. 
** Confidential treatment has been requested for portions of this exhibit. The copy filed omits the information subject to the 

confidentiality request. Omissions are designated as **. A complete version of this exhibit has been filed separately with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 



Exhibit 10.03 

[Beyer Employment Agreement]  

This agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) completely supersedes and replaces that certain employment agreement by and 
between you and Intersil dated May 10, 2002 (the “Prior Agreement”), effective as of January 1, 2006 (the “Effective Date”).  

1. Positions; Term.  
(a) You will continue to be employed by Intersil as its President and Chief Executive Officer until December 31, 2008, unless 

sooner terminated in accordance with Section 7 hereof (the “Initial Term”). The Initial Term will be automatically extended for 
successive one year periods beginning January 1, 2009 unless either party gives six (6) months prior written notice of non-renewal to 
the other party, or unless your employment is otherwise terminated (the Initial Term and any such extensions being your “Term of 
Employment”).  

(b) During the Term of Employment, you will have overall responsibility for the management of Intersil and will report directly 
to the Board of Directors of Intersil (the “Board”). During your Term of Employment, you will also be nominated for election to the 
Board. You will be expected to devote your full working time and attention to the business of Intersil and its subsidiaries, and you 
will not render services to any other business without the prior approval of the Board or, directly or indirectly, engage or participate in 
any business that is competitive in any manner with the business of Intersil or its subsidiaries. You will also be expected to comply 
with and be bound by Intersil’s operating policies, procedures and practices that are from time to time in effect during your Term of 
Employment. Your principal location of employment will be at Intersil’s offices in Milpitas, California. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if you and Intersil mutually agree to change or reduce your duties, including, without limitation any change due to the 
hiring of a President to assume some of your duties, you and Intersil agree to negotiate a new agreement with Intersil.  

2. Base Salary. During the Term of Employment, your initial base salary will be $550,000 per year, payable in accordance with 
Intersil’s normal payroll practices with such payroll deductions and withholdings as are required by law. During your Term of 
Employment, your base salary will be reviewed on an annual basis by the Compensation Committee of the Board and may be 
increased from time to time, in the sole discretion of the Board, but in no event shall your base salary be reduced below the initial 
salary amount set forth herein. Your base salary as adjusted shall be referred to herein as your “Base Salary.”  

3. Bonus. You will be eligible to receive a target annual bonus of up to $600,000, to be determined on an annual basis by and at 
the sole discretion of the Board (the “Target Bonus”).  

4. Equity Compensation.  
(a) Stock Options. Pursuant to a separate award agreement, and subject to the terms of Intersil’s 1999 Equity Compensation 

Plan, as amended and restated May 1, 2005 (the “Stock Plan”) except as specifically provided hereunder, the Compensation 
Committee of the Board shall grant you on the first business day following April 1, 2006 (the “Initial Grant Date”) an option to 
purchase 62,500 shares of the Class A Common Stock of Intersil (“Common Stock”) at an exercise price equal to the closing price of 
the Common Stock as quoted on the NASDAQ on the Initial Grant Date and you will be granted options to purchase 62,500 shares of 
Common Stock on the first business day following July 1, 2006, October 1, 2006 and January 1, 2007, at an exercise price equal to 
the closing price on the applicable  



grant date (collectively, the options granted hereunder are referred to as the “New Options”). The New Options shall vest over a three 
year period as follows: one-third of all of the New Options (regardless of the date granted) will vest on the first anniversary of the 
Initial Grant Date, the remaining portion of the New Options shall vest in equal quarterly installments over the next eight calendar 
quarters.  

(b) Performance Shares. Pursuant to a separate award, and subject to the terms of the Stock Plan and the applicable award 
agreement thereunder, you will be granted 100,000 performance-based deferred stock units (“DSUs”) (the “Performance Shares”) on 
January 1, 2006 (the “Grant Date”). The number of Performance Shares ultimately earned shall be determined at the conclusion of a 
three-year performance period based upon Intersil’s revenue growth and Intersil’s growth operating income, with such performance 
goals to be determined by the Compensation Committee of the Board; provided, however, if Intersil outperforms members of its peer 
group as determined by the Compensation Committee, you will be eligible to receive up to 200% of the total number of Performance 
Shares initially granted on the Grant Date on the third anniversary of the Grant Date; and, provided, further, that you have not had a 
Voluntary Termination or been Terminated for Cause. Provided that the Term of Employment has not expired, you will be eligible to 
receive another grant of performance-based DSUs in 2007.  

5. Other Benefits. You will be eligible for the normal vacation, health insurance, 401(k), employee stock purchase plan, 
financial planning, executive physical and other benefits offered to all Intersil senior executives of similar rank and status.  

6. Employment and Termination. Your Term of Employment may be terminated by you or by Intersil at any time for any reason 
as follows:  

(a) You may terminate your employment upon written notice to the Board at any time in your discretion without reason 
(“Voluntary Termination”); provided that you give Intersil 60 days written notice. The Board in its sole discretion may waive the 60-
day notice provision and in such event your Voluntary Termination shall be effective on an earlier date determined by the Board.  

(b) During the Term of Employment, you may terminate your employment upon written notice to the Board at any time in your 
discretion because of (i) any material and substantial diminution of your duties and authorities (other than a diminution agreed to by 
you, including under Section 1(b)), (ii) a demotion from the office of Chief Executive Officer and/or President (other than a change in 
office or title agreed to by you, including under Section 1(b)), (iii) removal from your position as a Director of Intersil (other than for 
a reason that would constitute a Termination for Cause as set forth below), or (iv) any failure by Intersil to comply with the terms of 
this Employment Agreement, which failure is not cured within 30 days from the date you send written notice to Intersil of such non-
compliance (“Involuntary Termination”).  

(c) Intersil may terminate your employment upon written notice to you at any time following a determination by the Board that 
there is “Cause” for such termination (“Termination for Cause”). “Cause” means (i) your conviction of a felony which constitutes a 
crime involving moral turpitude and results in material harm to Intersil or any of its affiliates; (ii) a judicial determination that you 
have  
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committed fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement against Intersil or any affiliate thereof; or (iii) your willful or gross and repeated 
misconduct in the performance of your duties in each instance so as to cause material harm to Intersil or any of its affiliates; which is 
not cured within 30 days from the date Intersil sends you written notice of such willful or gross and repeated misconduct.  

(d) Intersil may terminate your employment upon written notice to you at any time in the sole discretion of the Board without a 
determination that there is Cause for such termination (“Termination without Cause”); and  

(e) Your employment will automatically terminate upon your death or upon your disability as determined by the Board 
(“Termination for Death or Disability”); provided that “disability” shall mean your complete inability to perform your job 
responsibilities for a period of 180 consecutive days or 180 days in the aggregate in any 12 month period.  

In no event shall the expiration of the Term of Employment (giving effect to any extensions thereof), by virtue of either party’s 
having given notice of non-renewal pursuant to Section 1(a) hereof, constitute Termination without Cause, an Involuntary 
Termination or Termination for Death or Disability; provided, however, that in the event Intersil gives you written notice of its 
intention not to renew the Term of Employment and you remain employed with Intersil through the expiration of the Term of 
Employment, upon the expiration of the Term of Employment (x) your unvested options and deferred stock units (“DSUs”) shall fully 
vest, and (b) your unvested Performance Shares shall vest to the extent the applicable performance levels are achieved as of the 
expiration of the Term of Employment. Upon any termination or expiration of your employment with Intersil, if requested by Intersil, 
you shall resign from the Board.  

7. Separation Benefits. Upon termination of your employment with Intersil for any reason during the Term of Employment, you 
will receive payment for all unpaid salary and vacation accrued to the date of your termination of employment; and your benefits will 
be continued under Intersil’s then existing benefit plans and policies for so long as provided under the terms of such plans and 
policies and as required by applicable law. Subject to your compliance with Sections 10 and 11, under certain circumstances, you will 
also be entitled to receive severance benefits as set forth below, but you will not be entitled to any other compensation, award or 
damages with respect to your employment or termination (except to the extent you are entitled to benefits under your Executive 
Change in Control Severance Benefits Agreement with Intersil dated May 10, 2002, as amended (the “Severance Benefits 
Agreement”), in lieu of any benefits provided below, in the event of a Covered Termination (as defined in the Severance Benefits 
Agreement)).  

(a) In the event of your Voluntary Termination or Termination for Cause during the Term of Employment, you will not be 
entitled to any cash severance benefits, additional vesting of shares of restricted stock, DSUs, options or other equity compensation or 
post-termination death or medical benefits as described in Section 7(b).  

(b) Subject to your compliance with Sections 10 and 11, in the event of your Involuntary Termination or Termination without 
Cause during the Term of Employment, you will be: (i) entitled to continuance of your Base Salary for a period of two years (less 
applicable deductions and  
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withholdings) payable in accordance with Intersil’s normal payroll practices; (ii) entitled to the payment of one-half of your full 
Target Bonus (without regard to satisfaction of any target performance objectives) with respect to each of the subsequent four semi-
annual bonus payment periods payable at the same time such bonus is payable to other senior executives of Intersil; (iii) with respect 
to stock options and DSUs granted to you by Intersil (A) on or after 2006 (“Post-2005 Awards”), entitled to acceleration of vesting in 
an amount equal to the amount that would have vested over the eighteen (18) month period commencing on the date of your 
termination (but in no event shall any such award of Post-2005 Awards be less than 50% vested upon an Involuntary Termination or 
Termination without Cause), with such Post-2005 Awards exercisable in accordance with the terms of such grants, (B) between the 
commencement date of the Prior Agreement and the December 31, 2005 (“Prior Agreement Awards”), entitled to full acceleration of 
vesting on all of your Prior Agreement Awards and you will have twenty-four (24) months from your termination date (or the 
remaining term of the applicable award grant if shorter than 24 months) to exercise such outstanding Prior Agreement Awards; and 
(C) upon conversion of options to purchase common stock of Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. (“Converted Options”) entitled to full 
acceleration of vesting on all of your Converted Options and you will have twelve (12) months from your termination date (or the 
remaining term of the applicable option grant if shorter than 12 months) to exercise such outstanding Converted Options; (iv) to the 
extent applicable performance levels are achieved, entitled to vesting of a pro-rated number of unvested Performance Shares (pro-
rated based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil from the Effective Date until the date of your Involuntary 
Termination or Termination for Cause (not to exceed 1,095 days) divided by the entire performance period (i.e., 1095 days for a 
three-year period)); (v) entitled to continuation of the life insurance coverage you have on the date of your termination for the 
remainder of the Term of Employment, and (vi) eligible to participate, along with your spouse, in the retiree medical plan maintained 
by Intersil in which senior executives participate upon your termination hereunder (the “Retiree Medical Plan”) in accordance with its 
terms upon your termination and Intersil will make the full payment of the premiums for coverage of you and your spouse under the 
Retiree Medical Plan; provided, however, that if the Retiree Medical Plan is terminated with respect to all other employees of Intersil 
after your termination of employment hereunder, you shall no longer be provided coverage under the Retiree Medical Plan; and 
provided, further, however, that Intersil shall cease paying your premiums under the Retiree Medical Plan when you become eligible 
for Medicare or become covered under another employer’s medical plan. You agree to immediately notify Intersil if you become 
eligible for Medicare or covered by another employer’s medical plan. You will not be reimbursed for the income or employment 
taxes payable due to the payment of your premiums due under the Retiree Medical Plan or your continuation of life insurance 
coverage.  

(c) Subject to your compliance with Sections 10 and 11, in the event of your Termination for Death or Disability, you (or your 
beneficiary, as applicable) will be: (i) entitled to a single lump sum severance payment equal 12 months of your Base Salary payable 
within 30 days after the date of your Termination for Death or Disability; (ii) entitled to a single lump sum payment equal to a pro-
rata portion (based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil during the calendar year of your Termination for Death or 
Disability divided by 365) of your Target Bonus for the year of Termination for Death or Disability, without regard to satisfaction of 
any target performance objectives, payable within 30 days following your termination; (iii) with respect to options or DSUs granted to 
you by Intersil, (A) granted full acceleration of vesting on all of your Converted Options, and (B) immediately  
  

4  



credited with additional vesting service credit for the twelve-month period commencing on the date of your Termination for Death or 
Disability with respect to all Prior Agreement Awards and Post-2005 Awards and (iv) with respect to Performance Shares, entitled to 
vesting of a pro-rated number of unvested Performance Shares to the extent the applicable performance levels are achieved (prorated 
based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil from the Effective Date until the date of your Termination for Death or 
Disability (not to exceed 1095 days) divided by the entire performance period (i.e., 1,095 days for a three-year period)). Following 
your Termination for Death or Disability, the exercise period with respect to your Post-2005 Awards, will be equal to the lesser of 
twelve months or the remaining term of the applicable stock option. The exercise period for Prior Agreement Awards and Converted 
Options shall be determined under the terms of the applicable awards agreement  

(d) If any payments due under this Section 7 or otherwise would subject you to any penalty tax imposed under Section 409A of 
the Code if such payments were made as required above, then the payments that cause the imposition of such penalty tax shall be 
payable in one lump sum on the first day which is at least six months after the date of your separation of service as set forth in 
Section 409A of the Code and the regulations and other official guidance thereunder.  

(e) If all or any portion of the amounts payable or benefits provided to you under this Employment Agreement or otherwise are 
“excess parachute payments” and are subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code (the “Excise Tax”), and if the net 
after-tax amount (taking into account all applicable taxes payable by you, including without limitation any Excise Tax) that you 
would receive with respect to such payments or benefits does not exceed the net after-tax amount you would receive if the amount of 
such payments and benefits were reduced to the maximum amount which could otherwise be payable to you without the imposition of 
the Excise Tax, then, only the extent necessary to eliminate the imposition of the Excise Tax, such payments and benefits shall be 
reduced, in the order and of the type mutually agreed to by you and Intersil. The calculations required under this Section 7(e) shall be 
prepared by Intersil and reviewed for accuracy by you and Intersil’s regular certified public accountants.  

(f) Subject to Section 7(e), no payments due you hereunder shall be subject to mitigation or offset.  

8. Employee Agreement and Release Prior to Receipt of Benefits. Upon the occurrence of a termination under Section 7(b) or 7
(c) of this Agreement (“Covered Termination”), and prior to the receipt of any benefits under this Agreement on account of the 
occurrence of a Covered Termination, you will, as of the date of a Covered Termination, execute an employee agreement and release 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. Such employee agreement and release shall specifically relate to all of your rights and 
claims in existence at the time of such execution and shall confirm your obligations under any proprietary information agreement with 
Intersil or its predecessors or their affiliates, including, but not limited to Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. (“Elantec”) It is understood 
such employee release and agreement shall comply with applicable law. In the event you do not execute such release and agreement 
within the period required by applicable law, or if you revoke such employee agreement and release within the period permitted by 
applicable law, no benefits shall be payable under this Agreement.  
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9. Indemnification Agreement. Effective on the commencement date of the Prior Agreement, Intersil assumed and agreed to be 
bound by the terms and conditions of the Indemnification Agreement you entered into with Elantec.  

10. Proprietary Information Agreements. Effective on the commencement date of the Prior Agreement, you acknowledge and 
agree that your Agreement Regarding Proprietary Information and Inventions you entered into with Elantec shall inure to the benefit 
of Intersil, and shall be fully enforceable by, and apply in all respects with respect to, Intersil. You also confirm your obligations 
under the “Employee Agreement” with Intersil dated May 31, 2002, which includes certain inventions, intellectual property and 
confidentiality covenants.  

11. Non-compete/Non-solicitation.  
(a) During your Term of Employment and for two years thereafter and as a condition of Intersil’s obligation to pay you any 

amounts or benefits under Section 7, you will not engage in any activity which is directly competitive with the business of Intersil or 
its subsidiaries and you will not, on behalf of yourself or any third party, solicit or attempt to induce any employee of Intersil or its 
subsidiaries to terminate his or her employment with Intersil or its subsidiaries. The non-compete covenant in the preceding sentence 
shall apply in the geographic areas of: (i) the counties of Santa Clara, San Mateo, San Diego, Orange and San Francisco counties of 
California; (ii) California; (iii) the United States of America; and (iv) the world.  

(b) If the provisions of this Section 11 should ever be adjudicated to exceed any maximum time, geographic, service or other 
limitations permitted by applicable law in any jurisdiction, then such provisions shall be deemed reformed in such jurisdiction to the 
maximum limitations permitted by applicable law. You acknowledge that the provisions of this Section 11 are, in view of the nature 
of the business of Intersil and its subsidiaries, reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate interests of Intersil and its 
subsidiaries and that any violation of this Section 11 may result in irreparable injury to Intersil or its subsidiaries entitling Intersil to 
temporary or permanent injunctive relief, without the necessity of proving actual damages, which rights shall be cumulative with and 
in addition to any other rights or remedies to which Intersil may be entitled hereunder or at law or in equity.  

12. Arbitration. The parties agree that any dispute regarding the interpretation or enforcement of this Employment Agreement 
shall be decided by confidential, final and binding arbitration conducted by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services (“JAMS”) 
under the then existing JAMS rules rather than by litigation in court, trial by jury, administrative proceeding or in any other forum.  

13. Miscellaneous.  
(a) Authority to Enter into Agreement. Intersil represents that it is has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this 

Employment Agreement on behalf of Intersil.  

(b) Absence of Conflicts; Termination of Prior Agreement. You represent that upon the Effective Date, your performance of 
your duties under this Employment Agreement will not breach any other agreement as to which you are a party. You confirm that 
upon the commencement date of the Prior Agreement, your employment agreement with Elantec dated July 12, 2000 and your 
Executive Change  
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in Control Severance Benefits Agreement with Elantec dated February 13, 2001, as amended, terminated and were of no further force 
or effect without any liabilities of the parties thereto or Intersil or its affiliates.  

(c) Attorneys’ Fees. If a legal action or other proceeding is brought for enforcement of this Employment Agreement because of 
an alleged dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of this Employment Agreement, the 
successful or prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred, both before and after 
judgment, in addition to any other relief to which they may be entitled.  

(d) Taxes. Intersil may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such federal, state or local income taxes to the 
extent the same required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation. You acknowledge that you are responsible for 
the payment of any income taxes due to payments hereunder or otherwise from Intersil.  

(e) Successors. This Employment Agreement is binding on and may be enforced by Intersil and its successors and assigns and is 
binding on and may be enforced by you and your heirs and legal representatives. Any successor to Intersil or substantially all of its 
business (whether by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) will in advance assume in writing and be bound by all of Intersil’s 
obligations under this Employment Agreement.  

(f) Notices. Notices under this Employment Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when 
personally delivered or two days after mailed by U.S. registered or certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid. 
Mailed notices to you will be addressed to you at the home address which you have most recently communicated to Intersil in writing. 
Notices to Intersil will be addressed to its General Counsel at Intersil’s corporate headquarters.  

(g) Waiver. No provision of this Employment Agreement will be modified or waived except in writing signed by you and an 
officer of Intersil duly authorized by the Board. No waiver by either party of any breach of this Employment Agreement by the other 
party will be considered a waiver of any other breach of this Employment Agreement.  

(h) Entire Agreement. This Employment Agreement, including such other agreements expressly referred to herein and including 
the applicable stock option plans, option agreements and related documents with respect to your equity grants, and your Severance 
Benefits Agreement, as amended, represent the entire agreement between us concerning the subject matter of your employment by 
Intersil, and expressly supersede all other promises or understandings, oral or written, including without limitation the Prior 
Agreement.  

(i) Governing Law. This Employment Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of California without reference to 
conflict of laws provisions.  

(j) Severability. If any portion of this Employment Agreement shall be determined to be unenforceable, the remaining provisions 
of this Employment Agreement shall remain in force.  
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Rich, we very much look forward to your continuing with Intersil performing the duties described in this Agreement. Please 
indicate your acceptance of the terms of this Employment Agreement by signing in the place indicated below.  
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Sincerely,

INTERSIL CORPORATION

By:  /s/ Thomas C. Tokos 
Name: Thomas C. Tokos
Title:  Vice President, General Counsel & Secretary

Acknowledged and Agreed:

/s/ Richard M. Beyer 
Richard M. Beyer



Exhibit A 

Intersil Corporation  

Employee Agreement and Release  

I understand and agree completely to the terms set forth in the foregoing agreement.  

I hereby confirm my obligations under the Agreement Regarding Proprietary Information and Inventions (which I executed in 
favor of Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. and which shall inure to the benefit of the Company and be fully enforceable by, and apply in all 
respects with respect to, the Company).  

I acknowledge that I have read and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: “A general 
release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, 
which if known by him must have materially affected this settlement with the debtor.” I hereby expressly waive and relinquish all 
rights and benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect with respect to my release of any claims I may 
have against the Company.  

Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, I hereby release, acquit and forever discharge the Company, its parents and 
subsidiaries, and their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, shareholders, successors, assigns and affiliates, of and from any 
and all claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, attorneys fees, damages, indemnities and obligations of every 
kind and nature, in law, equity, or otherwise, known and unknown, suspected and unsuspected, disclosed and undisclosed (other than 
any claim for indemnification I may have as a result of any third party action against me based on my employment with the 
Company), arising out of or in any way related to agreements, events, acts or conduct at any time prior to and including the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, including but not limited to: all such claims and demands directly or indirectly arising out of or in any way 
connected with my employment with the Company or the termination of that employment, including but not limited to, claims of 
intentional and negligent infliction of emotional distress, any and all tort claims for personal injury, claims or demands related to 
salary, bonuses, commissions, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the Company, vacation pay, fringe benefits, 
expense reimbursements, severance pay, or any other form of compensation; claims pursuant to any federal, state or local law or 
cause of action including, but not limited to, the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; the federal Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1967, as amended (“ADEA”); the federal American with Disabilities Act of 1990; the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act, as amended; tort law; contract law; wrongful discharge; discrimination; fraud; defamation; emotional 
distress; and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph shall be 
construed in any way to release the Company from its obligation to indemnify you pursuant to the Company’s Indemnification 
Agreement and to provide you with continued coverage under the Company’s directors and officers liability insurance policy to the 
same extent that it has provided such coverage to previously departed officers and directors of the Company.  

I acknowledge that I am knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights I may have under ADEA. I also 
acknowledge that the consideration given for the waiver and release in the  
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preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of value which I was already entitled. I further acknowledge that I have been 
advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: (a) my waiver and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise 
after the Effective Date of this Agreement; (b) I have the right to consult with an attorney prior to executing this Agreement; (c) I 
have twenty-one (21) days to consider this Agreement (although I may choose to voluntarily execute this Agreement earlier); (d) I 
have seven (7) days following the execution of this Agreement by the parties to revoke the Agreement; and (e) this Agreement shall 
not be effective until the date upon which the revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth day after this Agreement is 
executed by me, provided that the Company has also executed this Agreement by that date.  
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RICHARD M. BEYER   INTERSIL CORPORATION

/s/ Richard M. Beyer  By: /s/ Thomas C. Tokos 
Dated: January 1, 2006

  

Title:
 

Vice President, General Counsel and 
Secretary

  Dated:  January 1, 2006



Exhibit 10.04 

AMENDMENT TO  
EXECUTIVE  

CHANGE IN CONTROL  
SEVERANCE BENEFITS AGREEMENT  

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2002, Richard M. Beyer (“Executive”) and Intersil Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the 
“Company” ) entered into an Executive Change In Control Severance Benefits Agreement (the “Agreement”);  

WHEREAS, Section 7.6 of the Agreement provides that it may be amended only upon the mutual written consent of the 
Company and Executive and that the written consent of the Company to a change in the Agreement must be signed by an executive 
officer of the Company after such change has been approved by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors;  

WHEREAS, Executive and the Company now desire to amend the Agreement in connection with the amendment and 
restatement of Executive’s Employment Agreement with the Company, effective January 1, 2006;  

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and Executive hereby agree as follows:  
1. Section 2.2 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  

“2.2 Severance Payments. The Company shall continue to pay the Executive’s Annual Base Pay and full target Annual 
Bonus (without regard to satisfaction of any target performance objectives) for three years (the “Severance Period”) (less 
applicable deductions and withholdings) payable in accordance with Intersil’s normal payroll practices immediately prior 
to the Covered Termination;”  

2. Section 2.3 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  
“2.3 Welfare Benefits. Following a Covered Termination, Executive and his covered dependents will be eligible to 
continue their Welfare Benefits coverage under any Welfare Benefits plan or program maintained by the Company on the 
same terms and conditions (including cost to Executive) as in effect immediately prior to the Covered Termination, for the 
Severance Period. The Executive and his spouse will be eligible to participate in the retiree medical plan maintained by the 
Company in which employees participate upon your termination hereunder (the “Retiree Medical Plan”) in accordance 
with its terms upon his Covered Termination and the Company will make the full payment of the premiums for coverage of 
the Executive and his spouse under the Retiree Medical Plan; provided, however, that if the Retiree Medical Plan is 
terminated with respect to all other employees of Intersil after your termination of employment hereunder, the Executive 
shall no longer be provided coverage under the Retiree Medical Plan; and provided, further, however, that the Company 
shall cease paying your premiums under the Retiree Medical Plan when the Executive becomes eligible  



for Medicare or becomes covered under another employer’s medical plan. The Executive agrees to immediately notify the 
Company if he becomes eligible for Medicare or covered by another employer’s medical plan. The Executive will not be 
reimbursed for the income or employment taxes payable due to the payment of the Executive’s premiums due under the 
Retiree Medical Plan.”  

3. Section 4.2 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  
“4.2. Parachute Payments. If all or any portion of the amounts payable or benefits provided to the Executive under this 
Agreement or otherwise are ‘excess parachute payments’ and are subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the 
Code (the ‘Excise Tax’), and if the net after-tax amount (taking into account all applicable taxes payable by the Executive, 
including without limitation any Excise Tax) that the Executive would receive with respect to such payments or benefits 
does not exceed the net after-tax amount the Executive would receive if the amount of such payments and benefits were 
reduced to the maximum amount which could otherwise be payable to the Executive without the imposition of the Excise 
Tax, then, only the extent necessary to eliminate the imposition of the Excise Tax, such payments and benefits shall be 
reduced, in the order and of the type mutually agreed to by the Executive and the Company. The calculations required 
under this Section 4.2 shall be prepared by the Company and reviewed for accuracy by the Executive and the Company’s 
regular certified public accountants.”  

4. Section 4.3 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  
“4.3. Stock Options, Deferred Stock Units and Restricted Stock. In the event of a Covered Termination, all stock 
options, deferred stock units, and restricted stock granted to Executive by the Company or Elantec during the Executive’s 
employment with the Company (or Elantec, as applicable), (i) shall immediately become fully vested (and with respect to 
the stock options, fully exercisable), and if any such award is subject to performance criteria, then such award shall fully 
vest in the amount such award would have vested at the performance level achieved through the date of such Covered 
Termination for such award, if applicable, and (ii) Executive shall have (A) twelve (12) months following a Covered 
Termination (or the remaining term of the applicable option grant if shorter than 12 months) to exercise any stock options 
which were converted from Elantec options or awards granted on or after January 1, 2006, and (B) shall have twenty-four 
(24) months following a Covered Termination (or the remaining term of the applicable option grant if short than 24 
months) to exercise any awards not described in 4.3(ii)(A). If applicable, the Company shall only amend all such stock 
option, deferred stock units or restricted stock grants in a manner that will not adversely affect Executive’s financial 
position and that does not subject Executive to liability under Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended.”  



5. A new Section 2.6 is hereby added to the Agreement to read in its entirety as follows:  
“2.6 409A Compliance. If any payments due under this Agreement would subject Executive to any penalty tax imposed 
under Section 409A of the Code if such payments were made at the time as required herein, then the payments that cause 
the imposition such penalty tax shall be payable in one lump sum on the first day which is at least six months after the date 
of Executive’s separation of service as set forth in Section 409A of the Code and the regulations and other official 
guidance thereunder.”  

[REMAINDER INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement on the day and year written above.  
  
INTERSIL CORPORATION  RICHARD M. BEYER

By:   /s/ Thomas C. Tokos  /s/ Richard M. Beyer
  Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary  

Name:  Thomas C. Tokos  

for the Intersil Compensation Committee  

INTERSIL CORPORATION  

By:   /s/ Thomas C. Tokos  

Name:  Thomas C. Tokos  

Title:   Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary  



Exhibit 10.05 

[DiNardo Employment Agreement]  

This agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) completely supersedes and replaces that certain employment agreement by and 
between you and Intersil dated March 15, 2004 (the “Prior Agreement”), effective as of January 25, 2006 (the “Effective Date”).  

1. Position; Term.  
(a) You will continue to be employed by Intersil as its President and Chief Operating Officer until January 24 , 2008, unless 

sooner terminated in accordance with Section 6 hereof (the “Initial Term”). The Initial Term will be automatically extended for 
successive one year periods beginning January 25, 2008 unless either party gives three (3) months prior written notice of non-renewal 
to the other party, or unless your employment is otherwise terminated (the Initial Term and any such extensions being your “Term of 
Employment”).  

(b) During the Term of Employment, you will report directly to Intersil’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO “) and will have 
responsibility for the management of the Company’s product groups, engineering, corporate marketing, worldwide sales, operations 
planning function and such other areas as the CEO may, from time to time, consider appropriate. You will be expected to devote your 
full working time and attention to the business of Intersil and its subsidiaries, and you will not render services to any other business 
without the prior written approval of the CEO or, directly or indirectly, engage or participate in any business that is competitive in any 
manner with the business of Intersil or its subsidiaries. You will also be expected to comply with and be bound by Intersil’s operating 
policies, procedures and practices that are from time to time in effect during your Term of Employment. Your principal location of 
employment will be at Intersil’s offices in Milpitas, California.  

2. Base Salary. During the Term of Employment, your initial base salary will be $375,000 per year, payable in accordance with 
Intersil’s normal payroll practices with such payroll deductions and withholdings as are required by law. During your Term of 
Employment, your base salary will be reviewed on an annual basis beginning in April 2007 and may be increased from time to time, 
in the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee”), but in 
no event shall your base salary be reduced below the initial salary amount set forth herein. Your base salary as adjusted shall be 
referred to herein as your “Base Salary.”  

3. Bonus. You will be eligible to receive a target annual bonus of up to $375,000, payable on a semi-annual basis by and at the 
sole discretion of the Compensation Committee (the “Target Bonus”) provided that you are employed through the end of the fiscal 
period for which the semi-annual payment is payable. Your actual bonus payout will be determined based upon the terms and 
conditions of the Executive Incentive Plan. Your target annual bonus will be reviewed on an annual basis beginning in April 2007 and 
may be adjusted from time to time, in the sole discretion of the Compensation Committee  

4. Equity Compensation.  
(a) Stock Options. Pursuant to a separate award agreement, and subject to the terms of Intersil’s 1999 Equity Compensation 

Plan, as amended and restated May 1, 2005 (the “Stock Plan”) except as specifically provided hereunder, the Compensation 
Committee of the Board shall grant you on April 3, 2006 (the “Initial Grant Date”) an option to purchase 37,500 shares of the 
Class A Common Stock of Intersil (“Common Stock”) at an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Common Stock as quoted 
on the NASDAQ on the Initial Grant Date and you will be granted options to purchase 37,500 shares of Common Stock on the first 
business day following July 1, 2006, October 1, 2006 and January 1, 2007, at an exercise price equal to the closing price on the 
applicable grant date (collectively, the options granted hereunder are referred to as the “New Options”). The New Options shall vest 
over a four-year period as follows: one-fourth of all of the New Options (regardless of the date granted) will vest on the first 
anniversary of the Initial Grant Date; the remaining portion of the New Options shall vest in equal quarterly installments over the next 
twelve calendar quarters. Provided you are 



employed by the Company on the relevant grant date, in calendar year 2007, if you meet specific goals established by the CEO, you 
will be granted options to purchase additional shares of Intersil Class A Common Stock that will be issued in an amount determined 
by the CEO and Compensation Committee and granted and priced quarterly. Such additional options will vest 25% per year 
beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date and will be fully vested at the end of four years.  

(b) Performance Shares. Pursuant to a separate award, and subject to the terms of the Stock Plan and the applicable award 
agreement thereunder, you will be granted 60,000 performance-based deferred stock units (“DSUs”) (the “Performance Shares”) on 
January 25, 2006 (the “Grant Date”), with the number of Performance Shares ultimately earned being subject to upward adjustment 
(up to 200% of the total number of Performance Shares initially granted) or downward adjustment (down to no Performance Shares) 
in view of Intersil’s financial performance relative to its peer group (as determined by the Compensation Committee) over a three-
year performance period ending December 31, 2008. Intersil’s financial performance relative to its peer group will be determined by 
the Compensation Committee based upon Intersil’s revenue growth and Intersil’s growth in operating income relative to its peer 
group. The number of Performance Shares ultimately earned shall be determined by the Compensation Committee at the end of the 
three-year performance period, and the award, if any, shall become vested at such time. No payment of Performance Shares will be 
made to you in the event of a Voluntary Termination or Termination for Cause before the end of the three-year performance period. 
Provided that your employment has not terminated, you will be eligible to receive another grant of performance-based DSUs in 2007.  

5. Other Benefits. You will be eligible for the normal vacation, health insurance, 401(k), employee stock purchase plan, 
financial planning, executive physical and other benefits offered to all Intersil senior executives of similar rank and status.  

6. Employment and Termination. Your Term of Employment may be terminated by you or by Intersil at any time for any reason 
as follows:  

(a) You may terminate your employment upon written notice to the CEO at any time in your discretion without reason 
(“Voluntary Termination”); provided that you give Intersil 45 days written notice. The CEO, in the CEO’s sole discretion, may waive 
the 45-day notice provision and in such event your Voluntary Termination will be effective on an earlier date determined by the CEO. 

(b) During the Term of Employment, you may terminate your employment upon written notice to the CEO and the Board at any 
time in your discretion because of the occurrence of (i) any material and substantial diminution of your duties and authorities, (ii) a 
demotion from the office of President and/or Chief Operating Officer, or (iii) any failure by Intersil to comply with the terms of this 
Employment Agreement, which failure is not cured within 30 days from the date you send written notice to Intersil of such non-
compliance (“Involuntary Termination”).  

(c) Intersil may terminate your employment upon written notice to you at any time following a determination by the Company 
that there is “Cause” for such termination (“Termination for Cause”). “Cause” means (i) your conviction of a felony which 
constitutes a crime involving moral turpitude and results in material harm to Intersil or any of its affiliates; (ii) a judicial 
determination that you have committed fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement against Intersil or any affiliate thereof; or (iii) your 
willful or gross and repeated misconduct in the performance of your duties in each instance so as to cause material harm to Intersil or 
any of its affiliates.  

(d) Intersil may terminate your employment upon written notice to you at any time in Intersil’s sole discretion without a 
determination that there is Cause for such termination (“Termination without Cause”); and  

(e) Your employment will automatically terminate upon your death or upon your disability as determined by the Company 
(“Termination for Death or Disability”); provided that “disability” shall mean your complete inability to perform your job 
responsibilities for a period of 180 consecutive days or 180 days in the aggregate in any 12 month period.  
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(f) In the event you and Intersil agree to a change in your position at Intersil during your Term of Employment, this Agreement 
will be terminated and you and Intersil will negotiate a new employment agreement relating to your new position.  

In no event shall the expiration of the Term of Employment (giving effect to any extensions thereof), by virtue of either party’s 
having given notice of non-renewal pursuant to Section 1(a) hereof, constitute Termination without Cause, an Involuntary 
Termination or Termination for Death or Disability.  

7. Separation Benefits. Upon termination of your employment with Intersil for any reason during the Term of Employment, you 
will receive payment for all unpaid salary and vacation accrued to the date of your termination of employment; and your benefits will 
be continued under Intersil’s then existing benefit plans and policies for so long as provided under the terms of such plans and 
policies and as required by applicable law. Subject to your compliance with Sections 10 and 11, under certain circumstances, you will 
also be entitled to receive severance benefits as set forth below, but you will not be entitled to any other compensation, award or 
damages with respect to your employment or termination (except to the extent you are entitled to benefits under your Executive 
Change in Control Severance Benefits Agreement with Intersil (the “Severance Benefits Agreement”), in lieu of any benefits provided 
below, in the event of a Covered Termination (as defined in the Severance Benefits Agreement)).  

(a) In the event of your Voluntary Termination or Termination for Cause, or in the event you and Intersil agree to change your` 
position at Intersil, during the Term of Employment, you will not be entitled to any cash severance benefits, additional vesting of 
shares of restricted stock, DSUs, options or other equity compensation or post-termination death or medical benefits as described in 
this Section 7.  

(b) Subject to your compliance with Sections 10 and 11, in the event of your Involuntary Termination or Termination without 
Cause during the Term of Employment, you will be: (i) entitled to continuance of your Base Salary for a period of one year (less 
applicable deductions and withholdings) payable in accordance with Intersil’s normal payroll practices; (ii) entitled to the payment of 
a pro rata portion (based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil during the calendar year of termination divided by 
365) of your Target Bonus (without regard to satisfaction of any target performance objectives) payable at the same time such bonus 
is payable to other senior executives of Intersil; (iii) your unvested employee stock options and DSUs (other than Performance 
Shares) will become vested to the extent they would have become vested had your employment continued for a period of twelve 
(12) months immediately following the date of your Involuntary Termination or Termination without Cause (iv) a pro rata portion 
(based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil since the grant date of the Performance Shares divided by 1095) of your 
unvested Performance Shares shall become vested and the number of Performance Shares payable to you will be determined by the 
Compensation Committee based on Intersil’s financial performance relative to its peer group as of the date of your Involuntary 
Termination or Termination without Cause; and (v) you will have twelve (12) months (or the remaining term of the applicable option 
grant if shorter than 12 months) from the date of your Involuntary Termination or Termination without Cause to exercise any 
outstanding vested and exercisable options.  

(c) In addition to the benefits set forth in subsection (b) above, in the event of your Involuntary Termination or Termination 
without Cause (as defined in this subsection (c) below), you will be eligible to continue, at Intersil’s expense, your medical benefits 
providing for coverage or payment in the event of your (or your covered dependents’) illness or injury that were provided to you, 
whether taxable or non-taxable and whether funded through insurance or otherwise under any benefits plan or program maintained by 
Intersil on the same terms and conditions as in effect immediately prior to your termination for a period of twelve (12) months 
following your termination. You will be eligible to continue, at Intersil’s expense, your life insurance benefits providing for coverage 
or payment in the event of your (or your covered dependents’) death that were provided to you, whether taxable or non-taxable and 
whether funded through insurance or otherwise under any benefits plan or program maintained by Intersil on the same terms and 
conditions as in effect immediately prior to your  
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termination until the earlier of (i) the date on which your Employment Term ends and (ii) the one year anniversary of your 
termination date. With respect to any of such benefits for which you will be eligible to continue that are provided through an 
insurance policy, Intersil’s obligation to provide such benefits following your termination shall be limited by the terms of such policy. 

Solely for purposes of this Section 7(c), “Termination without Cause” shall mean Intersil’s termination of your employment for 
any reason other than fraud, misappropriation or embezzlement by you which results in material loss, damage or injury to Intersil as 
determined by the CEO and legal counsel that you were guilty of such conduct and specifying the particulars thereof in detail. In the 
event that the CEO and legal counsel so determine that your termination is not a Termination without Cause under this Section 7(c), 
then you will be treated as being terminated for Cause and subject to Section 7(a).  

(d) In the event of your Termination for Death or Disability during your Term of Employment, you will be: (i) entitled to a 
single lump sum severance payment equal to 12 months of your Base Salary then in effect (less applicable deductions and 
withholdings) payable within 30 days after the effective date of your termination; (ii) entitled to a single lump sum payment equal to a 
pro-rata portion (based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil during the calendar year of termination divided by 365) 
of your Target Bonus for the year of termination, without regard to satisfaction of any target performance objectives, payable within 
30 days following your termination; (iii) your unvested employee stock options and DSUs (excluding Performance Shares) will 
become vested to the extent they would have become vested had your employment continued for a period of six (6) months 
immediately following the date of your Termination for Death or Disability; and (iv) your unvested Performance Shares will become 
vested pro rata (based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil during the relevant three-year performance period 
divided by 1095) to the extent applicable performance levels have been achieved as of the date of your Termination for Death or 
Disability.  

(e) In the event Intersil gives you written notice of its intention not to renew the Term of Employment and you remain employed 
with Intersil through the expiration of the Term of Employment, upon the expiration of the Term of Employment a pro rata portion 
(based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil since the grant date of the DSU divided by 1095) of your unvested DSUs 
and a pro rata portion (based on the number of days you were employed by Intersil since the grant date of the Performance Shares 
divided by 1095) of your Performance Shares shall become vested and the number of Performance Shares payable to you will be 
determined by the Compensation Committee based on Intersil’s financial performance relative to its peer group as of the date of the 
expiration of the Term of Employment.  

(f) If any payments due under this Section 7 or otherwise would subject you to any penalty tax imposed under Section 409A of 
the Code if such payments were made as required above, then the payments that cause the imposition of such penalty tax shall be 
payable in one lump sum on the first day which is at least six months after the date of your separation of service as set forth in 
Section 409A of the Code and the regulations and other official guidance thereunder.  

(g) No payments due you hereunder shall be subject to mitigation or offset.  

8. Employee Agreement and Release Prior to Receipt of Benefits. Upon the occurrence of a termination under Section 7(b) or 7
(c) of this Agreement (“Covered Termination”), and prior to the receipt of any benefits under this Agreement on account of the 
occurrence of a Covered Termination, you will, as of the date of a Covered Termination, execute an employee agreement and release 
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A. Such employee agreement and release shall specifically relate to all of your rights and 
claims in existence at the time of such execution and shall confirm your obligations under any proprietary information agreement with 
Intersil or Xicor, Inc. (“Xicor”) or their affiliates. It is understood that such employee release and agreement shall comply with 
applicable law. In the event you do not execute such release and agreement within the period required by applicable law, or if you 
revoke such employee agreement and release within the period permitted by applicable law, no benefits shall be payable under this 
Agreement.  
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9. Indemnification Agreements. Effective on the commencement date of the Prior Agreement, Intersil assumed and agreed to be 
bound by the terms and conditions of the Indemnification Agreement you entered into with Xicor. Effective February 2, 2005, you 
and Intersil agreed to be bound by the terms of that certain indemnity agreement (the “Indemnity Agreement”) which shall be 
unaffected by this Agreement.  

10. Proprietary Information Agreements. Effective on the commencement date of the Prior Agreement, you acknowledge and 
agree that your agreement regarding proprietary information and inventions you entered into with Xicor shall inure to the benefit of 
Intersil, and shall be fully enforceable by, and apply in all respects with respect to, Intersil. You also confirm your obligations under 
the “Employee Agreement” with Intersil dated March 15, 2004, which includes certain inventions, intellectual property and 
confidentiality covenants.  

11. Non-Compete/Non-Solicitation.  
(a) For a 2-year period following the Effective Date, you will not (directly or indirectly) participate in, engage in or hold any 

material interest in, or otherwise deal or become associated with, any business that is competitive with Intersil’s business. The non-
compete covenant in the preceding sentence shall apply in the geographic areas of: (i) the counties of Santa Clara, San Mateo, San 
Diego, Orange and San Francisco counties of California; (ii) California; (iii) the Unites States of America; and (iv) the world.  

(b) During the 1-year period following the expiration of your Term of Employment, you will not solicit for hire, or hire, senior 
executives or engineers employed by Intersil or its affiliates.  

(c) If the provisions of this Section 11 should ever be adjudicated to exceed any maximum time, geographic, service or other 
limitations permitted by applicable law in any jurisdiction, then such provisions shall be deemed reformed in such jurisdiction to the 
maximum limitations permitted by applicable law. You acknowledge that the provisions of this Section 11 are, in view of the nature 
of the business of Intersil and its subsidiaries, reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate interests of Intersil and its 
subsidiaries and that any violation of this Section 11 may result in irreparable injury to Intersil or its subsidiaries entitling Intersil to 
temporary or permanent injunctive relief, without the necessity of proving actual damages, which rights shall be cumulative with and 
in addition to any other rights or remedies to which Intersil may be entitled hereunder or at law or in equity.  

12. Arbitration. The parties agree that any dispute regarding the interpretation or enforcement of this Employment Agreement 
shall be decided by confidential, final and binding arbitration conducted by Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services (“JAMS”) 
under the then existing JAMS rules rather than by litigation in court, trial by jury, administrative proceeding or in any other forum.  

13. Miscellaneous.  
(a) Authority to Enter into Agreement. Intersil represents that it is has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this 

Employment Agreement on behalf of Intersil.  

(b) Absence of Conflicts; Termination of Prior Agreement. You represent that upon the Effective Date, your performance of 
your duties under this Employment Agreement will not breach any other agreement as to which you are a party. You confirm that any 
employment agreement and any Change in Control Severance Benefits Agreement that you may have entered into with Xicor with 
Xicor have terminated and are of no further force or effect without any liabilities of the parties thereto or Intersil or its affiliates. You 
agree that upon the Effective Date, the Prior Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect.  

(c) Attorneys’ Fees. If a legal action or other proceeding is brought for enforcement of this Employment Agreement because of 
an alleged dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of this Employment Agreement, the 
successful or prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred, both before and after 
judgment, in addition to any other relief to which they may be entitled.  
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(d) Taxes. Intersil may withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such federal, state or local income taxes to the 
extent the same required to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation. You acknowledge that you are responsible for 
the payment of any income taxes due to payments hereunder or otherwise from Intersil.  

(e) Successors. This Employment Agreement is binding on and may be enforced by Intersil and its successors and assigns and is 
binding on and may be enforced by you and your heirs and legal representatives. Any successor to Intersil or substantially all of its 
business (whether by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) will in advance assume in writing and be bound by all of Intersil’s 
obligations under this Employment Agreement.  

(f) Notices. Notices under this Employment Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been given when 
personally delivered or two days after mailed by U.S. registered or certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid. 
Mailed notices to you will be addressed to you at the home address which you have most recently communicated to Intersil in writing. 
Notices to Intersil will be addressed to its General Counsel at Intersil’s corporate headquarters.  

(g) Waiver. No provision of this Employment Agreement will be modified or waived except in writing signed by you and an 
officer of Intersil duly authorized by the Board. No waiver by either party of any breach of this Employment Agreement by the other 
party will be considered a waiver of any other breach of this Employment Agreement.  

(h) Entire Agreement. This Employment Agreement and your Executive Change of Control Severance Benefits Agreement, 
represent the entire agreement between us concerning the subject matter of your employment by Intersil, and expressly supersede all 
other promises or understandings, oral or written, including without limitation the Prior Agreement.  

(i) Governing Law. This Employment Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of California without reference to 
conflict of laws provisions.  

(j) Severability. If any portion of this Employment Agreement shall be determined to be unenforceable, the remaining provisions 
of this Employment Agreement shall remain in force.  

Lou, we very much look forward to your continuing with Intersil in your new capacity as President and Chief Operating Officer 
performing the duties described in this Agreement. Please indicate your acceptance of the terms of this Employment Agreement by 
signing in the place indicated below.  
  

  

  

Sincerely,

INTERSIL CORPORATION

/s/ Richard M. Beyer 
Richard M. Beyer
Chief Executive Officer

Acknowledged and Agreed:

/s/ Louis DiNardo 
Louis DiNardo
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Exhibit A 

Intersil Corporation  

Employee Agreement and Release  

I understand and agree completely to the terms set forth in the foregoing agreement.  

I hereby confirm my obligations under all agreements regarding proprietary information and inventions which I executed in 
favor of Xicor, Inc. and Intersil Corporation shall inure to the benefit of the Company and be fully enforceable by, and apply in all 
respects with respect to, the Company.  

I acknowledge that I have read and understand Section 1542 of the California Civil Code which reads as follows: “A general 
release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, 
which if known by him must have materially affected this settlement with the debtor.” I hereby expressly waive and relinquish all 
rights and benefits under that section and any law of any jurisdiction of similar effect with respect to my release of any claims I may 
have against the Company.  

Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, I hereby release, acquit and forever discharge the Company, its parents and 
subsidiaries, and their officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, shareholders, successors, assigns and affiliates, of and from any 
and all claims, liabilities, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, attorneys fees, damages, indemnities and obligations of every 
kind and nature, in law, equity, or otherwise, known and unknown, suspected and unsuspected, disclosed and undisclosed (other than 
any claim for indemnification I may have as a result of any third party action against me based on my employment with the 
Company), arising out of or in any way related to agreements, events, acts or conduct at any time prior to and including the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, including but not limited to: all such claims and demands directly or indirectly arising out of or in any way 
connected with my employment with the Company or the termination of that employment, including but not limited to, claims of 
intentional and negligent infliction of emotional distress, any and all tort claims for personal injury, claims or demands related to 
salary, bonuses, commissions, stock, stock options, or any other ownership interests in the Company, vacation pay, fringe benefits, 
expense reimbursements, severance pay, or any other form of compensation; claims pursuant to any federal, state or local law or 
cause of action including, but not limited to, the federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended; the federal Age Discrimination in 
Employment Act of 1967, as amended (“ADEA”); the federal American with Disabilities Act of 1990; the California Fair 
Employment and Housing Act, as amended; tort law; contract law; wrongful discharge; discrimination; fraud; defamation; emotional 
distress; and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing; provided, however, that nothing in this paragraph shall be 
construed in any way to release the Company from its obligation to indemnify you pursuant to the Company’s Indemnification 
Agreement and to provide you with continued coverage under the Company’s directors and officers liability insurance policy to the 
same extent that it has provided such coverage to previously departed officers and directors of the Company.  

I acknowledge that I am knowingly and voluntarily waiving and releasing any rights I may have under ADEA. I also 
acknowledge that the consideration given for the waiver and release in the preceding paragraph hereof is in addition to anything of 
value which I was already entitled. I further acknowledge that I have been advised by this writing, as required by the ADEA, that: 
(a) my waiver and release do not apply to any rights or claims that may arise after the Effective Date of this Agreement; (b) I have the 
right to consult with an attorney prior to executing this Agreement; (c) I have twenty-one (21) days to consider this Agreement 
(although I may choose to voluntarily execute this Agreement earlier); (d) I have seven (7) days following the execution of this 
Agreement by the parties to revoke the Agreement; and (e) this Agreement shall not be effective until the date upon which the 
revocation period has expired, which shall be the eighth day after this Agreement is executed by me, provided that the Company has 
also executed this Agreement by that date.  
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LOUIS DINARDO    INTERSIL CORPORATION

/s/ Louis DiNardo    By:  /s/ Richard M. Beyer 
Dated: January 25, 2006    Title:  Chief Executive Officer

   Dated: January 25, 2006
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Exhibit 10.06 

AMENDMENT TO  
EXECUTIVE  

CHANGE IN CONTROL  
SEVERANCE BENEFITS AGREEMENT  

WHEREAS, on March 15, 2004, Louis DiNardo (“Executive”) and Intersil Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the 
“Company” ) entered into an Executive Change In Control Severance Benefits Agreement (the “Agreement”);  

WHEREAS, Section 7.6 of the Agreement provides that it may be amended only upon the mutual written consent of the 
Company and Executive and that the written consent of the Company to a change in the Agreement must be signed by an executive 
officer of the Company after such change has been approved by the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors;  

WHEREAS, Executive and the Company now desire to amend the Agreement in connection with the amendment and 
restatement of Executive’s Employment Agreement with the Company, effective January 24, 2006;  

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and Executive hereby agree as follows:  
1. Section 2.2 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  

“2.2 Severance Payments. The Company shall continue to pay the Executive’s Annual Base Pay and full target Annual 
Bonus (without regard to satisfaction of any target performance objectives) for two years (the “Severance Period”) (less 
applicable deductions and withholdings) payable in accordance with Intersil’s normal payroll practices immediately prior 
to the Covered Termination;”  

2. Section 4.2 of the Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety to read as follows:  
“4.2. Parachute Payments. If all or any portion of the amounts payable or benefits provided to the Executive under this 
Agreement or otherwise are ‘excess parachute payments’ and are subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the 
Code (the ‘Excise Tax’), and if the net after-tax amount (taking into account all applicable taxes payable by the Executive, 
including without limitation any Excise Tax) that the Executive would receive with respect to such payments or benefits 
does not exceed the net after-tax amount the Executive would receive if the amount of such payments and benefits were 
reduced to the maximum amount which could otherwise be payable to the Executive without the imposition of the Excise 
Tax, then, only the extent necessary to eliminate the imposition of the Excise Tax, such payments and benefits shall be 
reduced, in the order and of the type mutually agreed to by the Executive and the Company. The calculations  



required under this Section 4.2 shall be prepared by the Company and reviewed for accuracy by the Executive and the 
Company’s regular certified public accountants.”  

3. A new Section 2.6 is hereby added to the Agreement to read in its entirety as follows:  
“2.6 409A Compliance. If any payments due under this Agreement would subject Executive to any penalty tax imposed 
under Section 409A of the Code if such payments were made at the time as required herein, then the payments that cause 
the imposition such penalty tax shall be payable in one lump sum on the first day which is at least six months after the date 
of Executive’s separation of service as set forth in Section 409A of the Code and the regulations and other official 
guidance thereunder.”  

[REMAINDER INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement on the day and year written above.  
  

  

LOUIS DINARDO 

/s/ Louis DiNardo

INTERSIL CORPORATION

By:  /s/ Richard M. Beyer 
Name:  Richard M. Beyer
Title:  Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 21.01 

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT  

INTERSIL CORPORATION  
SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT  

AS OF FEBRUARY 24, 2006  
  

Subsidiary Name   
State or Other Jurisdiction

of Incorporation 
U.S.   

Intersil Communications, Inc.   Delaware
Elantec Semiconductor, Inc.   Delaware
Intersil Americas Inc.  Delaware
Intersil Investment Company   Delaware
Intersil (FL), LLC   Delaware
Xicor LLC   Delaware
Poweready, Inc.   Delaware
Analog Integration Partners, LLC   Delaware

Caribbean   

Sapphire Worldwide Investments Inc.  British Virgin Islands

Asia   

Elantec Semiconductor Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.   Malaysia
Intersil China Limited   Hong Kong, PRC
Intersil K. K.   Japan
Intersil YH   Korea
Intersil Advanced Technology (Labuan) Ltd.   Federation of Labuan, Malaysia
Intersil Services Company Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia
Intersil Pte. Ltd.   Singapore
Intersil Ltd.   Taiwan
Xicor Hong Kong Limited   Hong Kong

Europe   

Intersil S.A.   Belgium
Intersil Sarl   France
Intersil GmbH  Germany
Intersil Srl   Italy
Intersil Holding GmbH   Switzerland
Intersil Europe Sarl   Switzerland
Intersil Wireless B.V.   The Netherlands
Intersil Limited   United Kingdom
Xicor, GmbH   Germany
Xicor Limited  United Kingdom
Intersil Luxembourg Participations Sarl  Luxembourg
Elantec Semiconductor U.K. Limited   United Kingdom
Intersil Swiss Holding Sarl   Switzerland/Delaware



Exhibit 23.01 

Consent of Independent Registered Certified Public Accountants  

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-117890) pertaining to the Xicor, Inc. 
1998 employee Stock Purchase Plan, Xicor, Inc. 1990 Incentive and Non-incentive Stock Option Plan, Xicor, Inc. 1998 Nonstatutory 
Stock Option Plan, Xicor, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Plan, Xicor, Inc. 2000 Director Option Plan, Xicor, Inc. 1995 Director Option Plan, 
(Form S-8 No. 333-88208) pertaining to the Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. 1983 Stock Option Plan, Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. 1994 
Equity Incentive Plan, Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. 1995 Equity 
Incentive Plan and Elantec Semiconductor, Inc. 2001 Equity Incentive Plan, (Form S-8 No. 333-31094) pertaining to the Intersil 
Corporation 1999 Equity Compensation Plan and Intersil Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan, (Form S-8 No. 333-50718) 
pertaining to the SiCOM, Inc. 1985 Incentive Stock Option Plan, SiCOM, Inc. 1996 Equity Incentive Plan and Option Issued to 
Robert W. Putnam, (Form S-8 No. 333-50722) pertaining to the Employee Stock Option Plan of No Wires Needed B.V., (Form S-8 
No. 333-65804) pertaining to the Intersil Corporation 1999 Equity Compensation Plan, (Form S-4 No. 333-35052) and (Form S-4 
No. 333-46984) and the related Prospectuses of Intersil Corporation of our reports dated February 28, 2006, with respect to the 
consolidated financial statements and schedule of Intersil Corporation, Intersil Corporation management’s assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Intersil 
Corporation, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 30, 2005.  
  

Fort Lauderdale, Florida  
February 28, 2006 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP



Exhibit 31.01 

CERTIFICATIONS  

I, Richard M. Beyer, certify that:  
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Intersil Corporation;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with 
respect to the period covered by this annual report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented 
in this annual report;  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:  
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;  

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based 
on such evaluation; and  

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal controls over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent function):  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal controls over financial reporting.  
  

Date: March 3, 2006  

/s/ Richard M. Beyer 
Richard M. Beyer 
Chief Executive Officer 



Exhibit 31.02 

I, David A. Zinsner, certify that:  
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Intersil Corporation;  

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with 
respect to the period covered by this annual report;  

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented 
in this annual report;  

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act 
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and we have:  
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us 
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;  

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed 
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this annual report our 
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based 
on such evaluation; and  

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s 
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and  

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal controls over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the 
equivalent function):  
a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which 
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s 
internal controls over financial reporting.  
  

Date: March 3, 2006  

/s/ David A. Zinsner 
David A. Zinsner 
Chief Financial Officer 



Exhibit 32.01 

CERTIFICATION  

Each of the undersigned hereby certifies, for the purposes of section 1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the United States Code, as 
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, in his capacity as an officer of Intersil Corporation (“Intersil”), 
that the Annual Report of Intersil on Form 10-K for the period ended December 30, 2005, fully complies with the requirements of 
Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in such report fairly presents, in all material 
respects, the financial condition and results of operation of Intersil. This written statement is being furnished to the Securities and 
Exchange Commission as an exhibit to such Form 10-K.  
  
Date: March 3, 2005  By: /s/ Richard M. Beyer 

  

Richard M. Beyer 
Chief Executive Officer 

Date: March 3, 2005  By: /s/ David A. Zinsner 

  

David A. Zinsner 
Chief Financial Officer


